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CASENO. CR-Fp-17-3893 OITNOY 16 AMIO: 24

DEPT.NO. 1 £k 20 DISTRICT COpRT
N
ERK . DEPUTY L

IN THE FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF ELKO

THE STATE OF NEVADA, CRIMINAL
Plaintiff, INFORMATION
VS,
TENNILLE RAE WHITAKER,
Defendant.

COMES NOW THE STATE OF NEVADA, the Plaintiff in the above-entitled cause, by
and through its Counsel of Record, the Elko County District Attorney’s Office, and informs the
above-entitled Court that Defendant above-named, on or about or between the 1st day of
September, 2015 and the 6" day of June 2017, at or near the location of the city of Wells
and/or the surrounding areas near the city of Wells, within the County of Elko, and the State
of Nevada, committed a crime or crimes described as follows:

COUNT 1
SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN SCHOOL EMPLOYEE OR VOLUNTEER
AND A PUPIL, A CATEGORY C FELONY AS DEFINEDY BY NRS 201,540,
(NOC 51067)

That the Defendant, a person older than 21 years of age, and while employed
at or volunteering at a public or private school, did engage in sexual conduct
with a pupil, one B.H., who was 16 years of age or older and had not received
a high school diploma, a general educational development certificate or an
equivalent document and: the student was attending the public or private
school at which the Defendant was employed or volunteered:; or the student
had contact with the Defendant in the course of the Defendant performing his
or her duties as an employee or volunteer.
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COUNT 2

SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN SCHOOL EMPLOYEE OR VOLUNTEER
AND A PUPIL, A CATEGORY C FELONY AS DEFINEDY BY NRS 201.540.
(NOC 51067)

That the Defendant, a person older than 21 years of age, and while employed
at or volunteering at a public or private school, did engage in sexual conduct
with a pupil, one O.C., who was 16 years of age or older and had not
received a high school diploma, a general educational development certificate
or an equivalent document and: the student was attending the public or
private school at which the Defendant was employed or volunteered; or the
student had contact with the Defendant in the course of the Defendant
performing his or her duties as an employee or volunteer.

COUNT 3

SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN SCHOOL EMPLOYEE OR VOLUNTEER
AND A PUPIL, A CATEGORY C FELONY AS DEFINEDY BY NRS 201.540.
(NOC 51067)

That the Defendant, a person older than 21 years of age, and while employed
at or volunteering at a public or private school, did engage in sexual conduct
with a pupil, one L.T., who was 16 years of age or older and had not received
a high school diploma, a general educational development certificate or an
equivalent document and: the student was attending the public or private
school at which the Defendant was employed or volunteered; or the student
had contact with the Defendant in the course of the Defendant performing his
or her duties as an employee or volunteer.

COUNT 4

SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN SCHOOL EMPLOYEE OR VOLUNTEER
AND A PUPIL, A CATEGORY C FELONY AS DEFINEDY BY NRS 201.540.
(NOC 51067)

That the Defendant, a person older than 21 years of age, and while employed
at or volunteering at a public or private school, did engage in sexual conduct
with a pupil, one C.M., who was 16 years of age or older and had not
received a high school diploma, a general educational development certificate
or an equivalent document and: the student was attending the public or
private school at which the Defendant was employed or volunteered; or the
student had contact with the Defendant in the course of the Defendant
performing his or her duties as an employee or volunteer.

Pl
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All of which is contrary to the form of the Statute in such cases made and

provided, and against the peace and dignity of the State of Nevada.
Dated: November 13, 2017.

TYLER J. INGRAM
Elko County District Attorney——--

o
o

o ' P
P
o

CHAD B. THOMPSON
Chief Criminal Deputy District Attorney
State Bar Number: 10248

Declaration By State’s Counsel Estimating

The Number Of Days Needed For Trial

COMES NOW THE STATE OF NEVADA, by and through its Counsel of Record the
Elko County District Attorney’s Office and, specifically by the Deputy District Attorney
assigned the above-entitled matter, who, by his signature hereunder, would declare to the
above-entitled Court that it is State’s Counsel's estimate that 4 days, including jury selection,

should be set aside for the trial of this matter.

'CHAD B. THOMPSON
Chief Criminal Deputy District Attorney
State Bar Number: 10248

Witnesses’ names and addresses known to the District Attorney at the time of filing
the above Criminal Information, if known, are as follows.

B. H.: C/O DETECTIVE STAKE, 775 WEST SILVER STREET ELKO, NV 89801
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C. M.: C/O DETECTIVE STAKE, 775 WEST SILVER STREET ELKO, NV 89801

C/S 17-001: C/O DETECTIVE STAKE, 775 WEST SILVER STREET ELKO, NV 89801
C/S 17-002: C/O DETECTIVE STAKE, 775 WEST SILVER STREET ELKO, NV 89801
C/S 17-003: C/O DETECTIVE STAKE, 775 WEST SILVER STREET ELKO, NV 89801
C/S 17-008: C/O DETECTIVE STAKE, 775 WEST SILVER STREET ELKO, NV 89801
C/S 17-011: C/O DETECTIVE STAKE, 775 WEST SILVER STREET ELKO, NV 89801
C/S 17-012: C/O DETECTIVE STAKE, 775 WEST SILVER STREET ELKO, NV 89801
D. M.: C/O DETECTIVE STAKE, 775 WEST SILVER STREET ELKO, NV 89801
MARIAH DRAKE: 775 WEST SILVER STREET ELKO, NV 89801

BILLY HOOD: 775 WEST SILVER STREET ELKO, NV 89801

MADISON HOOPER: U-3 RANCH WELLS, NV 89835

BETTY J KELLY: 1509 6TH ST WELLS, NV 89835

L. T.: C/O DETECTIVE STAKE, 775 WEST SILVER STREET ELKO, NV 89801,
MICHAEL LOUP: 775 WEST SILVER STREET ELKO, NV 89801

CHRISTOPHER MCANANY: 1378 LAKE AVE WELLS SCHOOL WELLS, NV 89835
PETE NIELSON: 1448 SILVER STREET ELKO, NV 89801-3924

O. C.: C/O DETECTIVE STAKE, 775 WEST SILVER STREET ELKO, NV 89801,
STEVEN RODRIGUEZ: 804 HOGAN STREET WELLS, NV 89835

MICHAEL SILVA: 775 WEST SILVER STREET ELKO, NV 89801

NICK STAKE: 775 WEST SILVER STREET ELKO, NV 89801

T. M.: C/O DETECTIVE STAKE, 775 WEST SILVER STREET ELKO, NV 89801
WES TALBERT: 508 MOOR AVE WELLS, NV 89835

v
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

| hereby certify, pursuant to the provisions of NRCP 5(b), that | am an employee of the
x‘x‘
Elko County District Attorney’s Office, and that on the Sgifoday of November, 2017, |
hereby served a copy of the CRIMINAL INFORMATION, by delivering, mailing, faxing, or

causing to be delivered, faxed, or mailed, a copy of said document to the following:

By delivering to:

HONORABLE NANCY PORTER
FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
ELKO COUNTY COURTHOUSE
ELKO, NV 89801

By mailing to:
BYRON BERGERON
ATTORNEY AT LAW
432 COURT STREET
RENO, NV 89501

(e Aihons ;!m

ERIKA WEBER
: CASEWORKER
DA # F-17-01609

o
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CASE NO. CR-FP-17-3893

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF THE STATE OF
NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF ELKO

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff, MEMORANDUM OF
vs. PLEA AGREEMENT
TENNILLE RAE WHITAKER,

Defendant.

NOLO CONTENDERE PLEA AGREEMENT
|, TENNILLE RAE WHITAKER, hereby agree to enter pleas of Nolo Contendere (hereinafter
referred to simply as “no contest”) pursuant to North Carolina v. Alford, 400 U.S. 25 (1970),
to 4 counts of SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN SCHOOL EMPLOYEE OR VOLUNTEER
AND A PUPIL, A CATEGORY C FELONY AS DEFINEDY BY NRS 201.540 as more fully
alleged in the CRIMINAL INFORMATION.
RECITATION OF AGREEMENT

My decision to plead no contest is based upon the following agreement between
myself, and the State of Nevada:

The District Attorney’s Office will forebear prosecution on the 8 other charges of
SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN SCHOOL EMPLOYEE OR VOLUNTEER AND A PUPIL, A
CATEGORY C FELONY AS DEFINEDY BY NRS 201.540 onglnally plead in the Criminal
Complaint filed in the Elko Justice Court and will file no charges other than those agreed to in

the Memorandum of Plea Agreement and will file no further charges arising out of facts
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related to this incident, now known to the District Attorney’s Office either by a new Complaint
or Indictment.

At the time of sentencing in this matter both sides will be free to argue, except that the
State will be limited to arguing for a sentence that does not exceed an aggregate sentence of
4-12 years.

Both parties agree to waive the attachment of the Criminal Information.

CONSEQUENCES OF THE PLEA

I understand that by pleading no contest to 4 counts of SEXUAL CONDUCT
BETWEEN SCHOOL EMPLOYEE OR VOLUNTEER AND A PUPIL, A CATEGORY C
FELONY AS DEFINEDY BY NRS 201.540, | may be imprisoned for a term of 1 to 5 years in
the Nevada State Prison and that | may further be punished by a fine of up to $10,000.00, for
each count to which I now plead. | understand that the law requires me to pay an administra-
tive assessment fee. | understand that the minimum term may not exceed 40 percent (40%)
of the maximum term of imprisonment. | understand that if granted probation | can be
required to serve jail time as a condition of probation.

I understand that | may be eligible for probation for the offenses to which | am
pleading no contest subject to the conditions set forth below. | understand that except as
otherwise provided by statute, the question of whether | receive probation is in the discretion
of the sentencing judge. | understand that pursuant to NRS 176A.110 the court cannot grant
probation or suspend my sentence unless an evaluation is conducted and the person
conducting the evaluation certifies that | do not represent a high risk to re-offend.

I understand that, if appropriate, | will be ordered to make restitution to the victim of
the offense to which | am pleading no contest and to the victim of any related offense which
is being dismissed or not prosecuted pursuant to this agreement. | will also be ordered to

reimburse the State of Nevada for any expenses related to my extradition, if any.

Page 2 0f 8
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I understand that if more than one sentence of imprisonment is imposed and | am
eligible to serve the sentences concurrently, the sentencing judge has the discretion to order
the sentences served consecutively or concurrently.

I understand that information regarding charges not filed, dismissed charges, or
charges to be dismissed pursuant to this agreement may be considered by the judge at
sentencing.

I'have not been promised or guaranteed any particular sentence by anyone. | know
that my sentence is to be determined by the Court within the limits prescribed by statute.

| understand that if my attorney or the State of Nevada or both recommend a specific
punishment to the Court, the Court is not obligated to accept this recommendation.

I 'understand that if | am not a citizen of the United States, any criminal conviction will
likely result in serious negative immigration consequences including but not limited to the
following:

1) Removal from the United States through deportation:

2) The inability to reenter the United States:

3) The inability to renew and/or retain any legal residence status;

4) The inability to become a United States citizen;

9) The inability to establish legal residency in the United States;

6) Ineligibility for Deferred Action for Childhood Arrivals (DACA);

7) An indeterminate term of confinement with the United States Federal Government

based on my conviction and immigration status.

I understand that no one can promise me that this conviction will not result in negative
immigration consequences.

I understand that the Division of Parole and Probation of the Department of Public
Safety will prepare a report for the sentencing judge before sentencing. This report will
include matters relevant to the issue of sentencing, including my criminal history. |

understand that this report may contain hearsay information regarding my background and

Page 3 of 8
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criminal history. My attorney and | will each have the opportunity to comment on the
information contained in the report at the time of sentencing. Unless the District Attorney has
specifically agreed otherwise, the District Attorney may alsov comment on this report.
REGISTRATION AS A SEX OFFENDER

I understand that pursuant to NRS 179D.097 and NRS 179D.441 et. seq., | will be
required to register as a sex offender. | have discussed the registration requirements with
my attorney including the potential future penalties associated with any failure to comply with
the Sexual Offender Registration requirements.

Further, pursuant to NRS 176.0931, | will be subject to lifetime supervision. |

understand that in order to be released from lifetime supervision, | must:

1. Comply with the provisions of NRS 179D.010 to NRS 179D.550 (registration as a
sex offender), inclusive;

2. Not be convicted of any offense that poses a threat to the safety or well-being of
others for an interval of at least 10 consecutive years after my last conviction or
release from incarceration, whichever occurs later; and

3. To be deemed not likely to pose a threat to the safety of others, as determined by
a person professionally qualified to conduct psychosexual evaluations, if released
from lifetime supervision.

4. A person who is released from lifetime supervision remains subject to the
provisions of registration as a sex offender and to the provisions of community
notification unless the person is otherwise relieved from the operation of those
provisions.

WAIVER OF RIGHTS
By entering my plea of no contest, | understand that | have waived the following rights

and privileges:
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1. The constitutional privilege against self-incrimination, including the right to refuse to
testify at trial, in which event the prosecution would not be allowed to comment to the jury
about my refusal to testify.

2. The constitutional right to a speedy and public trial by an impartial jury, free of
excessive pretrial publicity prejudicial to the defense, at which trial | would be entitled to the
assistance of an attorney, either appointed or retained. At trial the State would bear the
burden of proving beyond a reasonable doubt each element of the offense(s) charged.

3. The constitutional right to confront and cross-examine any witnesses who would
testify against me.

4. The constitutional right to subpoena witnesses to testify on my behalf.

5. The constitutional right to testify in my own defense.

6. The right to appeal the conviction, with the assistance of an attorney, either
appointed or retained, unless the appeal is based upon reasonable constitutional,
jurisdictional or other grounds that challenge the legality of the proceedings and except as
otherwise provided in subsection 3 of NRS 174.035.

VOLUNTARINESS OF PLEA

| have discussed the elements of all the original charge(s) against me with my attorney
and | understand the nature of the charge(s) against me.

I understand that the State would have to prove each element of the charge(s) against
me at trial.

I have discussed with my attorney any possible defenses, defense strategies, and
circumstances which might be in my favor.

All of the foregoing elements, consequences, rights and waiver of rights have been
thoroughly explained to me by my attorney.

I believe that pleading no contest and accepting this plea bargain is in my best interest

and that a trial would be contrary to my interest.

Page 5 of 8
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I 'am signing this agreement voluntarily, after consultation with my attorney, and | am
not acting under duress or coercion or by virtue of promises of leniency, except for those set
forth in this agreement.

I 'am not now under the influence of any intoxicating liquor, a controlled substance or
other drug which would in any manner impair my ability to understand this agreement or the
proceedings surrounding my entry of this plea.

My attorney has answered all of my questions regarding this plea agreement and its
consequences to my satisfaction and | am satisfied with the services provided by my

attorney.

DATED this Y “day of (’){ﬁd? ,2017.
A "y .-
Moo Foe, Wik~

TENNILLE RAE WHITAKER
Defendant

Agreed to on this Cﬁ 7day of 4/}/\ / / , 2017

CHAD B. THOMPSON
District Attorney’s Office
NV Bar Number 10248

CERTIFICATE OF COUNSEL
l, the undersigned, as the attorney for the defendant named herein and as an officer of

the court hereby certify that:

1. I have fully explained to the defendant the allegation contained in the charge(s)

to which no contest pleas are being entered.

2. | have advised the defendant of the penalties for each charge and the

restitution that the defendant may be ordered to pay.
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3. | have inquired of the Defendant facts concerning the her immigration status
and explained to the Defendant that if she is not a citizen of the United States that any
criminal conviction will most likely result in serious negative immigration consequences
including but not limited to:

a) Removal from the United States through Deportation;

b) The inability to reenter the United States;

c) The inability to renew and/or retain any legal residence status;

d) The inability to become a United States citizen;

e) The inability to establish legal residency in the United States:

) Ineligibility for Deferred Action for Childhood Arrivals (DACA);

g) An indeterminate term of confinement with the United States Federal Government

based on my conviction and immigration status.

Moreover, | have explained that regardless of what the Defendant may have been told
by any attorney, no one can promise Defendant that this conviction will not result in negative
immigration consequences and/or impact her ability to become a United States citizen and/or
legal resident.

4, All pleas of no contest offered by the defendant pursuant to this agreement are

consistent with all the facts known to me and are made with my advice to the Defendant.

Page 7 of 8
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5. To the best of my knowledge and belief, the Defendant:

a. Is competent and understands the charges and the consequences of
pleading no contest as provided in this agreement,

b. Executed this agreement and will enter all no contest pleas pursuant
hereto voluntarily, and

C. Was not under the influence of intoxicating liquor, a controlled substance

or other drug at the time of execution of this agreement.

Dated this 7~ day of Nﬁvem’oeﬁﬁeﬁiﬁ

BYRON BERGERON
Defense Attorney

NVBar# 75 G4
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LEde g

CASE NO. CR-FP-17-3893
DEPT. NO. 1

IN THE FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF ELKO, STATE OF NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,

OFFER OF PROOF WITH RESPECT TO
THE DEFENDANT TENNILLE RAE
WHITAKER’'S PROPOSED PLEA OF
NOLO CONTENDERE

VS.

TENNILLE RAE WHITAKER,
Defendant(s).

COMES NOW, Plaintiff, State of Nevada, by and through its attorneys, TYLER J.
INGRAM, District Attorney for the County of Elko, and CHAD B. THOMPSON, Deputy
District Attorney, and by this pleading would make the following Offer of Proof with respect to
the prospective evidence in this matter which the State believes and therefore avers it would
have been in a position to adduce should the Defendant have elected to go to trial upon the
charges pleaded against her in this matter:

The State would have called as witnesses B.H., O.C.. L.T. and C.M., all of whom were
students or pupils at a public school in Wells, NV and 16 years of age or older, but had not
received a high school diploma and the public school they attended was a school at which
the Defendant was employed or the Defendant had contact with the witnesses in the course
of the Defendant performing her duties as an employee, and under the above circumstances
and on or about or between the 15t day of September, 2015 and the 6t day of June 2017, in

the County of Elko the Defendant did engage in sexual conduct with each of the above

3{Page 1 of 2
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witnesses who were pupils at the school.

Based upon the above, the State believes and therefore avers that if the above
witnesses were believed by a jury it could prove beyond a reasonable doubt that Ms.
WHITAKER committed the offenses pleaded against her in the Criminal Information

Dated this </ day of April, 2018.

TYLER J. INGRAM
Elko County District Attorney

- . //Wﬂ

HAD B. THOMPSON
Chief Criminal Deputy District Attorney
State Bar Number: 10248

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify, pursuant to the provisions of NRCP S(b), that | am an employee of the
Elko County District Attorney’s Office, and that on the way of April, 2018, | served the
foregoing OFFER OF PROOF, by hand delivering, mailing or by facsimile transmission or
causing to be hand delivered, mailed or transmitted by facsimile transmission, a copy of said
document to the following:
By hand delivery:

THE HONORABLE NANCY PORTER
FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
ELKO COUNTY COURTHOUSE
ELKO, NV 89801
By mailing to:

BYRON BERGERON

ATTORNEY AT LAW

432 COURT STREET
RENO, NV 89501

?) Ny ;Jn_

ERTKA WEBER™
CASEWORKER

DA # F-17-01609
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Case No. CR-FP-17-3893 FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT

Dept. No. 1

IN THE FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF ELKO

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff, ORDER REGARDING
MEDIA REQUEST
V.
TENILLE RAE WHITAKER,
Defendant.

/

This Court is in receipt of an oral Media Request submitted by Lori Gilbert on behalf of the
Elko Broadcastin Company, on April 30, 2018, regarding the arraignment in this matter, which is
scheduled to commence on April 30, 201 8, at the hour of 3:00 p.m., at the Elko County Courthouse.
Pursuant to S.C.R. 230, this Court shall grant access to all portions of trial which are
available to the public. This Court, under S.C.R. 23 0(2), will not permit any photograph or video
to be taken of any victim in this matter without the victim’s express permission. Media are restricted
from all instantaneous broadcast of court proceedings, e.g. “streaming,” “blogging,” “live broadcast,”
or any form of social media.
Furthermore, according to S.C.R. 238(2):
News reporters will not deliberately photo graph the jury or individual
jurors. However, it is recognized that, because of the physical layout
of some courtrooms and the general trial activity in any courtroom, it
may be impossible not to photograph some jurors as part of the

proceedings. To the extent possible, news reporters shall locate and
focus their equipment in such a manner as to minimize photographs
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[Box in Clerk’s Office]

CERTIFICATE OF HAND DELIVERY

Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I certify that I am an employee of the Fourth Judicial District
Court, Department 1, and that on this ~ ) ) day of April, 2018, I personally hand delivered a file-
stamped copy of the foregoing ORDER REGARDING MEDIA REQUEST addressed to:

Tyler J. Ingram, Esq. ' Lori Gilbert
Elko County District Attorney via e-mail: lori@elkoradio.com

540 Court Street, 2™ Floor
1059 e

Elko, NV 89801
CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

{1 File Stamped Copy}

Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I certify that [ am an employee of the Fourth Judicial District
Court, Department 1, and that on this &l day of April, 2018, I deposited for mailing in the
U.S. mail at Elko, Nevada, postage prepaid, a copy of the foregoing ORDER REGARDING
MEDIA REQUEST addressed to: =

Byron Bergeron, Esq.

432 Court Street o
Reno, NV 89501 : / (\%
AN |
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BYRON BERGERON, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 7598

432 Court Street TERR 2D Py L e
Reno, Nevada 89501 S
Telephone: 775.229.3736

Facsimile: 775.786.5573

Attorney for Defendant

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF THE STATE
NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF ELKO

STATE OF NEVADA, Case No. CR-FP-17-3893

Plaintiff,
VS.

TENNILE RAE WHITAKER,
Defendant.

PSYCHO-SEXUAL EVALUATION TO BE FILED UNDER SEAL

Dated this 27™ day of April, 2018.

;e; r— \Q",\—_/' e
s —
/-

BYRON BERGERON, ESQ.

Psycho-Sexual Evaluation to be Filed Under Seal - 1

F




STEVEN

Psychosexual Evaluation

Client: Tennille R. Whitaker

Date of Birth: February 12, 1977

Evaluation Date: April 20, 2018

Report Date: April 21, 2018

Evaluation Requested by: Byron Bergeron, Esq.

[N.B., This writer has served as treatment provider to Ms. Whitaker since July 5,
2017. She has been seen by this writer for 13 one-hour sessions, 7 ninety-minute
sessions, and one two-hour session to conduct the interview for this evaluation.
Her husband attended some of these sessions to aid in her treatment. The contact
prior to the two-hour interview for this evaluation definitely aided in her
assessment. Cumulatively, she has been in 25.5 hours of treatment and
assessment. ]

Materials Reviewed Prior to Evaluation: The complete file as furnished by
Ms. Whitaker's attorney was reviewed including: a crate containing three three-
ring binders and assorted DVDs collectively containing Elko County Sheriff's
Office Reports, Witness Statements, investigatory items, the ECSO Booking
Sheet, transcripts of several interviews, Declaration of Probable Cause,
Application for a search Warrant, and so forth.

Evaluation Issues: Ms. Whitaker was arrested and has apparently been
charged with eight violations of NRS 201.540, all felonies, described as Sexual
Conduct Between Certain Employees or Volunteers At School and Pupil.

What is the psychosexual makeup of this woman? What does this offense
indicate about her? What, if any, are her treatment needs? What interventions
would most effectively reduce the likelihood of future, similar offenses? To what
degree is she at risk for committing another sexual offense?

Present Offenses: On September 30, 2016 the Elko County Sheriff's Office
received a report of a 4th grade elementary school teacher, Tennille Whitaker,
who was alleged to have had sex with more than one student in her district. After
an investigation spanning the better part of a year, four male victims were found.
All were between the ages of 16 and 18 inclusively and all made statements to
authorities. Each student stated that they had had sexual intercourse and oral sex
with Ms. Whitaker. They had also received sexual images or videos from her.

Previous Offenses: Ms. Whitaker has no prior history of sexual crimes. Indeed,
she has no criminal history whatsoever.
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History and Present Situation: Tennille Whitaker was born in Elko on
February 12, 1977. Her family lived in Battle Mountain at the time. Her father,
William Horn, age 67, continues to live in Starr Valley, Nevada with her mother,
Rita, age 70. Tennille was their only child in this, their first and only marriage of
44 years duration so far. Her father was "a rancher, a cowboy," and her mother
worked as "a bookkeeper, a homemaker." The family lived a lower middle-class
lifestyle due to her father's working for his father at subpar wages. From age six
to age eight Tennille "was mostly on [her] own" as they worked. At age eight,
Tennille and her parents moved to Wells, Nevada and they have lived in the local
area ever since.

Tennille's mother was Catholic and she attended weekly Mass with her parents
and became confirmed when the time came. She tried to bring her faith into her
marriage but he never became fond of Catholic services. The two have since
joined a nondenominational church, Lighthouse Christian Fellowship, in Elko.

Neither of Tennille's parents had a problem with the problems commonly
associated with modernity such as drug abuse, problem drinking, criminal
activity, or gambling. But families can have other problems and Tennille
remembers that hers did too.

"They fought a lot about money. When I
was 16 my mom found out my dad had an
affair. My parents were an embarrassment to
me; sexual comments were being made all the
time. [That kind of behavior] makes you think
it's normal. My parents never really approved
of me. Even my favorite teacher in high school
accused me of not earning the high award I'd
gotten. He said I'd gotten it only by flirting with
the elderly judges. I've never had a teacher who
supported me."

At age 15 Tennille began rodeo competition and to go frequently for horseback
rides with her father. These two activities formed a bright spot in her otherwise
unhappy years at Wells High School. Her parents didn't allow her to participate
in sports. They did, however, allow her to participate in Future Farmers of
America and one year she won the Agricultural Sales Contest. Sadly, her faculty
advisor from high school discounted her accomplishment by stating she'd only
won because she'd flirted with the judges.
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Q: Was school pleasant for you?

A: No, It was horrible; the only good thing was rodeo. I was picked on
and called horrible things.

Q: How was that?

A: I had red hair and all the boys would say really mean things,
sexually explicit names and putdowns. It got so bad that I avoided the
hallway at school. I was in tears daily.

Despite her then undiagnosed Attention-Deficit/ Hyperactivity Disorder, Tennille
graduated from high school with a 3.0 GPA. She then went to Twin Falls where
she studied one year at the College of Southern Idaho before attending Great
Basin College in Elko for five years before getting her B.A. in Elementary
Education at age 28.

During her youth and for most of her adult life, Tennille did not abuse drugs,
have gambling problems or drink excessively. While in high school she met her
future husband Walter Whitaker (known in the community as "Willie"), who was
one year older than she. The two have been married some 19 years.

They’ve been a somewhat rough 19 years.

"We're both hot-tempered. We've yelled
and screamed at each other and called each
other names. We've guilt-tripped each other."

But the relationship also had its upside: two children, a boy named Hank (now
14) and a girl, Molly (now 10). The couple has worked hard to build up their lives

financially and they now run some 300 head of cattle in addition to the work
they've found in the community.

Her preferred forms of recreation in the last five years consist of "going shopping,
going to lunch with friends, hanging out with [her] family, or going on family
trips."

She has never served in the military.

She worked for the Elko County School District for 11 years.

She has never received mental health care at any time in her life prior to her
contact with this writer.

She states that she has "five close friends" with whom she shares meaningfully on
a regular basis ("twice a month and regular phone contact"): "I'm an open book
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with them now. I've told them about my offense." She has confided about her
suicidal feelings with two of them.

Approximately one month prior to initiating her behavior in the instant offense,
Tennille and her husband had what turned into a most serious crisis for them.
They'd both been drinking and one night he asked if there'd ever been anyone
else before him in a sexual and romantic sense. This brought up a years long
history of Tennille's not disclosing her one previous boyfriend which she finally,
that night, revealed. The results were as painful as they were dramatic.

"He felt as though his marriage had been
alie. He and I were both upset. I was having a
hard time because I had two friends going
through divorces and I'd never experienced
that [crying]. I had 32 kids in my 4th grade
class and 7 of them had serious behavior
problems, so besides what was going on with
Willie I had a lot going on. I had no one in nmy
life because Willie had shut down. He'd get
angry, silent, super-depressed. We'd go three
days without talking. I was beating myself up
because I'd told him about the other boy in
high school. After disclosing to Willie I began
drinking a lot. A bottle of wine a da , three
shots of Crown Royal. That went on for a year
or more.,"

Sexual History & Present Sexual Orientation: Due to the nature of the
present evaluation, considerable attention was devoted to Ms. Whitaker’s sexual
history and present adjustment. She states that she was sexually abused as a
child (ages five to six) by a female babysitter (approximately 20 years of age) who
would insist on bathing her and touched her genital area some "four or five
times."

She recalls that she did engage in the sort of childhood play of a sexual nature at
the age of 12 when she played "Truth or Dare." Developmental experts consider
this sort of play to be normal. She recalls that she learned about sex as a child
from "some sex ed and the other kids at school" and that there were no "birds and
the bees" types of parental teachings.

Tennille’s parents modeled a style of affecﬁon and love that was appropriate and
warm including hugs and statements of affection. They indicated their love of her

in a similar manner.

RE: WHITAKER, Tennille R. v 4



At approximately 13 years of age, Tennille discovered masturbation, apparently
from simply touching herself in her bedroom. She recalls, regarding
masturbation, “I was private about it and no one ever told me anything like it was
wrong or OK." She considers masturbation to be what it is, simply a normal
sexual behavior.

Her first sexual experience was at age 16 with a 16-year-old male peer in his car.
She has had a total of four sexual partners, all male adults. With her victims in
the instant offense this number would rise to eight.

Ms. Whitaker denies ever having sexual interest in or engaging in voyeurism,
exhibitionism or any of the other "isms" which make up the panoply of clinically
significant sexually deviant behaviors. (Note: These tend to be quite rare among
women.) Her history and her unguardedly disclosed sexual fantasjes confirm this
impression. She credibly denied any homophobia.

Ms. Whitaker reports that currently she and her husband have a sex life that has
reduced significantly from happier times when they would normally have
relations "four or five times a week." She explains that she is so depressed that
she has lost her interest.

She states that she and her husband can "kind of" talk freely when it comes to
sexual topics, although they’ve never discussed masturbation, sexual thoughts or
(as was disclosed) sexual histories freely. Thus, they have sex of course, but they
really don't have sexual intimacy, that 18, the safe sharing of their sexuality with
one another.

General Assessment: Tennille Whitaker is a 41-year-old woman who is
currently living with her children and her husband, Willie, aged 42 at their home
in Starr Valley, near Wells, Nevada. She appeared for the present evaluation in a
timely fashion. She was socially appropriate throughout the clinical interview
and was overtly willing to discuss all topic areas raised by the evaluator. She
clearly evidenced signs of depression and it appears that her symptoms of
depression have been present for the last three years. She is receiving treatment
for this problem in her contact with this writer. She has avoided the medical
consultations recommended by this writer as her condition, Major Depressive
Disorder, is quite serious and, in her case, includes suicidal fantasies, thoughts,
and acting out behaviors. Her avoidance of contact with a medical doctor who
could prescribe antidepressant medicine is both of concern and typical of those
struggling with depression.

4
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She was well-oriented, denied hallucinations or paranoid thinking and was able
to track complex concepts easily. While formal intelligence testing was not part of
the present evaluation, she clearly falls within the normal range of intelligence, as
evidenced by her life accomplishments, vocabulary and fund of knowledge.

There was no evidence of cognitive impairment in the general sense of that term
but since the time of her arrest her mental health has been in a serious state.

Her symptoms of Major Depressive Disorder include:
1. A depressed mood most of the day, nearly every day.
2. Markedly diminished interest or pleasure in all, or almost all, activities
most of the day, nearly every day.
3. Insomnia nearly every day.
4. Feelings of worthlessness nearly every day.
5. Recurrent thoughts of death with suicidal acting out and plan.

As one might expect from her culture and upbringing she tends to believe that
she "should just tough it out." Although this writer has not seen immanent risk
there is certainly regular and pervasive risk. This risk level is exacerbated by her
other diagnoses including Attention-Deficit/Hyperactivity Disorder. Her
Depressive Disorder and AD/HD represent the most common and the second
most common mental health conditions in the U.S. AD/HD is a condition that is
genetic.

Ier inattentive symptoms of AD/HD include:

Makes careless mistakes and often fails to give close attention to details.
Often has difficulty sustaining attention in tasks.

Often does not follow through with tasks.

Often has difficulty organizing tasks and activities.

Is often distracted by extraneous stimuli or unrelated thoughts.

AP wpPH

Her hyperactive and impulsive symptoms include:
1. Often fidgets with or taps hands or feet.
2. Often leaves seat in situations when remaining seated is expected (as was
described of her in the statements of other teachers).
3. Isoften "on the go" acting as if "driven by a motor."
4. Often talks excessively.
5. Often interrupts or intrudes on others (taking over what others are doing).

Thus, she has the combined presentation of the disorder. An additional concern
here includes profoundly painful boredom. Although we can all remember being
bored, for those with AD/HD, boredom is more regularly like a "7" on a scale of "1

to 10." Their impulsivity is often an attempt to assuage this boredom.

SA)
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Lastly, there is an additional mental health concern: Borderline Personality
Disorder. She has a number of the traits including:

1. Frantic efforts to avoid real or imagined abandonment.

2. A pattern of unstable and intense interpersonal relationships
characterized by alternating between extremes of devaluation and
idealization.

An unstable sense of self.

Impulsivity (as with sex in the instant offense).
Recurrent suicidal behavior, gestures, etc.
Affective instability.

Chronic feelings of emptiness.

N oo s

Regarding this last trait, Ms. Whitaker made the following comments in our
interview:

"I feel like I've never had a mind of my own.,"
"Do you ever feel empty inside?"
"Yeah. A lot. It's a common thing. I think I've always had that."

Those with Borderline Personality Disorder have the highest risk of suicide of any
diagnosis. Mitigating this risk is that the condition is ego dystonic, that is, those
with it are unhappy and know something is wrong and they are the most active
seekers of mental health care, as opposed to other personality disorders like that
of Narcissism in which the afflicted "knows" that he has no problems except for
the people who complain about him. Borderline patients respond very well to the
proper treatment. Like AD/HD, this disorder too is genetic.

An important trait of all personality disorders, including Borderline, is the lack of
a functioning observing ego, that is, our ability to step outside ourselves for a
moment of self-reflection in order to correct one's course in life. When asked
about what type of marital problems she might have she made a comment
supportive of this trait,

"I haven't been a reflective person but
that is changing."

A truism of any personality disorder is that, rather than the range of adaptive
traits that most people have, the 19% of the general population with personality
disorders are limited to very few and often just one trait. For Ms. Whitaker, that
trait is the fear of abandonment. That fear was triggered when her husband, upon
hearing the bad news about her having had another boyfriend before him nearly
two decades prior to the disclosure, rejected her and ignored her for days on end.

(A
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Her disclosure, ironically, was a move toward authenticity and mental health but
the rejection activated and strengthened her childhood theme of abandonment.

Her frantic efforts to avoid real or imagined abandonment were reflected in some
of the comments from the victims in the instant offense when they described her
as becoming "angry" when she sensed rejection of any kind. For these
individuals, feelings often determine reality so that if they feel insulted, for
example, then you did, in fact, insult them. Borderline individuals are also known
for coquettish or flirtatious behaviors in their attempts to gain attention. They
typically use attention as a substitute for the love craved by others. Consider the
stressors of her seeing her two friends go through the break-up of their
marriages: very few adults in the U.S. would have been so profoundly affected
except for those for whom divorce (and the resulting sense of abandonment)
represented an existential threat.

To understand Ms. Whitaker’s present psychosexual makeup and the deficits
which led to her behavior with her victims, one must appreciate the severely stark
emotional landscape of emotional deprivation, neglect and failure to nurture she
perceived that she received as a child. She grew up feeling utterly unsupported
and this feeling became the reality of her life. This, combined with her parents'
inappropriate sexual remarks, her early childhood sexual abuse at the hands of
her babysitter, her isolation as a child and as an older teen contributed to a great
deal of debilitating early childhood trauma.

Upon realizing that she'd shattered her husband's perception of their Disney-like
perfect romance, Ms. Whitaker did what she'd often done in the past in trying to
curry favor and to be supportive of her husband. In effect, she became his
caretaker in the codependent sense, that is, that she was taking better care of him
than she was of herself.

When we examine the mental health components of the offense we see an
example of the "perfect storm" of criminogenic variables: Chronic feelings of
emptiness creating a very needy person who gets rejected by her primary support
and becomes depressed. This leads to increased drinking which lowers the
inhibitions and increases the depression that, in turn, accelerated the impulsivity
related to both the AD/HD and the Borderline conditions. As bad as these
sexually impulsive crimes were, for all but a minority they would represent a
choice preferable to suicide.

Once Ms. Whitaker had crossed one boundary into inappropriate and illegal
sexual behavior she took on a fatalism typical of those with her three mental

health problems. Once she'd realized that she'd again ruined her storybook
romance, she became discouraged to the point of surrender, saying in our
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interview for this evaluation, "What was the point I'd already screwed up
everything."” This sort of thinking is common to Major Depressive Disorder,
Borderline Personality Disorder, and individuals with AD/HD. This way of
thinking made the behavior all the more needful of community intervention. As is
the case with most sexual crimes, secrecy is what made the offense possible and
when the secrecy ends, the criminal behavior ends with it.

After the criminal behavior, many experience remorse, contrition, and guilt for
what they have done. Some, like those with Narcissistic Personality Disorder pay
only lip service to these reactions that are normal for those who have the capacity
for conscience. Ms. Whitaker has that capacity as was observed in the evaluation
interview:

Q: How do you think that this has affected the boys in this matter?
A: I've thought about it a lot and I think they feel awful.

Q: How did that make you feel?

A: Regretful, guilty, empathic.

Q: How do you see yourself in light of the issues we've talked about
today?

A: I see myself as not a good person...awful...[tears] a failure.

We are all different. The same familial phenomenon of one family may cause
different results in another family. For example, for many, the notion of two
friends going through divorce would have been upsetting but not particularly
traumatic. For most of us, the idea of a Disney themed marriage would be as
unsatisfying as it was unreal. But, for the two of them, the notion of some sort of
Disney themed marriage seemed perfectly normal. For Ms. Whitaker the
experiences with her family, her high school, her marriage all exacerbated her
underlying and untreated mental health issues. The perfect storm indeed.

DSM-5 Diagnostic Impression:

Readers of diagnostic impressions in these reports may be unfamiliar
with the new DSM-5 recommendations that eliminate the familiar
multi-axial format of the DSM-1V. Instead, the DSM-5 encourages the
use of a paragraph to describe the diagnoses. The DSM-5 eliminates
the “global assessment of functioning” axis, for example, and
substitutes a more integrated description of the individual’s health
from a holistic perspective. Ms. Whitaker has no physical health
issues that affect a possible diagnosis (although she does have chronic
stomach upset from her anxiety). She has two conditions that used to
fall under Axis 1: Major Depressive Disorder (DSM-5, 296.22, with
anxious distress) and AD/HD (314.01). Axis 2 referred in the past to

A
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personality disorders but these two are more properly addressed
holistically. She suffers from Borderline Personality Disorder
(301.83). Since these have all been discussed in detail above it may be
appropriate to discuss and dismiss other concerns. She does not have
a substance abuse problem and she has been able to return to her
normal consumption of alecohol (two drinks per week). She had a
temporary problem with excess consumption but this was a symptom
of self-medicating her depression and anxiety and not a normal life
pattern. Lastly, at least some of have opined (from an amateur
perspective) that Ms. Whitaker is a "pedophile." This is simply not the
case. She has no diagnosis whatsoever related to sexual deviancy. For
the record, pedophilia refers only to those cases involving a sexual
attraction to prepubescent children. Research has conclusively
indicated that all adults who like adults have attraction to
adolescents. Attempts to pathologize this attraction are
counterproductive in that they lead us astray from responsible
decision-making.

Recommendations: This writer realizes that it is not his responsibility, but
that of the court, to make any decisions regarding the sentencing phase of the
judicial process. Knowing that sometimes alternative sentencing, rather than
incarceration, is a possibility or even the better choice, it is in the event of such a
possibility being that choice in sentencing that the following recommendations
are made. In this case, the idea of incarceration makes sense only from the
perspective of those in whom the need to punish is strong. This is generally only
true when, failing to understand the criminogenic variables that erode the
decision-making capacity of an offender, especially a sex offender, a moral
diagnosis is made: thus, a bad person needs to be thoroughly punished. Ms.
Whitaker's risk to the community is as low as she could possibly score using the
actuarial tables described below. At the same time her need for treatment is as
high as it is overdue. Prisons in nearly all 50 states offer very low levels of
treatment and that assessment is a kind one as they are usually abysmal. In
Nevada, where our taxes are low, our level of mental health services (especially
for the prison population) are quite poor. Ms. Whitaker will simply not get
helpful treatment in any prison. Because of this, the following suggestions are
offered regarding individual treatment only as group treatment would be largely
unhelpful for all of her problems: a) cognitive restructuring (to address cognitive
distortions used to rationalize criminal behavior to oneself), b) a cognitive-
behavioral approach to solving her current depression, ¢) an emotive based
approach to address hear early childhood trauma and to equip her to cope with
her need for approval (as a Borderline client) in an adaptive manner and to
eventually reduce this need to normal levels, d) both a medical and a cognitive-
behavioral approach to treating her AD /HD which is a lifelong condition. Only
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this latter condition is not curable, but it is treatable and is considered normal in
the modern sense of neurodiversity. There are many benefits from AD/HD along
with the more modern downside of having AD/HD in the last few thousand years
of our species' development.

Ms. Whitaker's early childhood trauma, in combination with her isolation, her
AD/HD, and her Borderline Personality Disorder traits, set her up for failure as
an adult. While this explanation does not excuse her behavior, it is helpful in
explaining how we might be able to help her and how she might be able to direct
her own search for help. She has the emotional and intellectual capacity to be
responsive to treatment. This comprehensive intervention has great potential for
her to gain the necessary insight, courage and healing to prevent her committing
future sexual offenses. Upon completion of such a program, her risk of
recidivism would be significantly reduced from its already low level.

To paraphrase from Jared Diamond’s 2005 work, Collapse, How Societies Choose
to Fail or Succeed,

“Any ‘explanation’ of why...can be misconstrued as
‘excusing’ it. However, regardless of whether we arrive at an
oversimplified one-factor explanation or an excessively
complex 73-factor explanation...doesn’t alter the personal
responsibility of the perpetrators...for their actions. This is a
misunderstanding that arises regularly in discussions of the
origins of evil; people recoil at any explanation, because they
confuse explanations with excuses. But it is Important that
we understand...origins...--not so that we can exonerate...but
so that we can use that knowledge to decrease the risk of
such things happening again....”

Risk of Dangerousness to the Community: No psychological tests can

determine risk or paraphilia. As quoted from the 1997 Association for the
Treatment of Sexual Abusers Ethical Guidelines,

“There is no known set of personality
characteristics that can differentiate the sexual abuser
from the non-abuser.”

“Psychological profiles cannot be used to prove
or disprove an individual’s propensity to act in a
sexually deviant manner.”

50
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Thus, two actuarial instruments were used, the Static-g9R and the Rapid Risk
Assessment for Sexual Offense Recidivism, or RRASOR. These are two of the
most widely used instruments of their kind and perhaps the most widely used.
The first considers only the unchanging factors that could influence outcome; the
second instrument is derived from the Static 99, but has been identified as having
high independent value in prediction of recidivism. Neither of these instrument
predicts what a given individual will do, rather his score is compared to the scores
of others who have scored similarly and a percentage of risk is translated into a
word score (e.g., low, medium, high, etc.). The RRASOR rating for Ms. Whitaker
indicates she has a 14.2% likelihood of reoffending in the next five years. At this
time Ms. Whitaker is not considered to be at high risk to reoffend based upon the
currently accepted standards of assessment. Her risk factors include the fact that
her victims were not relatives and that they were males. These risk factors are
mitigated by her age.

Static-99R Score Summary

Risk Factor Yes=1, No=0 Scores

Age at Release? (Score range is -3to1)
18-34.9=1
35-39.9=0
40-59.9= -1
1 60+ =-3
2 Ever lived with lover for at least two years?
3 Index non-sexual violence, any convictions?
4 Prior non-sexual violence, any convictions?
5 Prior sex offenses? (score range is 0-3)
6 Prior sentencing dates (excluding index)?
7 Convictions for non-contact sex offenses?
8 Any unrelated victims?
9 Any stranger victims?
10 Any male victims?

O O0O0O0O0O0 .,

TOTAL SCORE = 1

RISK CATEGORY = Low

)
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Some wonder why more sex offenders are not rated as “high risk to reoffend.”
Our collective emotional reactions to the nature of the crime (including anger,
disgust, and fear) and individual evaluator opinions (i.e., “clinical assessments”)
have no scientific, that is, replicable basis for determining the rate of recidivism.
A number like "14.2%” and ratings like “Low” have been made possible by the
development and analysis of numerous studies of recidivism in which the
recidivism rate was shown to be highest during the first five years following
conviction. Recidivism continues after the first five years of course, but only at
about half the rate of the first five years. Recidivism following 15 years post
release is considered statistically negligible. Despite all TV drama to the
contrary, Karl Harris, the most prolific writer on the subject states, “there is only
a small subgroup of sex offenders (2%-8%) who are at substantial risk for sexual
recidivism over the long term.” The same source adds,

“Given the low accuracy of clinical assessments,
prudent evaluators will be exceedingly cautious about
diluting actuarial predictions with irrelevant information.
Many of the ‘standard’ clinical risk factors, such as denial or
a history of child sexual abuse, have not been found to
predict sexual offense recidivism.”

Identification of Risk Population(s): When considering her behavior with
her victims, her history, and her future that includes her never teaching again, it
is believed by this writer that no special part of the population is at risk.

Amenability to Treatment: Ms. Whitaker states that she is open to the idea of
getting help for his problems and her behavior over the better part of the last year

confirms this.

Treatment Prognosis: A study conducted by the Justice Department of 9,691
men who were released in 1994 found 43 percent were arrested for any type of
crime within three years compared with 68 percent for all other former inmates.
The national study (also available on the Center for Sex Offender Management

website) also found that criminals who are not sex offenders were rearrested for a

sex crime at a rate of 1.3 percent. N ationally, sex offenders were arrested for
another sex crime after their release at a rate of 5.3 percent.

S
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In northern Nevada, the rate of sexual recidivism of all offenders in sex offender
treatment is about two per cent. The risk of reoffending of those in treatment
while under supervision has been extremely low for the last five years while in at
least some treatment programs. Those who fail normally fail with a “status
offense” like testing “dirty” for drugs or alcohol long before any sexual
criminality.

Respectfully submitted,
C/“"?
2

Steven Ing, M.A., M.F.T,

'Hanson, R.K. (1997-2004) The Development of a Brief Actuarial Risk Scale for
Sexual Offense Recidivism
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STEVEN

Steven P. Ing, M.A., M.F.T.
Curriculum Vitae

Education:
M.A., 1990, University of Nevada, Reno, Counseling & Educational Psychology

B.A. 1976, University of Nevada, Reno, Philosophy & French

Licensure:
Marriage & Family Therapist, #554, State of Nevada

Professional Experiences: 1990-present, Private Practice:

The private practice consists of treating individuals, couples, families and groups
with a variety of problems ranging from mental health issues to normal human
development concerns. Mr. Ing began his professional career by working in
hospitals and Transition (halfway) House with substance abuse clients in the
1980s while still a grad student. He continued working with the substance abuse
population in the years following his becoming an MFT intern. He transitioned to
mostly working with forensic clients upon receiving his licensure as an MFT. To
this day some 30 percent to 40 percent of his clientele have substance abuse
issues that require attention in any holistic treatment program.

Mr. Ing’s practice is spent working exclusively with families (victims and
perpetrators, adults and children) struggling with sexual abuse and misconduct,
criminal and otherwise. Since 1999 our sex offender treatment program has
offered counseling to both Nevada and California patients including self-referred
clients, parolees and probationers. The adult sex offender program now serves
clients from the northern Nevada and northern California areas with offices in
Carson City and Reno. Since 2007 the U.S. Probation Office in northern Nevada
refers to Mr. Ing exclusively all sex offenders supervised in northern Nevada.
Since 2010 the U.S. Probation Office in northern California also refers sex
offenders on supervised release to Mr. Ing. Since 2012, clients awaiting
adjudication and sentencing for sex crimes in the federal system in northern
Nevada have been referred to our office. In 2015 Mr. Ing entered into contract
with the State of Nevada Division of Child & Family Services to conduct and
submit Psychosexual Evaluations. His sex offender treatment program offers a
cognitive/behavioral approach with individual, family, and group modalities
using a text authored by Mr. Ing. Since 1999, Mr. Ing has been one of the few
providers of pre-sentence psychosexual evaluations for the Nevada State
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Department of Parole & Probation. In addition Mr. Ing provides psychosexual
evaluations for clients referred by their attorney.

Mr. Ing has served as consultant and trainer for the Nevada State Parole Board
on assessment and treatment of sex offenders. He has provided training to the
Nevada Division of Parole and Probation on how counselors and law enforcement
can better manage sex offender cases by regular staffing and other form of
interfacing. He was the featured speaker at Nevada’s First Annual Sex Offender
Summit held in October 2005—the state’s first statewide interagency addressing
sexual criminality--on the topic of the typical profile of a sex offender in the area.
At the 2006 Association of Paroling Authorities International Training
Conference he presented on the topic of Community Management of Sex
Offenders. He has also provided training to the staff of the Nevada State Sex
Offender Registry on establishing and maintaining an abuse-free workplace. Mr.
Ing presented a continuing education class on "Managing Sexuality Intelligently
in the Therapy Session" in 2016 to Nevada State MFTs that focused on
overcoming counselor resistance to assessing clients' sexual needs and how to
find the appropriate language to talk to comfortably engage clients in sexual
discussions. Beginning in 2017 Mr. Ing began writing a column on human
sexuality that has been published by the Reno Gazette/Journal, Huffington Post,
and USA Today.

Mr. Ing has qualified as an expert witness on sex offender evaluation and
treatment in both Nevada and California and in federal court.

Continuing Education:

2018--Profile of a Pedophile: Identifying Child Sex Predators
2018--Couples with Sexual Health Concerns
2018--Extending (Ethical) Boundaries

2017--Suicidal Thoughts (Parts 1 and 2)

2017--Treating Problems with Pornography
2017--Motivational Interviewing

2017--Developmental Approaches in Treating Addiction
2017--Treating Borderline Personality Disorder

2016--Motivational Interviewing
2016--Bipolar: An Updated Slant on the Disorder
2016--Ethics in Behavioral Health

2015--Law & Ethics
2015--The Couples Conference 2015
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2014—Personality Disorders & the DSM-5

2014—Completing the Mental Status Exam

2014—Profile of a Pedophile: Identifying Child Sex Predators
2014—When Children Sexually Offend Against Children
2014—Current Trends in Counselor Education

2014—Ethics & Professionalism

2014—Reality Therapy

2014—Mind-Body Connection: Practices & Technigues

2013—Adult AD/HD: Help Your Clients Thrive

2013—DSM-5 Classification, Criteria and Use

2013—How War Impacted Troops & Their Families
2013—Avoiding Ethical & Legal Pitfalls in Mental Health Practice
2013—Bipolar Disorder: Update

2012—Therapeutic Techniques for Prevention of PTSD from Abuse
2012—Social Problem Solving Techniques in Cog. Beh. Therapy
2012—Emotional Manipulation: Manipulators & Their Victims
2012—Ethics

2011—Building a Foundation for Ethical Practice

2011—Memory Seminar for Health Professionals
2011—Asperger’s Disorder vs. Nonverbal Learning Disorders
2011—Psychological & Neurological Effects of Anxiety Disorders
2011—Bipolar: An Updated Slant on the Disorder

2010—Pedophilia & Sexual Offending Against Children: Theory,
Assessment, and Intervention

2010—Ethics and Endings

2010—The Ever-Changing Brain

2010—Personality Disorders in Social Work & Health Care

2009—Deepening Psychotherapy with Men
2009—Ethical Issues

2009—O0bsessive Compulsive Disorders
2009—Personality Disorders

2008—DSM-IV

2008—Adults with Attention Deficit/Hyperactivity Disorder
2008—Borderline Personality Disorder and PTSD
2008—Clinical Supervision Skills in Behavioral Health
2008—Personality Disorders in Social Work and Health Care
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2007-—Cognitive-Behavioral Therapy: Helping People Get Better
2007—Psychopharmacology & Psychotherapy: Ethical Considerations
2007—Sex on the Brain with Dr. Daniel Amen, M.D.

2007—Treating Compulsive Sexual Behaviors

2006—Conducting Effective Mental Status & Risk Assessments
2006—AD/HD for 2006: The Forward Edge
2006—Suicide

2005—Counseling Victims of Sexual Trauma

2005—Family Therapy: Savannah Family Institute Model
2005—Engaging the Uncooperative & Confrontational Child
2005—Counseling HIV

2004—Borderline Personality Disorder

2004—Relationship Therapy: Theory & Practice of the Imago Model
2004—Suicide Prevention

2004—Counseling Victims of Sexual Trauma

2003—Sex Offenders: Evaluation & Treatment
2003—HIV/AIDS Update
2003—Understanding, Assessing and Treating Sexual Offenders

2002—DSM-IV TR Seminar

2002—Behavior, Typology, and Motivation of the Adult Rapist
2002—Inter-American Conference on Sexual Abuse
2002—Assisting & Managing the Statutory Rape Victim/Witness
2002—ERASOR Risk Assessment of Adolescents Workshop
2002—Current Trends in Child Sexual Abuse

2002—The Sexually Violent Offender

2001—DSM-IV TR Seminar

2001—Clinical Dilemmas

2001—Confidentiality

2001—Logo Therapy

2001—Sex Crimes-Sex Offenders, current issues in assessment

2000—Understanding Depression: Diagnosis, Treatment and
Prevention .

2000—Deviant Sexual Behavior: Assessment & Treatment
2000—Teaching & Managing Students with Problem Behavior
2000—Therapeutic Morality: Philosophy, Ethics, and Practice
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1999—“Identification, Profiling and Supervision of the Sex Offender”
1999—Wisconsin Sex Offender Treatment Program Training
1999—The Wonder of Boys (training on early male development)

1998—DSM-IV Workshop
1998—American Red Cross HIV Prevention Specialist Training

1997—DSM-IV Workshop
1997—Patient or Pretender (training on psychosomatic illness)

1996—The Evolution of Desire (gender behavior)
1996—Sex, Love & Violence (treatment of sexual abuse)

1995—Women in Context (multicultural training on women’s issues)
1995—Mental Status Exam Training

1994—National Judicial College, domestic violence training

Professional Associations:
American Counseling Association—professional member
International Assoc. of Marriage & Family Counselors—professional

member
Association for Specialists in Group Work—professional member

Publications:

2009—“Get Busy Living,” Giant Publishing, (sex offender treatment
manual)

2015--"We're All Like This," Giant Publishing, (subtitled "Learning to

talk about our human sexual needs"), used as a text in Human
Sexuality classes at the university level.

Videography:

2015--Tell Me About Your Sex Crime (a video production currently
used for adolescent educational programs in public schools)
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2009—Tell Me about Your Sex Crime (Interviews with sex offenders
available on www.youtube.com; enter “SOTVpresents” at the
youtube.com site)
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IN THE FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURTLC |©

OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF ELKQ, ... -

THE HONORABLE NANCY PORTER
-000-
STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff, Case No:

CR-FP-17-3893
Vs,
TENNILLE WHITAKER,

Defendant.

e e N e e N N e N N

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS
Arraignment
April 30, 2018

ELKO, NEVADA

Transcribed By: RANDI LEE WALKER, CCR #137
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APPEARANCES:

For the State:
ELKO COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY'S OFFICE

By: CHAD B. THOMPSON, Chief Criminal Deputy
ELKO, NV. 89801

For the Defendant:

LAW OFFICE OF BYRON BERGERON
By: BYRON BERGERON, Esq.
432 COURT STREET
RENO, NV. 89501

Parole and Probation:

MS. MACIAS
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ELKO, NEVADA, APRIL 30, 2018 4:27 P.M.

-000-

THE COURT: This is Case CR-FP-17-3893, the
State of Nevada versus Tennille Rae Whitaker.

The defendant is present in court, represented
by Mr. Bergeron.

Mr. Thompson is here, on behalf of the State.

A criminal Information was filed in this matter
on November 16, 2017. This is the time for an
arraignment on those charges.

Are the parties ready to proceed?

MR. THOMPSON: The State is, Your Honor.

MR. BERGERON: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Ms. Whitaker, please face the Clerk
and raise your right hand.

(The defendant was sworn 1in.)

THE COURT: Ms. Whitaker, you need to speak up.
That box with the red light is recording you. You make
sure you get your voice on there.

The record will reflect that the Court Clerk is
handing defense counsel a certified copy of the
criminal Information.

Ms. Whitaker, about half way down that first
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page it says Tennille Rae Whitaker. Is that your full
name? And is that spelled correctly?

THE DEFT: Yes, it is.

THE COURT: All further proceedings shall be
had under the name of Tennille Rae Whitaker.

Mr. Bergeron, do you waive a formal reading of
the Information?

MR. BERGERON: We do, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Ms. Whitaker, do you read and speak
English?

THE DEFT: Yes.

THE COURT: How old are you today?

THE DEFT: 41.

THE COURT: How much education have you
completed?

THE DEFT: (Unintelligible.)

THE COURT: Are you in good physical health
today?

THE DEFT: Yes, I am.

THE COURT: Are you in good mental health
today?

THE DEFT: (Unintelligible.)

THE COURT: Are you taking any medication or

under the influence of any substances?

U3
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THE DEFT: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Has your attorney advised you that
if you are not a citizen of the United States, a
conviction in this case could affect your ability to
remain in or re-enter this country?

THE DEFT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You are charged with four counts,
Counts I, II, III and IV. They are all the same
charge: Sexual Conduct Between School Employee or
Volunteer and a Pupil, Category-C felony.

Mr. Thompson, will you please explain the
elements of the crimes, the maximum potential
penalties, and whether they are probationable.

MR. THOMPSON: The State would have to show
that on or about or between the 1st day of September of
2015, and the 6th day of June, 2017, within the County
of Elko, State of Nevada, that the defendant, a person
older than 21 years of age, while employed at or
volunteering at a public or private school, did engage
in sexual conduct with a pupil who was 16 years of age
or older, and had not received a high school diploma, a
general education development certificate, or an
equivalent document, and that the student was attending

the public or private school which the defendant was
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employed or volunteered, or that the student had
contact with the defendant in the course of the
defendant performing her duties as an employee or
volunteer, a Category-C felony, punishable by up to
five years in the Nevada State Prison, with a minimum
period of one year.

She may further be punished by a fine of up to
$10,000. She would be eligible for probation if she's
found, pursuant to an evaluation, not to be a high risk
to re-offend.

THE COURT: Thank you.

Ms. Whitaker, do you understand what you've
been charged with, including the elements of the crime?

THE DEFT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Do you understand the potential
penalties for these crimes?

THE DEFT: I do.

THE COURT: Have you discussed this entire
matter of the plea agreement and your plea with your
attorney before coming to court?

THE DEFT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Are you satisfied with your
attorney and confident in his ability to represent you?

THE DEFT: Yes, Your Honor.

1S
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THE COURT: How many times have you talked with
him about this case?

THE DEFT: Several. I'm not sure how many.

THE COURT: Can you give me an estimate?

THE DEFT: As many as forty. (Muffled and
unintelligible on the amount given.)

THE COURT: Have you had an opportunity, to
your satisfaction, to discuss with your attorney the
possible defenses that may be available to you on the
charges if you were to go to trial?

THE DEFT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: In light of those discussions and
the information that's been given to you, do you feel
this negotiated plea is the best thing for you to do?

THE DEFT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Do you understand that sentencing
is entirely within the discretion of the Court? Do you
understand that no matter what the negotiations were,
the Court will determine what type of sentence you
receive and whether you will receive probation?

THE DEFT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Do you understand that any sentence

imposed by this Court may be consecutive or concurrent

74

to any other sentence?
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THE DEFT: Yes.

THE COURT: Do you understand that you will
have to undergo a psychosexual evaluation?

THE DEFT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Do you understand that to be
eligible for probation that evaluator will have to find
that your are not at a high risk to re-offend?

THE DEFT: Yes.

THE COURT: Do you understand that you will
have to register as a sex offender?

THE DEFT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Do you understand that you will be
subject to lifetime supervision as a result of the
conviction of these charges?

THE DEFT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Do you understand that you may be
ordered to pay restitution, if that's appropriate?

An eight-page memorandum of plea agreement was
filed on April 30, 2018. A certificate of counsel is
attached to that agreement, signed by Mr. Bergeron,
counsel for the defendant. On page 6 is the signature
line for Tennille Rae Whitaker, with the signature
above that line. Is that your signature, Ms. Whitaker?

THE DEFT: Yes, it is.
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THE COURT: The agreement on page 6 is signed
by Ms. Whitaker, and Mr. Thompson indicates it was
signed in the year 2017. I'm assuming that was
supposed to be 2018; is that correct, counsel?

MR. THOMPSON: That is correct.

MR. BERGERON: It 1is, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. I'm going to correct that,
then.

Ms. Whitaker, did you sign that document
earlier today, April 30th, 20187

THE DEFT: Yes.

THE COURT: Before you signed it, did you have
an opportunity to read it?

THE DEFT: Yes.

THE COURT: Did you consult with your attorney
before you signed the document? Did your attorney
allow you to ask questions about the document?

THE DEFT: Yes.

THE COURT: Did you sign the memorandum of plea
agreement freely and voluntarily?

THE DEFT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Did anybody threaten you with the
use of force or violence against your person to get you

to sign the agreement, or to get you to plead no
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contest?

THE DEFT: No.

THE COURT: Were there any promises of
leniency, other than those contained in the memorandum
of plea agreement, that were made to you to get you to
sign the document, or to get you to plead no contest?

THE DEFT: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Is the entire agreement that you
have reached with the State of Nevada contained within
that memorandum of plea agreement?

THE DEFT: Yes.

THE COURT: I would ask Mr. Bergeron to explain
on the record the essential terms and conditions in the
agreement. You need to listen carefully, because I'm
going to come back to you and ask you if that's also
your understanding of the agreement. Mr. Bergeron.

MR. BERGERON: Your Honor, in exchange for my
client's no contest plea, the State will be not
pursuing the other charges of sexual conduct between a
school employee or volunteer. She will be pleading no
contest to four counts of a Category-C felony, a
violation of 201 -- NRS 201.540. 1In exchange, the

State will not ask for a sentence to exceed 4-to-12

17

years. The defense is free to argue for probation.
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THE COURT: The State will not pursue any
charges arising out of these?

MR. BERGERON: Any additional charges, as well.

THE COURT: Based on facts --

MR. BERGERON: Correct.

THE COURT: Mr. Thompson, is that your
understanding of the plea agreement?

MR. THOMPSON: It is.

THE COURT: Ms. Whitaker, is that your
understanding of the agreement?

THE DEFT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: I need to advise you of some of the
rights you have under the Constitutions of the United
States and the State of Nevada.

You have the right against self-incrimination;
meaning, nobody can make you be a witness against
yourself. Do you understand that right?

THE DEFT: Yes.

THE COURT: You have the right to a speedy and
public trial. If you wanted to go to trial within
60 days, we would have to try to do that. And that
would be a public trial. Do you understand that right?

THE DEFT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You have the right to the

Yy,
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assistance of an attorney, either appointed or
retained. Did you retain Mr. Bergeron, or did the
Court appoint him for you?

THE DEFT: (Unintelligible.)

THE COURT: So do you understand, then, your
right to the assistance of an attorney?

THE DEFT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You have the right to require that
the State prove each element of the charges against you
beyond a reasonable doubt. If the case went to trial,
the State would have to prove, beyond a reasonable
doubt, that you did these things. You wouldn't have to
prove you didn't do them. Do you understand that
right?

THE DEFT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You have the right to confront and
cross-examine the witnesses against you. If the case
went to trial, the State's witnesses would come into
court, and they'd be placed under oath, and your
attorney would have the opportunity to question them,
Do you understand that right?

THE DEFT: Yes.

THE COURT: You have the right to subpoena

witnesses on your behalf. Do you understand that

Yy
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right?

THE DEFT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You have the right to testify in
your own defense. That would be your decision to make.
If you chose not to testify, no one could hold that
against you. Do you understand that right?

THE DEFT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You have the right to appeal the
conviction. Do you understand that right?

THE DEFT: Yes.

THE COURT: Have you talked with your attorney
about your Constitutional Rights?

THE DEFT: Yes.

THE COURT: Is there anything about any of
these rights you do not understand, or you would like
to ask me?

THE DEFT: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Knowing you have those rights, do

you wish to voluntarily waive them -- that means give
them up -- and ask me to accept your plea to the
charges?

THE DEFT: Yes, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Do you need any more time to talk

with your attorney before you enter your plea?

(2
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THE DEFT: No.

THE COURT: How do you plead to Counts I
through IV, all charges of Sexual Conduct Between
School Employee or Volunteer and a Pupil? Guilty? Not
guilty? Or no contest?

THE DEFT: No contest.

THE COURT: Let the record reflect that the
defendant has entered a plea of no contest to Counts I
through IV. Are you entering your no-contest plea
freely and voluntarily?

THE DEFT: Yes.

THE COURT: Do you understand that the effect
of a no-contest plea is the same as a guilty plea, for
all criminal purposes?

THE DEFT: Yes.

THE COURT: Located in the Court file is what's
called an Offer of Proof. That is the evidence that
the attorneys believe would be produced at trial. Have
you had an opportunity to read that?

THE DEFT: Yes.

THE COURT: Mr. Bergeron, do you agree that the
State could prove its case beyond a reasonable doubt?

MR. BERGERON: Your Honor, I would stipulate,

for the purposes of this negotiation, the State could

$3
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prove the case beyond a reasonable doubt. I don't
necessarily believe it's appropriate to be in agreement
with that on the record. I would say these
negotiations -- (Unintelligible.)

THE COURT: And you've advised Ms. Whitaker of
your opinion?

MR. BERGERON: I have.

THE COURT: Is that your understanding, as
well, Ms. Whitaker?

THE DEFT: Yes.

THE COURT: The Court finds that there is a
factual basis for the defendant's plea.

Is there anything further that either of the
attorneys would like me to canvass the defendant on?

MR. THOMPSON: The State would not.

MR. BERGERON: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Ms. Whitaker, do you have any
questions about this process that's taken place so far
that you would like to ask me?

THE DEFT: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Do you still request that I accept
your plea?

THE DEFT: (Unintelligible.)

THE COURT: The Court finds that the defendant

SY
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has entered her plea freely and voluntarily, with full
understanding of her Constitutional Rights, the nature
of the charges, and the consequences of the plea.

The Court accepts your no-contest plea based
upon the memorandum of plea agreement that you signed,

a certificate of counsel attached to that agreement,

the offer of proof, and your statements in court today.

A pre-sentence investigation shall be conducted
and a report submitted to the Court on or before
June 29th.

Will sentencing work on July 23rd for you, Mr.
Bergeron?

MR. BERGERON: Your Honor, that's the one day

that won't work. July 30th? And any Monday in August.

THE COURT: Let's see what I've got.

Mr. Thompson, are we going to need something
other than a law-and-motion day?

MR. THOMPSON: I expect there will be --

THE COURT: What we're going to do, then, Mr.
Bergeron, is Court staff will contact you and the
District Attorney's Office to schedule sentencing. I
won't be hearing this on a Monday, because I expect

we -- (unintelligible) -- will have testimony and will

SS

need more time.
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Is there anything further,

MR. BERGERON: No, Your Ho

THE COURT: Ms. Whitaker,
touch with your attorney.

We're adjourned.

Iy
i
/117
Iy
Iy
e
Iy
/1177
/117
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counsel?
nor. Thank you.

make sure you stay in

St
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STATE OF NEVADA )

)

COUNTY OF WASHOE )

I, RANDI LEE WALKER, Certified Shorthand
Reporter of the Second Judicial District Court of the
State of Nevada, in and for the County of Washoe, do
hereby certify:

That I transcribed from a visual/audio disk
the above proceedings into typewriting, as herein
appears;

That the foregoing transcript is a true and
correct transcription, to the best of my ability to
transcribe from the visual/audio disk.

DATED: At Reno, Nevada, this 2nd day of

December, 2018.

/s/ Randi Lee Walker
RANDI LEE WALKER, CCR No. 137
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IN THE FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF ELKO, STATE OF NEVADA

RECORD OF COURT PROCEEDINGS

Present - Honorable NANCY PORTER, District Judge,

and Officers of the Court.
STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff, Date: 4/30/18
VS. Case No.: CR-FP-17-0003893
Dept: 1
TENNILLE RAE WHITAKER,
Defendant.

State of Nevada represented by Mark Mills, Esq.
Defendant present, not in custody, and represented by
Byron Bergeron, Esq.

Division of Parole and Probation represented by Marni Pool.
Court Clerk, Faye Fleury, present.

ARRAIGNMENT — NO CONTEST — PLEA AGREEMENT

The Court noted the presence of the parties.

The matter was before the Court for an arraignment on the charges alleged in a Criminal
Information filed on November 16, 2017. All parties indicated they were ready to proceed.

The Court noted that a Memorandum of Plea Agreement was filed.

A certified copy of the Criminal Information was presented to the Defendant and the formal
reading was waived by the defense.

The name of the Defendant was correctly stated.

The Defendant was sworn.

The Court inquired if the Defendant had been advised by Counsel regarding non citizenship.

Defendant advised he had been advised by Counsel.

The Court read the charging portion of the Criminal Information.

The State cited the elements of the crimes and the potential penalties involved. S ?



The Defendant understood the charges, was satisfied with the legal services rendered to date,
understood that sentencing was wholly within the discretion of the Court and was ready to proceed.

The Court noted that a 8-page Memorandum of Plea Agreement with an attached Certificate of
Counsel was filed on April 30, 2018 The Court canvassed the Defendant concerning execution of the
document.

Defense counsel placed the terms of the Plea Agreement on the record. Both parties agreed to
waive attachment of the Criminal Information. All parties concurred.

The Court reviewed the Defendant’s Constitutional Rights and the Defendant waived the same.

The Court asked the Defendant to enter pleas to COUNT 1: SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN
SCHOOL EMPLOYEE OR VOLUNTEER AND A PUPIL, A CATEGORY C FELONY AS
DEFINED BY NRS 201.540. (NOC 51067) COUNT 2: SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN SCHOOL
EMPLOYEE OR VOLUNTEER AND A PUPIL, A CATEGORY C FELONY AS DEFINED BY NRS
201.540. (NOC 51067) COUNT 3: SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN SCHOOL EMPLOYEE OR
VOLUNTEER AND A PUPIL, A CATEGORY C FELONY AS DEFINED BY NRS 201.540. (NOC
51067) COUNT 4: SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN SCHOOL EMPLOYEE OR VOLUNTEER
AND A PUPIL, A CATEGORY C FELONY AS DEFINED BY NRS 201.540. (NOC 51067) The
Defendant entered pleas of no contest following the terms of the Plea Agreement.

The Court advised it had reviewed the Offer of Proof in this matter.

The Court advised a no contest plea has the same effect as guilty plea for all criminal purposes.

Defense agreed the State could prove its case beyond a reasonable doubt.

The Defendant understood and agreed.

The Court found there was a factual basis for the Defendant’s pleas and canvassed the
Defendant regarding the pleas.

The Court stated its findings and accepted the Defendant’s no contest pleas based upon the
Memorandum of Plea Agreement, Certificate of Counsel and statements made in open Court.

The Court ORDERED a Presentence Investigation Report due on or before June 29, 2018.
Sentencing date would be set at a later date.

Court adjourned.
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BYRON BERGERON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 7598

432 Court Street

Reno, Nevada 89501
Telephone: 775.229.3736
Facsimile:  775.786.5573

Attorney for Defendant e f§

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF THE STATE (
NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF ELKO

STATE OF NEVADA, Case No. CR-FP-17-3893

Plaintiff,
Vs.

TENILLE RAE WHITAKER,
Defendant.

Additional Documents To be Considered at Time of Sentencing Under Seal

Dated this 27™ day of April, 2018.

Documents to be Considered at Time of Sentencing - 1
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April 25, 2018

To Whom It May Concern:

Tennille Whitaker is my sister in law. She is a dear friend and someone whom | love. | will never
understand the choices that she made, which got her into this predicament, but | do know this: from the
beginning Tennille has taken full responsibility for her actions, she has worked daily to improve herself,
seeking professional and spiritual guidance, she is fully aware that her actions affected many lives and
she is remorseful, without a doubt. Tennille ' s life has been shattered, she has been completely publicly
exposed, for all to condemn. Her life, as it was, will never be the same. We live in a broken world, so no
matter how wonderful of a person Tennille was and is, she will forever be judged.

Unfortunately, her husband and children are ultimately along for this hard ride too. This is where my
plea comes. Justice is what is due, in all cases, and removing Tennille from her family will cause her pain
and suffering but the ones that will most certainly be affected the greatest, are her children. These
children’s lives have already been thrown for a loop. Yet, the one who caused this, is the same person
that they need now, more than anyone and more than ever before. Tennille is a good and loving
mother. Hank and Molly desperately need her.

A life forever scorned, forever blemished, that is lasting; that is what Tennille is, will and justifiably
speaking, should face. But please, please spare her children. Keep her at home, with her family, so that
they can learn to heal and love and move on the best that they can. Tennille will daily feel the sting of
her choice but her children shouldn't have to. Please consider them.

Sincerely,



4/23/2018

To Whom it May Concern:

T have been married to for 19 years. We have built a life together
with hard work and love. and I have been through a lot together during
our marriage from the loss of loved ones to the birth of our two children, Hank
and Molly. We have been a loving, caring, happy family through the years. We've
made many memories together and we are teaching our kids the importance of
hard work, respect, and love.

The past ten months have been the hardest I've ever had to go through in my
42 years of life. T have had sleepless nights when I have felt so hurt and upset by
what has happened that I thought I might not be strong enough to get up and face
another day. I've cried more than I ever have in my life these past months. I
have felt humiliated and heartbroken to put it simply. We've had to see our kids
hurting and worried about things that they should not have to worry or stress
about.

I have also witnessed | ind regret for what has happened
and how remorseful and repem‘am‘ she is. Tennille is trying and doing so much to
make up to our family. I know she has done the worst thing a wife can do to her
husband in my opinion. I am not being ndive or hiding from that at all, but I also
know how much that T love e and how much our kids love their mother.

We are working hard on our marriage and doing everything we can to keep it
together because of what happened. O arriage is important to us not only to
each other, but for our kids as well. Tennille is a great mother to our kids and
always has been. That's never been an issue. She has caring motherly lo
compassion that means so much to me and our kids. This last school year T
has been homeschooling our kids and has done a great job with them.

I am writing this letter to ask for probation and a chance for our family to stay
together like a family is meant to do. I am asking this not only for my sake, but
our kids as well. The hurt I described earlier for myself would be nothing
compared to what it would do to our children. If they didn't have their mom
around to do the things only a mom can do for them. I worry about how Tennille
being gone away from them will affect their lives in the future. I feel the
healthiest option for our family is to raise our kids with their mom and dad being

together.
b1




In my opinion, our kids have been hurt worse than anyone in this whole situation
and they would be getting the biggest punishment out of this if their mom is taken
away from them. Our kids don't deserve that.

e is a very caring and loving person who made a big mistake in life that
has already taken so much from her and our family. She has lost her reputation,
respect, and her career. Please don't let us lose our family. We still have a chance
to raise up some awesome kids together with respect, family values, and work ethic
by keeping our family together. So please consider this and give us this chance.

Thank you for your time in reading this.
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Ken or Catherine Tipton
P.O.Box 764
Winnemucca, NV 89446
April 23, 2018

To Whom it May Concern:

Our names are Ken and Catherine Tipton; we are the aunt and uncle and godparents of Tennille Whitaker. We
own a Western retail store in Winnemucca, Nevada and Ken serves as the Humboldt County Commissioner.
We have known Tennille her entire life as our family is close, and she has always been known to family and
friends to be a kind and charitable individual. She has done an amazing job of raising two children whom
themselves are loving and considerate.

She has been a highly dedicated and compassionate teacher for many years. Growing up she excelled in
school and participated in many extracurricular activities such as high school rodeo, in which she represented
the state of Nevada as the high school state rodeo queen and FFA winning awards in excellence. After
attending college in Twin Falls, Idaho, she returned home to serve as an educator and give back to her
hometown community by improving education and promoting bright futures for her students.

We would ask that you please consider to allow Tennille to remain at home to finish raising her wonderful
children in a most positive way and also to save her marriage. We all know the importance of having both
parents at home to provide a stable environment for the children as family is everything. Tennille has never
been in any trouble in her past.

if you have any questions, or would like to discuss this further, please feel free to contact us. Our home
phone number is (775) 623-2961. Thank you for your consideration.

/

. /
Sincerely,
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Dr. and Mrs. Daniel C. Jones

HC 64 Box 70

Mountain View Ranch

Deeth, NV 89823

Phone: 775.340.3286, 775.340.3285
E-Mail: jonesranch@mac.com

April 29, 2018

Honorable Nancy Porter

Nevada Fourth Judicial District Court, Dept. |
571 Idaho Street

Elko, NV 89801

Your Honor,

We are writing to you on behalf of our friend and neighbor, Tennille Whitaker,
who will appear in your court on April 30.

We have known Tennille for nearly 13 years; in fact, she was the first neighbor to
greet our four children and us upon our arrival to Starr Valley in 2005. She has since
become a dear friend. She has honored us with her presence at our children’s
graduations, wedding celebrations and other events. As we are often away from home,
Tennille is the neighbor we go to first for help with the care and feeding of our animals
and for watching over our home. She has proven reliable and trustworthy in this, and it
is a relief to us to know Tennille is looking out for our interests when we are traveling.

Although we are not privy to the in-depth details of her case, it is our
understanding that Tennille recognizes and accepts responsibility for her wrongdoings.
While we generally have avoided querying Tennille about the specifics of the charges
against her, we have had opportunities to discuss the various repercussions she and
her family have felt due to her erroneous behavior, including, but not limited to, the need
to remove her children from public school. Throughout, we have continued to love and
encourage Tennille, and to support her in friendship and prayer. This has been easy to
do, as we have known Tennille to be steadfast, dependable and honest.

Over the years, we have shared with Tennille several of our personal passions,
including financial responsibility, excellence in home education, and faith. Tennille and
her husband faithfully attended and completed a Financial Peace University course we
led in our home, learning valuable principles, which have helped them in their ongoing
pursuit of financial independence. More recently, we have had lengthy discussions
about homeschooling. Tennille has invested many hours of research in going forth with
this new endeavor, and she has attentively listened to us share some of the wisdom we
have gained from our own experiences in home education. Tennille has begun to A IQ



explore her faith in greater depth. We have been heartened to see Tennille and her
family regularly attending church services and seeking counseling.

Again, it is apparent to us that Tennille understands and regrets her
serious and unfortunate lapses in judgment. Since the day of her arrest, we have
watched as Tennille has demonstrated, without fail, a conscious and determined effort
to own up to her errors and to move forward in a positive and dignified manner, doing all
she can to preserve her family and their futures.

As you evaluate Tennille’s case, we humbly ask you to consider the person and
character of this dear friend who we have known and respected these many years.

Respectfully yours,
{
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Dan and Carolee Jones



4/23/18
To Whom it May Concern:

I am writing this letter on behalf of Tennille Whitaker. [ have known Tennille for
over 25 years and have witnessed first-hand the changes that have occurred in her
life over the past several years. Though I was completely unaware of her
involvement in the crime she committed, I wish I had caught on to the warning signs
of her loneliness. Perhaps I could have been a better friend and shown her a better
way. The crime that she has committed is in no way excusable and I believe that she
knows that. Lonely, hurting people do the unthinkable and unfortunately, many
people were hurt because of this incident.

Tennille and her family are going to counseling on a weekly basis and I have seen a
dramatic change in her for the better. I truly believe that she is remorseful for what
she has done and the regret and shame that she carries will be with her till death.
Living with that, along with the fact that she must face a society who does not have
compassion because they do not see her transformation, will be a lifelong sentence
that she will carry no matter where she is.

I would humbly ask that you consider pardoning Tennille, not only for the reasons
mentioned above, but also for the sake of her family. Typically in these types of
situations, the family is broken for obvious reasons and there is very rarely a chance
for the family to heal. This is not so in this family. Through Godly council, much
prayer and effort, they have maintained their family unit, despite the situation. A
sentence to prison will only destroy what they have worked so hard to rebuild in the
pastyear. Itruly believe that Tennille is well on her way on the right path and that
prison time will only hinder her progress.

If Tennille had not shown the positive changes that I have seen this past year, nor
shown the regret for what she has done, I would not be writing this letter. [ believe
that people who are not remorseful should pay for their crimes, but [ also believe
that mercy triumphs over judgment for those who have sorrow over their sins.

Sincerely,

Riata Brown



April 24, 2018

To Whom It May Concern:
This letter is in regards to Tennille Whittaker.

My name is Becky Romans. | have lived in Spring Creek, NV for 23 years. | am
a wife and mother of 2 grown children, both boys. My husband, Dan Romans, is the
pastor of Lighthouse Christian Fellowship of Elko.

I met Tennille Whittaker last summer in 2017 when she contacted me asking to
meet and talk.

Some of my first impressions of her were: she was pleasant, soft-spoken, sad,
embarrassed, confused, seeking God, friendly, open to advice, and remorseful. She
was repentant and accepted responsibility for her own actions. Also she was very
sorrowful for the pain and embarrassment she had caused her husband, children and
family.

My Husband and | began meeting with the Whittakers as a couple once a week.
We are continuing to meet with them regularly.

I have seen positive changes in them as a couple and individually. Their
relationship has strengthened and continues to heal and be restored.

Tennille is very involved with her children, their activities and home schooling
them this past year. The kids seem well adjusted and happy. They are a close family,
regularly attending church. Tennille also has support from extended family and friends.

| believe she should be punished, but | do not believe jail time would accomplish
beneficial results. For the sake of her children and her husband and for her sake please
consider probation rather than incarceration.

Thank you for your consideration.
Sincerely,

@W Comone

Becky Romans
890 Spring Valley Pkwy
Spring Creek, NV 89815

£



s i thouse Christian Fellowship

E SeaRRE

2225 Industrial Way

Elko, Nevada 89801 Telephone (775) 778-9502
Daniel Romans Senior Pastor aea@Icfelko.org

Marsh Miers Associate Pastor icfelko@frontiernet.net
April 24, 2018

To Whom It May Concern:

I am writing this recommendation regarding the sentencing of Tennille Whittiker.

| recommend probation for Tennille. My wife and | have been meeting with Tennille
every week with few exceptions since July of 2017. From our many meetings | am
convinced that she is truly remorseful for her actions. | have seen many people in my
years of ministry that have been sorry because of consequences. | have seen many that
pretended to be remorseful to try to alleviate their own suffering. But Tennille’s

conscience is pained by what pain her actions have caused others.

| have been involved in ministry as an ordained Pastor since 1992 and been involved
with jail/prison ministry since the late 1980’s. Before moving to Elko County, | was the
head chaplain for Twin Falls County Jail ministry and was one of three that comprised

the chaplaincy team for the Twin Falls County Sherriff's Office.

| see no benefit to anyone for her to be incarcerated. Certainly not her children, her
husband and even herself. | see no benefit to society either. | believe Tennille is already
being rehabilitated. She has suffered and continues to suffer. My desire is to see

healing for all concerned.

Thank you for your consideration.

70
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To Whom it May Concern:

Tennille is our daughter in law and we love her like we would our own daughter. Tennille is a kind and
beautiful person. She is a caring person who puts others before herself and wants very much to always
help those in need. The people that cross her path are always drawn to her warm personality and her
love of life. She’s always been the type of person who people turn to when they have problems because
she’s a great listener and tries to always help out in any way she can. She truly cares for others welfare.

Tennille has never been in trouble for anything until this last year. She has been an upstanding citizen
her whole life, always choosing to do the right thing. There were times during this period where she had
withdrawn from family and friends and was deeply stressed and depressed in her job as a teacher. She
stated that she had reached out to her administration for help on more than one occasion, requesting
assistance for the oversized classroom she was dealing with. She had several students who were a
behavior problem in the class of 32 students. She was struggling, and it seemed as if nobody
would/could help her.

In this last year there have been many consequences. Tennille has had to face many family and friends
and has taken responsibility for her actions. She knows all of our lives will never be the same. Sheis
deeply remorseful for what has happened and knows that her consequences will be lifelong. She has
lost her career, her reputation, and the respect of many in her community.

Tennille has spent this last year home schooling Hank and Molly, getting extensive counseling, attending
bible studies and spiritual counseling, and attending church on a weekly basis.

If Tennille would have to go away it would be devastating to all of us that are so close to her. We have
seen great progress in her through her therapy and being able to refocus her life on making positive
changes. Hopefully, she will be given the opportunity to remain in therapy and continuing with her
healing so she can be with her family so they can continue their healing together.

Sincerely,

Will and Sherry Whitaker

1



April 26, 2018

Jerry L Jones

Robyn Johnson Jones
10190 Haven St

Las Vegas, NV 89183

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN:

We have known Tennille Whitaker for more than 20 years. We feel that
Tennille has always been a good person and an asset to her community.

Her family comes from the first pioneers in Elko County and has always
demonstrated good judgement. She has always been a part
of Elko's community and has contributed to many students lives as a teacher.

We do not feel that she should be severely punished for a one time
lapse in judgement.

Tennille has never been in legal trouble in her life. We do not think
incarceration would be justified in this case.

Sincerely,

Jerry and Robyn Jones



April 28, 2018

To Whom It May Concern,

I have knownTennilleforovertwentyyears. lam herbrotherinlaw and we are a very close family. The
choices that Tennille made do notreflect the person that! have known and loved for many years.

Since Tennillehas started her therapy, she has become refocused on herfamily, as a wife, mother, and a
daughter. Throughout this extremely hard time for our family, Tennille has shown remorse. She has
worked diligently in her therapy and through church to be come a better person, all the way around.

Iam asking today, that you consider that she does not go to prison, so that she can continue hertherapy
and actually correct, whatever has made her make these poor decisions. Those decisions were not of
hercharacter or the person she trulyis. Please consider my request, as prison will not correct the state
of mind that made her make these choices. Beingathome among herloved ones and continued
therapy, that has already started changing her for the better, thatis what she needs.

Sincerely,

Trent Whitaker

13



4/19/2018
To whom it may concern:

I'am writing this letter in reference to my daughter Tennille Whitaker. I know my
opinion is from a more biased perspective, but I feel I can give her the closest character
description you need in order to know her better.

Tennille grew up knowing a hard work ethic being a ranch kid. We had her working on
the ranch full time when she wasn’t attending school from the age of 12 helping do
various jobs. She is a kind person with a strong love for animals and people. She was
such a successful child all through high school earning first in the nation for Ag Sales in
FFA at the National Convention her junior year, as well as representing the state of
Nevada as the High School Rodeo Queen during those years. She has always worked
hard to achieve her goals in whatever she set her mind to. She has the warm and inviting
personality that has always drawn people to her.

She is an only child, but coming from a middle class family, she wasn’t spoiled because
frankly we didn’t have the money to give her everything she wanted. We didn’t have the
money to send her to college, so she spent the summer working construction to pay for
her first year, rent and everything. She continued going to school to pursue her degree in
elementary education attending night classes at GBC and working full time as a bank
teller at Nevada State Bank for 9 years. She was well liked in the town of Wells and
enjoyed being around people and helping them. She soon became a loan officer and was
always so excited to help people and just make their day better with a smile and kind
words.

She couldn’t wait to become a teacher so she could make a difference in the world. She
said she wanted a rewarding job that would make her feel like she was the light in some
child’s world who didn’t have such a great home life. In Wells, there are plenty of
children who fit that bill. She always spent extra time listening to her students, because
she felt that they maybe needed some extra attention that maybe they weren’t receiving
from home. Her students meant a lot to her and she was very passionate about her job.
The past year and a half I seen Tennille stressed, depressed, and full of anxiety. She had a
huge class with several problem students, and she wasn’t getting the help she needed
from her uppers. She felt like she was drowning, failing, but didn’t know what to do.
She was the typical full time working mother who had way too much on her plate and fell
into making some bad decisions. Decisions that aren’t part of her character, I assure you.
She has no criminal record, and has always strived to be a good citizen in this country.

I knew something wasn’t right with Tennille for this time period, she had withdrawn and
pulled away from family and friends and was trying to be strong by handling everything
on her own and not asking for help. I wish so badly that [ would have been more
responsive to her depression and anxiety. She has an awesome support system of family
and friends by her side and they all continue to be here for her today.

She has been completely run through the mill with the media, not just in Elko, but ‘7 L{



nationwide. Humiliation for her and all of us. This is a consequence she’ll have to deal
with for the rest of her life. She has been so remorseful about her crime that there were
times when she didn’t think she could make it through. She has taken the responsibility
and initiative to address her problem and seek counseling since her arrest. She has been
very serious about admitting she was wrong and fixing it fast. She is not a threat to
society, she’d never hurt anyone. She actually the opposite, always offering a helping
hand and dropping her own needs to ensure others are taken care of. Since this happened
10 months ago, our family has suffered immensely. We’ve seen her attend church
regularly, seek spritual guidance from her pastor and his wife weekly, and attend therapy
sessions in Reno. She is homeschooling her children and using this time to completely
refocus on her children and husband. He has stood by her because he knows she isn’t a
bad person and he loves her dearly. This is something because most would not have
stayed by her side. This says a lot about her and her relationships. She has several good
friends who visit her often and have not left her side during this awful time. That also
says that those who know her, know the type of person she is.

I will never understand what happened to cause all of this, but I do know that this is not
who my daughter is. She has talked about a future of helping others and maybe
becoming something such as a christian life coach. She wants to be able to help people
who are facing dark times and redirect them. The truth is, everyone makes mistakes in
their life, some bigger than others. I am not excusing what Tennille did, I am only
humbly asking for you to have leniency on our one and only daughter whose mistake will
haunt her the rest of her life. She has once said to me that nobody can punish her as
much as she punishes herself daily. She has so much guilt, blame, and shame, plus the
pain shes caused so many others, that I know she will face lifetime consequences for her
actions.

Thank you for your time and consideration in reading this letter.

Sincerely,

Rita Horn

RAY



4/25/2018

To whom it May Concern:

I am writing this letter for Tennille whitaker,
my daughter. Tennille is a wonderful Toving
lady. She 1is our only child and we realize she
has made an error in Tife and we understand she
must face consequences for her actions. This
crime is not the girl I have known since she
was seconds old. I know what she did wasn’t
right, but I also know 1ife can be difficult at
times. She has owned up to this mistake and
has done nothing but try to improve herself
since her arrest. She knows that she’s hurt
many people 1in this and blames herself for what
has happened.

I, however, do not feel like she 1is the only
party to blame 1in this. I feel that teenage
young men are animals and that they had
knowledge of what they were doing was wrong as
well. This is a small town and everyone has
been very supportive of our daughter and our
family. Wwe’ve received constant phone calls
and support from neighbors, friends, and
family. our family has been in Nevada for
generations and we have built a reputation of
being good, honest people. I am asking that
you consider the fact that this is her first
crime and give her the opportunity to continue
her therapy and counseling so that she can be a
contribution to her community once again. I
humbly ask that you consider probation in her
case.

Thank you,

Bill Horn

Rl



DATE: MAY 7, 2018
OFFENDER _TENNILLE WHITAKER CC#: CR-FP-17-3893

INVESTIGATING OFFICER MARNI POOL

VICTIM (BUSINESS/INDIVIDUAL) =\ 22< ’3.,%137 ,

SOCIAL SECURITY # TAXID #
Tobox 1840 2k NV, 39 oz
MAILING ADDRESS | CITY AST’ATE/ZIP CODE
U 7 ?Bh'o{/\ \()\}610 oM E}{ \/)A 3\ E v U@ {/Q(?\ Q‘L@ ) / W/’ iy, %Z%
PHYSICAL ADDRESS ’ CITY ' V) STATE/ZIP CODE

HOME TELEPHONE # ( / 51)7 52~ OO WORK TELEPHONE # (115 ) 752-8L:0(»

A. INSURANCE CLAIM SUBMITTED? YES NO /
COMPANY
ADDRESS
CITY/STATE/ZIP CODE
TELEPHONE # ( )
CLAIM # POLICY #
DEDUCTIBLE § CLAIM AMOUNT $ SETTLEMENT $
TOTAL OUT-OF POCKET LOSS $ (Not T 0 Include Lost Wages)
B.  Have you applied for or received County compensation? YES NO A/ AMOUNT
Have you applied for or received State compensation? YES _____NO AZ AMOUNT

C. Do you intend to address the Court in person? YES '\/@W

3

IMPORTANT: NRS 176A.630 and NRS 209.392, allow a victim the ability to “opt in” for future offender
notification(s) by the Division; specifically, instances when an offender is being returned to Court by the Division for
modification of their underlying sentence and when imprisoned, and notification if an offender has been approved for a
Residential Confinement (House Arrest) program by the Division. The Nevada Department of Corrections (NDOC) is
responsible for additional notification if an offender is in their custody. You can sign up for NDOC notification on
their web-site info@doc.nv.gov.

!\&\J}(})‘lembv\/

Yes, I would like to “opt in” for future P&P offender notifications:

**If you move, please provide vour new address by calling the Division at (775) 684-2614%*
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Victim Impact Statement

PLEASE DESCRIBE HOW YOU WERE IMPACTED BY THIS CRIME. Note extent of i injuries,
property damage or loss, physical disabilities, funeral expenses or psychological/adjustment problems.
Attach documentation (i.e. estimates, insurance claims, medical bills, etc.). You may use the back of

this page or attach additional pages for your comments.
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To Whom It May Concern,

Mrs. T.Whitaker, was a beloved family-friend, and neighbor to all of our 5 children. Her impact
on my son began at a very early age. Mrs. Whitaker was his 4th and 6th grade teacher.
Eventually, we pulled him from her class in 6th grade, because she allowed his teacher’s pet
status to disrupt the entire class. Pulling him from her class was emotional for him, but
extremely emotional for her, as the Principal, at that time, and another party witnessed. She had
made him feel special from an impressionable age. We had no idea to what extent this
unhealthy relationship would become, or to what level it would escalate.

The effects of these incidents on these boys is, and will manifest itself in many different ways.
She set out to ruin proms, stalk them at activities, taunt girlfriends, threaten, and ruin
relationships for these boys. | feel awful for many boys, and girls that experienced her extreme
level of manipulation. It has effected their families, friends, and relationships, and they will

forever be effected.

There were also other detrimental crimes carried out by Mrs. T. Whitaker; such as, contributing
to minors, to the extent that, they were dangerously inebriated. Minors, as young as 14,
circulated a pornography video featuring Mrs. T. Whitaker. Seeing a video of that nature, of their
teacher, neighbor, friend’s parent, is deeply disturbing. it has effected the moral fiber of the kids
in our community, and was a source of shame and guilt. Those can be life changing issues, and
itis hard to say what might have been, had he not been a victim of her manipulative, and
destructive behavior.

Please see the attached letter, as to how our community, and families feel about these crimes
against our children, which were carried out for years, and our opposition to her probation. We
do not feel probation would be a good option.

9



05.7.2018

To District Attorney Ingram and Assistant. Deputy DA,

We are writing this letter, 1 week following, the arraignment, after settling our thoughts.
Immediately, the dismay set in, about the possibility of a probation versus a prison sentence, if
Tennille Whitaker is deemed, as not a threat to our community.

It had been our hope, that after the petition from our community, the DA'’s office had understood,
that our community does not feel confident, that T.Whitaker will discontinue pursuing minors. We
do not feel we can trust her, nor her spouse, for that matter.

In addition, since her arrest last Spring, we notified the DA’s office, of her attempts to contact a
victim, her driving around the Wells football field during practice times when victims were
practicing, being in the park across from the high school at 3:00 when school lets out, reaching
out to kids on social media, and a confrontation between her spouse, and a victim, after he had
been drinking. HARDLY remorseful, safe, unthreatening behavior.

The families expressed their agreement for the plea to reduce 12 felonies to 4, and have the
appropriate prison sentence. Even though, we were not pursuing the contributing alcohol to
minors, and a pornographic video, as further charges. It is disturbing to have all of these
charges, against T. Whitaker, minimized and marginalized, a reduction from 12 to 4 felonies,
and still there is talk of a possible probation! It seems impossible to fathom, and is outrageous
~ for our community to accept. :

It seems ironic, that on 04/18/18 an Elko Daily Free Press headline stated, “Sending Child Sex
Offenders to Prison”, and the content of the following article was so strong against these crimes
against our youth. Then the policy towards T.Whitaker is so weak in comparison. It seemed like
a change of heart from the DA'’s office, as numerous comments on ling, in response to the Elko
Daily Free Press’ reporting of the arraignment were posted, and also on Facebook. The public
feels as though, the DA's office feels crimes against boys are not taken as seriously as against
girls. Even taking into account, that the other perpetrators from 04/18, the victims were under
16, and they were rape charges. A mixed message was sent out for sure.

What else can be done to impress on the court that the .community does not feel safe with her

around our youth?
. - , ) ~ \
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To District Attorney Ingram and Assistant. Deputy DA,

We are writing this letter, 1 week following, the arraignment, after settling our thoughts.
Immediately, the dismay set in, about the possibility of a probation versus a prison sentence if
Tennille Whitaker is deemed, as not a threat to our community.

It had been our hope, that after the petition from our community, the DA’s office had understood,
that our community does not feel confident, that T.Whitaker will discontinue pursuing minors. We
do not feel we can trust her, nor her spouse, for that matter.

In addition, since her arrest last Spring, we notified the DA’s office, of her attempts to contact a
victim, her driving around the Wells football field during practice times when victims were
practicing, being in the park across from the high school at 3:00 when school lets out, reaching
out to kids on social media, and a confrontation between her spouse, and a victim, after he had
been drinking. HARDLY remorseful, safe, unthreatening behavior.

The families expressed their agreement for the plea to reduce 12 felonies to 4, and have the
appropriate prison sentence. Even though, we were not pursuing the contributing alcohol to
minors, and a pornographic video, as further charges. It is disturbing to have all of these
charges, against T. Whitaker, minimized and marginalized, a reduction from 12 to 4 felonies,
and still there is talk of a possible probation! It seems impossible to fathom, and is outrageous
for our community to accept.

It seems ironic, that on 04/18/18 an Elko Daily Free Press headline stated, “Sending Child Sex
Offenders to Prison”, and the content of the following article was so strong against these crimes
against our youth. Then the policy towards T.Whitaker is so weak in comparison. It seemed like
a change of heart from the DA’s office, as numerous comments on line, in response to the Elko
Daily Free Press’ reporting of the arraignment were posted, and also on Facebook. The public
feels as though, the DA’s office feels crimes against boys are not taken as seriously as against
girls. Even taking into account, that the other perpetrators from 04/18, the victims were under
16, and they were rape charges. A mixed message was sent out for sure.

What else can be done to impress on the court that the community does not feel safe with her
around our youth?
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VICULAVI IIVIFACUL DIALEIVIEN?

DATE: MAY 7. 2018
OFFENDER _TENNILLE WHITAKER CC#:  CR-FP-17-3893

INVESTIGATING OFFICER MARNI POOL

VICTIM (BUSINESS/INDIVIDUAL) NC DS
SOCIAL SECURITY # » TAXID #
MAILING ADDRESS CITY STATE/ZIP CODE
PHYSICAL ADDRESS CITY STATE/ZIP CODE
HOME TELEPHONE # (_ ) WORK TELEPHONE # (_ )
A. INSURANCE CLAIM SUBMITTED? YES NO__ v

COMPANY

ADDRESS

CITY/STATE/ZIP CODE

TELEPHONE # ( )

CLAIM # POLICY # -

DEDUCTIBLE $ __CLAIM AMOUNT $ SETTLEMENT $
TOTAL OUT-OF POCKET LOSS § /J (Not To Include Lost Wages)
B. Have you applied for or received County compensation? YES NO X AMOUNT
Have you applied for or received State compensation? YES _____ NO x AMOUNT___

C. Do youintend to address the Court in pefson? YES_ ~ NO_ X

IMPORTANT: NRS 176A.630 and NRS 209.392, allow a victim the ability to “opt in” for future offender
notification(s) by the Division; specifically, instances when an offender is being returned to Court by the Division for
modification of their underlying sentence and when imprisoned, and notification if an offender has been approved for a
Residential Confinement (House Arrest) program by the Division. The Nevada Department of Corrections (NDOC) is
responsible for additional notification if an offender is in their custody. You can sign up for NDOC notification on
their web-site info@doc.nv.gov.

Yes, [ would like to “opt in” for future P&P offender notifications: %.

**If vou move, please provide vour new address by calling the Division at (775) 684-2614**




Page 2
Victim Impact Statement

PLEASE DESCRIBE HOW YOU WERE IMPACTED BY THIS CRIME. Note extent of injuries,
property damage or loss, physical disabilities, funeral expenses or psychological/adjustment problems.
Attach documentation (i.e. estimates, insurance claims, medical bills, etc.). You may use the back of
this page or attach additional pages for your comments.

VAQ 5304
Signature Print Name %




How | was affected by this crime was all psychologically. After everything started with
Tennille, | was a nervous wreck. Knowing that it is was a very wrong thing that
happened, | did not want to tell anyone about any of it. Being manipulated into thinking
that it was okay, made it even worse for me after. Not knowing what would or what
could happen to me was a very scary feeling for myself. My parents were always asking
me if everything was okay and what was wrong but | could never tell them what really
was going on. It was a constant worry of what would really happen if | told someone.
They told me after | finally confessed to them, that | was never the same after what
happened and they could tell something was up. Tennille was always texting me making
sure that | would never tell anybody or anyone what happened. When | talked with the
detectives and told them everything | was really nervous about having to go to court and
be put on the stand, having to tell the court exactly what happened. It really did ruin
mostly all of my senior year, because | always had that vision in the back of my mind
about being on the stand in front of Tennille and the court getting questions drilled at
me. It still does affect me to this day knowing that most of the town of Wells knows what
happened and it brings me a lot of shame and despair knowing that people are
shameful of me for what | did.

e 2253147
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HONORABLE NANCY POTER
FGRTH JUDICIAL DISTICT COUTT
Elko County Courthouse

Elko, Nevada 89801

RE: STATE OF NEVADA VS. TENNILLE RAE WHITAKER.
Case No. CR-FP-17-3893

DEAR JUDGE NANCY PORTER:

We are victims in the above named case currently set for sentencing before you on the 4t day of
October, 2018, at 1:30 P.M. We are writing to you regarding the impact the crime had on us. Our son £ was
involved with the crime Tennille committed with the children in Wells. Being a parent these days is hard, from
keeping your kids away from inappropriate thing on the TV, internet and social media and trying to teach your
children from right and wrong and to be respectful. A parent shouldn’t have to also worry about if their child is
safe at school with teachers or the administration. Although we have found out the hard way that this is not the
case with our son. Tennille took advantage of our son and many others and made the think that having sexual
encounters with her and sneaking around was ok. She made him lie to us, his parents, and think that sleeping
with a teacher, a married woman was ok. What's even harder about all this, is Tennille was not only a teacher
in our community but our friend and yet she is such a manipulative person we had no idea of what she was
doing to our child and the other children in Wells.

When we heard about all of this we couldn’t believe it and thought, no way could this be true. Then
when we heard our son could be one of the victims, we really had a hard time believing this. NO Way could our
friend, a teacher in Wells and someone that came from a wonder family be a part of this crime and especially
doing this to our son. So we talked to our son and he denied it and said “it wasn’t true” so we didn’t think this
could be true. Well after about a week of it eating at our son and his conscience getting to him, & came to us
and said he lied and told us what had happened. Our hearts felt heavy, sad, hurt and angry, hearing what Tennille
had done to our son. Hearing that my friend that | trusted had sexual encounters with my son!! How could
someone do that??

We, Wes and Cherie T: , {_’s parents are asking you to not have remorse for Tennille, to please
punish her with the max possible. We truly believe she has no care in the world but for herself and is a threat
to children. Tennille has not only torn apart and disgraced her own family, she has destroyed many families in
the community that she grew up in. She didn’t care that she was having sexual encounters with children as a
teacher, as a friend to the child’s parents or as a community member. All she cared about was her sexual game
over the phone, texting, snap chatting, videos and whatever other way she could communicate with the children
and manipulate them into doing inappropriate things and thinking that it was ok. If she can do this to children
in a small community and to her friend’s child, and not think she is doing anything wrong, then she has no morals
and needs to be punished.

Sincerely, ,
Croee T ?7

WJ@ C. e
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Case No. CR-FP-17-3893
Dept. No. 1 |

IN THE FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF ELKO, STATE OF NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,

V.

TENILLE RAE WHITAKER,

Defendant.

CORRESPONDENCE
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Demar Dahl
Starr Valley
Deeth, NV 89823

May 7, 2018

Honorable Nancy Porter
Elko County Courthouse
571 idaho Street

Elko, Nevada 89801

Dear Judge Porter,

I’'m writing due to my concern for one of my neighbors. The Horn family has been my nearest
neighbor here in Starr Valley for nearly forty years and | have great respect for them. It's their
daughter Tennille Whitaker that is my concern now.

My daughter Sarah is the same age as Tennille and they were together in school until they
graduated from the twelfth grade and my daughter Leslie Anne is just two years older than
Tennille. Those girls spent a lot of time together growing up and that gave me the opportunity
to get to know Tennille well. We all loved Tennille and stiil do. Knowing her like we do, what
happened to her that caused her to be in your court, is hard to believe. The only answer | can
find, is that most of us, myself included, have done things that, in varying degrees, have caused
us to ask ourselves what have | done and how did | let myself get here.

Tennille has two darling kids, a great husband that is standing by her and parents that love her
dearly. She has suffered greatly from the guilt she carries for what she has done and for the
suffering she has caused those that are the closest to her.

I have always had respect for you as a judge and | know that whatever you determine in this
case, it will be that justice is served. | respectively suggest that justice can be served without
Tennille having to spend time in prison. She is repentant and | would say there is a zero chance
of any behavior in the future that will be anything close to what put her in the position she is
now in. Without going to prison, she will pay for the rest of her life for what she has done and |
ask for mercy on her behalf that she and her family can be together to tackle the challenge that

lies before them.
gﬁ"mm-,

L

Respectfuily yours,

Demar Dahl
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CERTIFICATE OF HAND DELIVERY

Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I certify that I am an employee of the Fourth Judicial District Court,
Department 1, and that on this \ ’l day of May, 2018, I personally hand delivered a true file-
stamped copy of the foregoing CORRESPONDENCE addressed to:

T'yler J. Ingram, Esq.
Elko County District Attorney
540 Court Street, 2™ Floor

Elko, NV 89801
[Box in Clerk’s Office]

fiainbe

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I hereby certify that | am an employee of the Fourth Judicial District Court,
Department 1, and that on this { vl day of May, 2018, I deposited for mailing in the U.S. mail at Elko,
Nevada, postage prepaid, a file stamped copy of the foregoing CORRESPONDENCE addressed to:

Byron Bergeron, Esq.

4372 Court Street
Reno, NV 89501 // Qﬁ
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Brian Sandoval

NORTHERN COMMAND
Governor
P 2o S
Director Office: (775) 753-1305
Natalie A Wood Fax: (775) 753-1306
Chief
Division of Parole and Probation
September 25, 2018

Honorable Nany Porter
Fourth Judicial District Court
Department I

Elko County, Nevada

RE: Tennille Rae Whitaker
CC# CR-FP-17-3893

Dear Judge Porter:
Please see attached victim impact statement. The Division received the statement on 09/25/2018

Respectfully submitted,

Sara Macias, P&P Specialist 111
DPS/Nevada Parole and Probation
Northern Command, Rural, Elko

cc: Elko County District Attorney’s Office
Byron Bergeron, Esq.,

Vka

Commiitted to Nevada’s Public Safety
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Impact Statement
In the case against Tennille Whitaker

September 24, 2018

Your Honor,

I am starting this letter by stating that I have some trepidations about even writing this letter about
n1y opinions. I worry about the safety of mysell and my family and am concerned that this letter
may spark an unwarranted retaliation against us. But I do feel that we must have the courage of our
convictions, especially when it is scary or uncomfortable, so I will continue. I would like (o take this
~opportunity to explain how the actions of Tennille Whitaker have afTected so many people in this
small community of Wells-especially her victims. T am a mother of children that attend/attended
Wells Combined. My son is/was best friends with 3 of the 4 boys. I belicve that these boys were
manipulated, seduced, bribed and even threatened by Mrs. Whitaker. She seemed so pathological
in the pursuit of her victims, that she even befiiended their {amilies and friends and girlfriends. She
made a pornographic video that was shared with the boys and then of course was shared with many
others beyond just the Wells community. I feel that these boys had to endure her constant barrage
of demands. The boy’s frendships with each other became strained; and so did their friendships
with other boys and girls within the high school.

She was in a position of power when she victimized these boys. Some of them were her
teacher’s aid. If she gave them a bad grade as her aid, they would have been benched from their
sports. I [eel she probably started grooming many of her victims when they were elementary
students. My son and his best [riend were in her class in 6 grade. When the two boys got in
trouble for playing a prank in her class, the parents of the other boy pulled their son out of her
class. She told me that she was angry that she lost that student. She took it out on my son, and tried
to hand down extra punishment on my son, but not on his best friend (whom she had been
favoring since 4” grade). She would offer (o take young teenage boys to the store, or drive them o
the baseball game. Even though she was supposed to be at the school {per her teaching contract)
she would often be seen at the baseball games before school was even out (her students would
have “specials” like library, music, PE or art and would be dismissed from the special class). She
befriended one of her victims 6* grade sister. Without the permission or even knowledge of her
parents. Tennille Whitaker would take her to lunch and question her about her brother's
whercabouts. She texted my younger child and tried to get her to convince her big brother go to
her house. She told my son that if he ever wanted to come over and get help on his work, she
would be willing to help him, all as a ploy. I believe, to victimize him.

Tennille Whitaker was so pathological that she even had her 4° grade class makc posters and
signs for the volleyball team, she even bought the team candy (and I can only assume) in hopes of
getting in the good graces of the high school gitls. Even though her 2 children werc only in
elementary/jr, high, she showed up to help decorate for the prom and some of us thought it was
odd that she was acting like a jealous girlfriend and wanting to chaperone. Now, I can only surmise,
that she must have just wanted to keep an eyc on her victims. One of her victims had a date for
prom and Tennille Whitaker went so far as to tell the date’s mother why she shouldn’t let her
daughter go with the boy.

1%
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One of my son’s best friends and Tennillc Whitaker's victims, just took his own life. He was
such an amazing, kind, wonderful person. And now he will never go on 1o be married or have
children of his own. He will never be therce again for my son and their [riends, to celebrate cach
other’s successes and help them through the bad times. He is lost forever, and I believe that
Tennille Whitaker’s actions may have played a large role in that! My son told me that his [riend
was never the same after he was vicimized by her.

The worst thing is that Tennille Whitaker, in my opinion, does not ever seem (o make the rules
apply to herself. It would seem that without regard for her own husband and children, she is willing
to vicimize young high school boys just for her pleasurc. She is willing to become best friends with
her vietim’s parents and siblings. When told that she cannot attend 4-H cvents for the safety of the
community’s children, she shows up anyway with no intention on leaving {(county fair 2017)
{(cemetery clean-up 2018}, or sneaks in when the lights go down (fashion revue 2018). Pve been
told that cven a restraining order against her, didn’t stop her from going to the county fair Cowboy
Bar this ycar. She doesn’t seem to have any regard for her own children or any of the children in
our community. I believe that even after her arrest, she continued to text her victims and I know
that she was still reaching out to tecnagers on social media. She was seen driving around the
football field during homccoming a year ago. I worry that she is relentess and will not stop!

So many of us (adults and children) felt like merc pawns in her schemes. So many of us trusted
the school and her in her position. So many of these children were used and manipulated by
Tennille Whitaker. So many knew and hid the information out of fear. Others knew and got no
answers from the school administration and didn’t know where clse to turn. Thus entire
conununity has been horribly affected by Tennille Whitaker's selfish, reprehensible actions, none
more so than her victim that took his own life and his devastated family.

We have all been affected in this community by the heinous actions of Tennille Whitaker. Our
children’s childboods have been forever tainted. Please, beg of you, please sentence Tennille
Whitaker to the full amount of prison time. Please put her away, so that her 3 victims, that are Icft,
can go on with their lives; so that these boys can start to grow and become the fine young men they
should become, without the concern of seeing her at a rodeo, 4-H event or county fair or even at
the grocery store or driving around the football field. We suspect she had more victims, bur these
4 boys were the only ones courageous enough to come forward. Please, please reward the courage
of these boys and give them the chance they deserve to move on and the justice that they should be
entitled to. Please give Tennille Whitaker the toughest sentence you can, otherwise, 1 truly worry
that she will not stop!

Thank you for your time and consideration in this matter,

.
A
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To Whom It May Concern,

The last year and a half have been agonizing for the victims, and their
families, and many;&na ggrgg‘)br{nﬂ}nunity. I have written prior letters, but after
the tragic loss of C M ,1 of the 4 victims, | needed to express our

devastation over his loss.

His loss impacted our family greatly. He was one of my 3 boys best friends,
and like another big brother to my daughter. He stayed in our home, on our
ranch in the summer, and worked with us, and put up hay, and loved to ride
to move cows. He was a wonderful kid, and was always happy in our
home, and a member of our household summer time, and many nights on
the weekends. Our family’s hearts aches for him. His loss is a sorrow we
are all struggling through.

The loss of C . clearly illustrates the fragility of our youth, and
adolescence, in particular. Especially adolescent boys, minds are still
maturing, and are struggling to find their way into the adult world. While | do
not know that his being manipulated, and a victim of T.Whitaker, a teacher,
in a position of power over him, was the entire cause of our loss of C

It was likely, a contributing factor, at the least. It added stress, confusion,
guilt, and frustration to his journey into his adulthood, and trying to find his
way in the world. A very vulnerable time for these young men. It was our
greatest fear realized for the boys. ’

- Please consider C  1's permanent, and final loss from our lives, as

another casualty of these unfortunate events that began in our school
through the manipulations of these victims by T.Whitaker. Again, fortifying
our convictions, that we do not want her in our community, as she has
been.

Thank you for your time,

Kirk and Jennifer YC22S 3143

X



Pagc 1
Your Honor, Sept. 24,2018

T'am writing this letter in an effort to cxpress how Tennille Whitaker’s actions have
affected myself and members of my family, including my teenage son. She was one of my
closest friends and 1 dumbfounded to hear that she wag manipulating young boys into having sex
with her. As a local resident of Wells NV, my children have attended Wells schools for the past
10 years, All of my children had Ms, Whitaker as their 4% grade teacher. It is very disheartening
to know that myself as a parent entrusted the safety, security, and morality of my children to this
“so called” qualified educator. She took my daughter to lunch off of school property without my
consent on several occasions, M y children have been affected in numerous ways, trust for
instance. [ have always taught my children to be trusting and respectful of authoritative fi gures
such as their teachers, coaches, and administrative staff. These people work in an environment
where students being safe and secure should never be compromiscd, not for any reason at all. My
children began hearing about inappropriate activity/behavior going on between Ms. Whitaker
and other students (whom are also thejr friends). My son was €Xposed to a sexually graphic
video that quickly spread from one student to the next.....thanks to thjs selfish person we used to
call our friend. My minor children began to question all that I have taught them about being
protected at school and [ naively allowed this person to violate their trust, both on and off of
school property. If the School District is not able to assure parents that my children whom spend
30+ hours/week with their teachers are in an ethical cnvironment then what policy do we as
parents have to stand on? As g result, every day that they go to school I fee] uneasy and ask
myself whether the possibility cxists that they will be exposed to this type of behavior again, |
look at each and every teacher and question if they are who they say there, or is it all just a front
to mislead us parents into thejr manipulative ways. T hey can be married and have children that
participate in school activities such as sports, rodeo, and 4H, yet more exposure to our children. |
am grateful that my children know to come to me if they have questions or concerns about things
that happen, right or wrong.

Sexual misconduct in schools will not be tolerated, it is 100% inexcusable! School staff
that preys on our young children should be prosecuted to the highest extent. Ms. Whitaker should
not only be terminated from her job as an educator, but alse required to register as a tier 3 sex
offender, given jail time, and fined appropriately! The future of these victims has forever been
affceted; their self-esteem, confidence, Security, and trust have been violated because of this
horrific betrayal. Tlow much is your child’s innocence worth? Ms. Whitaker has humiliated these
children and stripped them of personal integrity! A predator like thig only deserves one thing and
that is to be in prison, locked up where she can no longer be a threat not Just to my children, but
any children for that matter. She is likely to repeat again, she has demonstrated that her behavior
Is obsessive, Male as wel] ag the female students have been relentlessly stalked and harassed by
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Page 2

Looking at past teachers that have seXually preyed upon innocent children, the sentencing
that they were given was far too lenient, “Reports of teachers accused of unlawful sexual
relationships with their underage students continuc to make the headlines.”(CBSNews.com 201 8,
“Notorious 'Teachers Sex Scandals”). Stacey Rambold, a {former Montana High School teacher
for instance, was charged in 2007 with the rape of a 14 year old girl. The teen later committed
suicide in 2010 while the case was still pending, as did one of Tennille Whitaker’s victims Just
this past month, a 2018 Wells High School graduate. This type of behavior is detrimental to
young students, some unfortunately unable to cope with being sexually raped. Haelie Wey of
Texas, a former math teacher, who pleaded guilty to sexual misconduct with two 17 year old
students, was scntenced 1o 10 years probation, as was Mcgan Crafton of Indiana, a part-time
assistant cheerleading coach, whom also engaged in scxual relations with a 17 year old student.
Probation & registration as a sex offender should be automatically a given sentence to any and
all sexual assault/rape cases of young children. Mandatory jail time and fines should be part of
the sentencing, no cxceptions! These teachers are not getting adequate punishment for the
physical and emotional scars that they cause, set an example of Tennille Whitaker and give her
the proper sentencing that she deserves. These kids descrve to feel liberated, safe, and not
constantly looking over their shoulder,

Thank you for your time and consideration!

Hey

Heather -

'y
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Brian Sandoval NORTHERN COMMAND

Governor
. 3920 E. Idaho Street
James Wright Elko, NV 89801
Director :

Office: (775) 753-1305

Natalie A Wood Fax: (775) 753-1306

Chief
Division of Parole and Probation
September 26, 2018
Honorable Nany Porter
Fourth Judicial District Court
Department |

Elko County, Nevada

RE: Tennille Rae Whitaker
CC# CR-FP-17-3893

Dear Judge Porter:

Please see attached victim impact statement. The Division received the statement on 09/26/2018

Respectfully submitted,
o ;

S e

Sara Macias, P&P Specialist 111
DPS/Nevada Parole and Probation
Northern Command, Rural, Elko

cc: Elko County District Attorney’s Office
Byron Bergeron, Esq.,

11
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To whom it may concern,

I'am writing concerning the upcoming sentencing of Tenille Whitaker. | would like to voice my
opinion about the matter. | have young boys the same age as the victims in this case. My boys
were not victims of a sexual crime, for which | am very grateful. They were, however, victims to
very inappropriate interactions between a teacher and student. On more than one occasion,
Mrs. Whitaker bought alcohol for my older son. He was also sent a pornographic video from her
cell phone. In my opinion, my younger son was being groomed at the time of her arrest. She
was texting and asking him to go running with her and taking him for cold drinks after track
practice. Of course, all of these incidences have been reported to the authorities. But the point
is that Mrs. Whitaker had an impact on many boys in our community, not just the ones with
whom she had sexual encounters with. She had a history of inappropriate behaviors with young
boys that has went on for some time.

It is my concern that Mrs. Whitaker may get off with just probation and | feel that would truly
be an injustice not only to the young men she had inappropriate relations with, but also to the
people in our community. No one should be able to get away with those kinds of behaviors. It
is unacceptable for any man or woman to have inappropriate relations with a minor. Mrs.
Whitaker was in a position of authority and trust and definitely abused both.

In the Elko Daily Free Press dated April 29, 2018, Elko County District Attorney Tyler Ingram
said,” A message has been sent to sexual offenders who harm children.” He also went on to say
the following, “Those sentences should send a message to the people in this wonderful
community that Elko County will not tolerate child abuse in any form.”

I'sure hope that this same message will apply to Mrs. Whitaker and that this case is not taken
lightly because she is a female offending young boys rather than a man offending young girls.
There should be no difference. The community of Wells shares the same view as Mr. Ingram.
That is, we will not tolerate child abuse in any form.

This case has been drawn out long enough and Mrs. Whitaker needs to be accountable for her
unlawful actions. It has taken a tremendous amount of courage for all of these young boys to
come forth. Please make the right choice and give Mrs. Whitaker more than probation. | fear
that with no time served, she will be a repeat offender.

Thank you for your time and consideration in this matter,

bl e 7/ /o)
4 Q L‘// _ / 7
ammy Myers Date




Your Honor,

I'am writing to you as a concerned member of the Wells community regarding the upcoming sentencing of
Tennille Whitaker. I am a mom of two boys and one of them is the same age as the victims. I have been told by
him that he has seen the pornographic video, that I believe is (or should have been) part of the evidence submitted
in the case, showing the defendant in a very sexually explicit way. This video was sent to my son via another
student, and from my understanding has circulated among the boys here in Wells as well as boys at other area
schools.

I was surprised at the last court hearing that probation was even a possibility due to the serious nature of the
crimes committed. According to the Elko Daily Free Press (April 30, 2018), she agreed to a plea deal of four
counts of sexual conduct between a school employee and a pupil so that the State would not pursue additional
charges related to the case. This plea enabled her to avoid other charges that could/would have led to a possible
longer sentence. I can’t believe that probation is even being considered an option--more charges could have been
brought forth in court. She, as a teacher, had authority over students—these boys. A couple of the boys were her
student aides. She abused her position and violated the sanctity of teacher/student and teacher/parent
relationships. This type of egregious, inappropriate behavior cannot be tolerated. No person, male or female,
should be allowed to get away with this behavior. She is an adult and knows right from wrong.

I know some people may say that she is a mom and what about her kids. She should have thought about her
husband, kids, and family before she committed these illegal, morally reprehensible actions. My questions would
be: What about the kids and the families affected by her deviant actions? Mrs. Whitaker is not the victim-she is
the culprit. I have also heard that she has “found” God and God forgives. 1 am a practicing Christian and I am
truly glad that she has found God; however, I was taught that even though you may find comfort through Him, it
does not negate that fact that she did these horrible things and that these boys’ lives have been altered forever
through her selfish actions. Many Christians believe there needs to be actual and sincere repentance and
contrition for their sins and then you can begin on your road to forgiveness. In order for the community of Wells
to find closure, we need to have faith that our legal system will work and justice will prevail. This is important
for all those affected to be able to forgive and to move on.

These four boys were victims, but they should be commended for their courage in coming forward and speaking
with police. This was not a lone incident nor was it a lapse in judgement. This was a grown woman that used her
authority to prey upon young boys. I feel that she did not worry about the consequences of her actions or the toll
it would take on the boys involved. In my opinion, a probation sentence would not be a deterrent for Mrs.
Whitaker and she will be likely to re-offend. She needs to experience the ramifications of her actions and get a
dose of reality as to what her future will be if she keeps pursuing young boys. These boys deserve justice and
need to know that our community will not tolerate this type of behavior. There is a quote by Dietrich Bonhoeffer
that I feel captures what is at stake right now in our community. It is “The true test of the morality of a society is
what it does for its children.” Please, think of the boys, their families, and the Wells community when you are
ready to pass sentencing.

Thanking you in advance for your time and assistance with this matter.

Anne Battenfeld 09/24/18
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify, pursuant to the provisions of NRCP 5(b) {hat | am an employee of the

Elko County District Attorney’s Office, and that on the U

ay of September, 2018, |

served the foregoing NOTICE OF VICTIM IMPACT STATEMENT, by delivering, mailing or by

facsimile transmission or causing to be delivered, mailed or
transmission, a copy of said document to the following:
By delivering to:

HONORABLE NANCY PORTER
FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
ELKO COUNTY COURTHOUSE
ELKO, NV 89801

PAROLE AND PROBATION
3920 E. IDAHO ST.
ELKO, NV 89801

By mailing to:

BYRON BERGERON

ATTORNEY AT LAW

432 COURT STREET
RENO, NV 89501

2

transmitted by facsimile

ERIKA WEBER
CASEWORKER

DA# F-17-01609

103
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I hereby certify, pursuant to the provisions of NRCP 5(b), that | am an employee of the
Elko County District Attorney’s Office, and that on the ﬁﬁkp\dé\y of September, 2018, |
served the foregoing NOTICE OF VICTIM IMPACT STATEMENT, by delivering, mailing or by

facsimile transmission or causing to be delivered, mailed or transmitted by facsimile

© 0o N OO O bhA owWw N

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

transmission, a copy of said document to the following:
By delivering to:

HONORABLE NANCY PORTER
FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
ELKO COUNTY COURTHOUSE
ELKO, NV 89801

PAROLE AND PROBATION
3920 E. IDAHO ST.
ELKO, NV 89801

By mailing to:

BYRON BERGERON

ATTORNEY AT LAW

432 COURT STREET
RENO, NV 89501

ERIKA WEBER
CASEWORKER

DA# F-17-01609
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September 28, 2018

The Honorable Nancy Porter

Fourth Judicial District Court, Department 1
571 Idaho Street

Elko, Nevada 89801

Dear Judge Porter,
RE: Sentencing for Tennille Whitaker

By pleading “no contest” Ms. Whitaker has spared the young men, their families, and our community,
the heartache of reliving these atrocities in court. While prudent in that respect, her plea clearly
demonstrates her continued efforts to conceal the full scope of her crimes, to silence her victims and
her determination to shield herself from the consequences of her transgressions.

Ms. Whitaker has certainly been well served by her legal counsel. However, his competence perpetuates
the harm to the victims. Restitution is now out of reach for many victims without protracted, humiliating
and expensive legal battles in the civil courts. The delay between her entry of plea and the sentencing
has preserved Ms. Whitaker’s freedom at the expense of some measure of closure for her victims.

While Ms. Whitaker’s plea acknowledged four victims, there are undoubtedly others, as the presence of
numerous parents at the arraignment attested. Those parents themselves are victims. Their
relationships with their children have been damaged by this ordeal. Some couples found themselves at
odds with one parent wanting to shield their child from public exposure and the other believing that
cooperating in the investigation was the best way to protect their son, and others. Some parents sought,
and were granted, temporary protective orders illustrating their concern that this predator would
assault their child or find additional victims.

Others victims may not fit the criteria set forth in Nevada Revised Statute 176.015(5)(d} but they are
victims nonetheless.

Ms. Whitaker’s children, husband and parents are victims in every sense of the word. While } am loathe
to add to their already horrific burden, | believe that Ms. Whitaker should be punished to the full extent
of the law, for the sake of the other victims and to protect our children.

Every student is a victim as this scandal ripples through our school.

Every parent is a victim when they question whether or not their own son may have been involved and
worry about their safety.

Every victim of similar immoral acts is victimized again as such news causes them to relive the atrocities
they personally suffered.

Every teacher is a victim because Ms. Whitaker’s crimes diminish respect for an already demanding
profession that is under attack on so many fronts. School administrators who have served in Wells are
victims as their professional judgment and diligence are scrutinized. School staff members are victims as
the community and law enforcement pose questions for which there are no answers.

/07



Many residents of Wells, Starr Valley and neighboring communities are victims because the latest rumor
or the latest development finds its way into meetings, gatherings and conversations. While the public
has a right to know, and the press has an obligation to inform, the reputation of our community has
been maligned.

Even public education, which has improved the health and welfare of the human family immeasurably,
has been damaged by Ms. Whitaker’s offenses.

The Elko County School District is a victim as precious resources were diverted from educating our
children to investigating and addressing the allegations. It could be argued that |, as a member of the
Elko County School Board, am asking the Court to remedy injustices which some consider to be school
matters. Regrettably, the ability of the Elko County School District to punish such offenses is woefully
deficient. By law, we are limited to placing an employee on leave or requesting a resignation unless and
until there is a conviction or plea. Such employment actions are wholly inadequate to address the crimes
at hand.

Perhaps most importantly, while the initial transgressions are in the past, some of these young men will
become victims yet again as Ms. Whitaker’s shameful acts affect their psychological and sexual health
and their relationships for decades to come. In this respect, it is impossible to fully assess the magnitude
of the damage Ms. Whitaker has inflicted.

Therefore, it is not possible for the Court to impose a sentence that is too harsh. | plead with the Court
to sentence Ms. Whitaker to the maximum time in prison and the maximum fine allowed provided that
such funds are reserved for the future psychological care her victims. When her immediate victims need
professional help, as some undoubtedly will, their ability to pay should not be a barrier.

Respectfully submitted,

Thad S. Ballard

Father of three sons

Citizen of Elko County

President of the Board of Trustees, Elko County School District
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
| hereby certify, pursuant to the provisions of NRCP 5(b), that | am an employee of the

Elko County District Attorney’s Office, and that on the Y day of October, 2018, | served
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following:
By delivering to:

HONORABLE NANCY PORTER
FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
ELKO COUNTY COURTHOUSE
ELKO, NV 89801

PAROLE AND PROBATION
3920 E. IDAHO ST.
ELKO, NV 89801

By mailing to:

BYRON BERGERON

ATTORNEY AT LAW

432 COURT STREET
RENO, NV 89501
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My name is Rosa [ am the oldest sister to O C was asked to write this letter on behalf
of our family, because my mother couldn’t put herself to write about something that has forever
lett our family broken and ununited.

When we were asked to write a letter of impact on how this situation affected our family. |
honestly didn’t know where to start. [ didn’t really think I could get our feelings across the
board. [ guess the only way to know really how we are doing is starting from the beginning.

We have lived in Starr Valley since I was in the fourth grade. We knew the Whitaker family
since we moved out there never did we think this could happen.

As I went through the high school Mrs. Whitaker was a substitute teacher and as kids they would
talk about how she would do inappropriate things with the senior boys and how they would drink
together and such. [ never really thought about it because I mean high school is high school you
hear all sorts of crazy things. As I graduated Mrs. Whitaker came to be a teacher at Wells
Elementary. The rumors continued but it came to kids that she had in her own classroom as
student aids. When my mother first saw, or | guess suspected that something was going on was
when she would see kids leaving her room at 4:30 p.m. or later from her room. She would tell me
that she would see these kids leaving her room but didn’t think much of it until parents started
saying that she was sending inappropriate texts, pictures etc to their boys. The evening my
mother saw O and Whitaker together she couldn’t believe that her son was another boy that
she managed to take advantage of, and I know it always takes two to play but as someone who
was supposed to protect these kids. How could she use that to her advantage to overpower these
boys. Since the day my other found out we immediately saw a complete change in O

He became more distant, rude, disrespectful. O  und I always had an open relationship [ was
his go to person for everything the moment we went to the principal to report what my mother
had seen he stopped all communication with us. He stopped texting me, stopped coming to me
home to visit. It was tough to see how much he changed it hurt. We have always been a close
family. More so tough on my mother she had the worst year working at that school. Seeing
~Whitaker daily and knowing that she-wasn’t sorry or embarrassed-about what my mother had
seen. No remorse. O© continued to give my parents and myself the silent treatment he hated us
for speaking to the administration about this, we thought it was just because he didn’t want the
whole school finding out later we go finding out that it was because his sport membership was
on the line.

His own baseball coach was on the same page as Whitaker if she went down he would make sure
these boys had no future in their current baseball season. It was so frustrating knowing that
another administration was working with this woman ruining these children’s lives. The
administration that we for so long trusted our kids to help with their high school career were
there to make sure they didn’t say anything to leave this kids to think god knows who what
thoughts to turn them against their own family and for what just so they can continue to try to get
with other children who are willing to be cool because they slept with a teacher. I'm sorry but as
an administration she should have known better especially having children of her own.
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Slowly my mother began to get sick. She stopped sleeping well at night. she began to have
anxiety attacks this became so stressful that my mother had to go visit a doctor and results came
to that my mother is pre-diabetic. she had high blood pressure as well. As for myself [ have
managed to keep my emotions undercover because I feel like I have to be strong for my family.

Going through interviews with the investigators was hard enough I was able to express myself to
them but as soon as I see my mother I feel like everything must disappear and I have to puta
strong face on for her. If I am broken she will be broken and [ can’t have my mother broken
because of Whitaker. Even taking O to the DA office to conduct more interviews was hard
we had a blowout argument before that were O was so upset with his he had wished we
weren’t his family anymore.

To thisday O. does not live with my mother, as soon as he turned 18 he packed up his
belongs and left the house. We currently don’t know where he lives or if he has a job. We maybe
see him 3 times a month. He has enrolled in college in Oregon and leaves in September. I saw
him back in July and his confessed to me in a depressed state that he wishes he had taken some
therapy because he is currently making poor life decisions. He wishes he could go back and
change everything. As his sister its sad to hear that he has sad depressing thoughts. All | want is
for my family to be back the way we once were. I could never forgive this woman for what she
put my family threw she will never know how bad she hurt not just my family but all the other
victims involved as well.

Casas Family.
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IN THE FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF ELKO, STATE OF NEVADA

RECORD OF COURT PROCEEDINGS

Present - Honorable NANCY PORTER, District Judge,
and Officers of the Court.

STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff, Date: 10/04/18
VS. Case No.: CR-FP-17-0003893
Dept: 1
TENNILLE RAE WHITAKER,
Defendant,

State of Nevada represented by Chad Thompson, Esq.
Defendant present, not in custody, and represented by
Byron Bergeron, Esq.
Division of Parole and Probation represented by Sara Macias.
Court Clerk, Faye Fleury, present.

SENTENCING HEARING

The Court noted the presence of the parties.

The Court noted that the Defendant last appeared in Court on April 30, 2018 and entered a plea
of no contest to COUNT 1: SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN SCHOOL EMPLOYEE OR
VOLUNTEER AND A PUPIL, A CATEGORY C FELONY AS DEFINED BY NRS 201.540. (NOC
51067) COUNT 2: SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN SCHOOL EMPLOYEE OR VOLUNTEER
AND A PUPIL, A CATEGORY C FELONY AS DEFINED BY NRS 201.540. (NOC 51067) COUNT
3: SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN SCHOOL EMPLOYEE OR VOLUNTEER AND A PUPIL, A
CATEGORY C FELONY AS DEFINED BY NRS 201.540. (NOC 51067) COUNT 4: SEXUAL
CONDUCT BETWEEN SCHOOL EMPLOYEE OR VOLUNTEER AND A PUPIL, A CATEGORY
C FELONY AS DEFINED BY NRS 201.540. (NOC 51067) The matter was before the Court for the

entry of judgment and the imposition of sentence. All parties indicated they were ready to proceed.
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The Defendant advised the Court that she had received the Presentence Investigation Report,
reviewed the same with counsel and understood the recommendations contained therein.

Defense counsel made corrections to the report.

Counsel had issued with the wording in the PSI report regarding the references to pupil and
student aid and those references in relation to the victims in the matter.

The Court requested Counsel to go through each reference he wanted to correct on the PSL.

The State advised the PSI was an offense synopsis and was not a legal document and lay terms
are usually used. Counsel agreed to allow Defense to refer to each reference as a pupil.

Defense requested to go through each reference and make corrections.

The Court again directed Counsel to go through each correction he wanted to make for the
record.

Defense made corrections to the references of victims as pupils to pupils/student aids.

The State advised regarding the selection scale that was marked on the PSI report.

Neither the State nor the Division made corrections to the report.

The Court inquired as to the psychosexual evaluation.

Counsel had reviewed the evaluation

The Defense advised she had reviewed the psychosexual evaluation.

Defense counsel presented a recommendation on behalf of the Defendant.

The Court advised the Defendant of her right to make a statement on her own behalf,

The Defendant did address the Court.

The State presented its position for sentencing.

The Court directed Defense to call his first witness.

Jennifer Hansen was sworn and examined on direct by the Defense. No recross by the State.
Witness excused.

William Horn was sworn and examined on direct by the Defense. No recross by the State.
Witness excused.

Danie] Romans was sworn and examined on direct by the Defense. No recross by the State.
Witness excused.

The Court directed the State to call its first witness.
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Luida Madison was sworn and examined on direct by the State. No cross by the Defense.
Witness excused.

Jennifer Hooper was sworn and examined on direct by the State. No cross by the Defense.
Witness excused.

| The Court advised the Defenses argument regarding constitutional issues could not be
addressed at this level, but may be remedied in a Federal Court.

The matter being submitted;

The Court stated its findings.

The Court ORDERED a Judgment of Conviction be entered against the Defendant finding the
Defendant guilty of COUNT 1: SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN SCHOOL EMPLOYEE OR
VOLUNTEER AND A PUPIL, A CATEGORY C FELONY AS DEFINED BY NRS 201.540. (NOC
51067) COUNT 2: SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN SCHOOL EMPLOYEE OR VOLUNTEER
AND A PUPIL, A CATEGORY C FELONY AS DEFINED BY NRS 201.540. (NOC 51067) COUNT
3: SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN SCHOOL EMPLOYEE OR VOLUNTEER AND A PUPIL, A
CATEGORY C FELONY AS DEFINED BY NRS 201.540. (NOC 51067) COUNT 4: SEXUAL
CONDUCT BETWEEN SCHOOL EMPLOYEE OR VOLUNTEER AND A PUPIL, A CATEGORY
C FELONY AS DEFINED BY NRS 201.540. (NOC 51067)

The Court FURTHER ORDERED the Defendant to pay a $25.00 administrative assessment
fee, a $150.00 genetic testing fee and submit to test to determine her genetic markers and be sentenced
to serve for Count 1 a maximum term of 60 months in the Nevada Department of Corrections with
minimum parole eligibility after 24 months with credit for 2 days previously served; be sentenced to
serve for Count 2 a maximum term of 60 months in the Nevada Department of Corrections with
minimum parole eligibility after 24 months; be sentenced to serve for Count 3 a maximum term of 60
months in the Nevada Department of Corrections with minimum parole eligibility after 24 months. be
sentenced to serve for Count 4 a maximum term of 60 months in the Nevada Department of
Corrections with minimum parole eligibility after 24 months. Counts 1, 2, 3 and 4 will be served
concurrent/consecutive with one another. The aggregate minimum sentence is 96 months and the
aggregate maximum sentence is 240 months. The Defendant shall be under lifetime supervision as a
sex offender and was given the registration requirements. I ( g’

Court adjourned.
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IN THE FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF ELKO
THE HONORABLE NANCY PORTER
-00o0-
STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff, Case No:

CR-FP-17-3893
VS.
TENNILLE WHITAKER,

Defendant.

R N S L O N O W N

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS
Plea & Sentencing
October 4, 2018

ELKO, NEVADA

Transcribed By: RANDI LEE WALKER, CCR No.

Ol

OF THE STATE OF NEVADA ="

137

[




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

APPEARANCES:

For the State:

ELKO COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY'S OFFICE
By: CHAD B. THOMPSON, Chief Criminal Deputy
ELKO, NV. 89801

For the Defendant:

LAW OFFICE OF BYRON BERGERON
By: BYRON BERGERON, Esq.
432 COURT STREET
RENO, NV. 89501

Parole and Probation:

MS. MACIAS
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ELKO, NEVADA, APRIL 30, 2018 4:27 P.M.

-000-

THE COURT: This is Case CR-FP-17-3893, the
State of Nevada versus Tennille Rae Whitaker.

The defendant 1is present in court, represented
by Mr. Bergeron.

Mr. Thompson is here, on behalf of the State.

A criminal Information was filed in this matter
on November 16, 2017. This is the time for an
arraignment on those charges.

Are the parties ready to proceed?

MR. THOMPSON: The State is, Your Honor.

MR. BERGERON: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Ms. Whitaker, please face the Clerk
and raise your right hand.

(The defendant was sworn in.)

THE COURT: Ms. Whitaker, you need to speak up.
That box with the red light is recording you. You make
sure you get your voice on there.

The record will reflect that the Court Clerk is
handing defense counsel a certified copy of the
criminal Information.

Ms. Whitaker, about half way down that first
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page it says Tennille Rae Whitaker. Is that your full
name? And is that spelled correctly?

THE DEFT: Yes, it is.

THE COURT: All further proceedings shall be
had under the name of Tennille Rae Whitaker.

Mr. Bergeron, do you waive a formal reading of
the Information?

MR. BERGERON: We do, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Ms. Whitaker, do you read and speak
English?

THE DEFT: Yes.

THE COURT: How old are you today?

THE DEFT: 41.

THE COURT: How much education have you
completed?

THE DEFT: (Unintelligible.)

THE COURT: Are you in good physical health
today?

THE DEFT: Yes, I am.

THE COURT: Are you in good mental health
today?

THE DEFT: (Unintelligible.)

THE COURT: Are you taking any medication or

under the influence of any substances?

/(9




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

THE DEFT: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Has your attorney advised you that
if you are not a citizen of the United States, a
conviction in this case could affect your ability to
remain in or re-enter this country?

THE DEFT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You are charged with four counts,
Counts I, II, III and IV. They are all the same
charge: Sexual Conduct Between School Employee or
Volunteer and a Pupil, Category-C felony.

Mr. Thompson, will you please explain the
elements of the crimes, the maximum potential
penalties, and whether they are probationable.

MR. THOMPSON: The State would have to show
that on or about or between the 1st day éf September of
2015, and the 6th day of June, 2017, within the County
of Elko, State of Nevada, that the defendant, a person
older than 21 years of age, while employed at or
volunteering at a public or private school, did engage
in sexual conduct with a pupil who was 16 years of age
or older, and had not received a high school diploma, a
general education development certificate, or an
equivalent document, and that the student was attending

the public or private school which the defendant was
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employed or volunteered, or that the student had
contact with the defendant in the course of the
defendant performing her duties as an employee or
volunteer, a Category-C felony, punishable by up to
five years in the Nevada State Prison, with a minimum
period of one year.

She may further be punished by a fine of up to
$10,000. She would be eligible for probation if she's
found, pursuant to an evaluation, not to be a high risk
to re-offend.

THE COURT: Thank you.

Ms. Whitaker, do you understand what you've
been charged with, including the elements of the crime?

THE DEFT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Do you understand the potential
penalties for these crimes?

THE DEFT: I do.

THE COURT: Have you discussed this entire
matter of the plea agreement and your plea with your
attorney before coming to court?

THE DEFT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Are you satisfied with your
attorney and confident in his ability to represent you?

THE DEFT: Yes, Your Honor.
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THE COURT: How many times have you talked with
him about this case?

THE DEFT: Several. I'm not sure how many .

THE COURT: Can you give me an estimate?

THE DEFT: As many as forty. (Muffled and
unintelligible on the amount given.)

THE COURT: Have you had an opportunity, to
your satisfaction, to discuss with your attorney the
possible defenses that may be available to you on the
charges if you were to go to trijal?

THE DEFT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: In light of those discussions and
the information that's been given to you, do you feel
this negotiated plea is the best thing for you to do?

THE DEFT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Do you understand that sentencing
is entirely within the discretion of the Court? Do you
understand that no matter what the negotiations were,
the Court will determine what type of sentence you
receive and whether you will receive probation?

THE DEFT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Do you understand that any sentence
imposed by this Court may be consecutive or concurrent

to any other sentence?
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THE DEFT: Yes.

THE COURT: Do you understand that you will
have to undergo a psychosexual evaluation?

THE DEFT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Do you understand that to be
eligible for probation that evaluator will have to find
that your are not at a high risk to re-offend?

THE DEFT: Yes.

THE COURT: Do you understand that you will
have to register as a sex offender?

THE DEFT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Do you understand that you will be
subject to lifetime supervision as a result of the
conviction of these charges?

THE DEFT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Do you understand that you may be
ordered to pay restitution, if that's appropriate?

An eight-page memorandum of plea agreement was
filed on April 30, 2018. A certificate of counsel is
attached to that agreement, signed by Mr. Bergeron,
counsel for the defendant. On page 6 is the signature
line for Tennille Rae Whitaker, with the signature
above that line. Is that your signature, Ms. Whitaker?

THE DEFT: Yes, it is.,
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THE COURT: The agreement on page 6 is signed
by Ms. Whitaker, and Mr. Thompson indicates it was
signed in the year 2017. I'm assuming that was
supposed to be 2018; is that correct, counsel?

MR. THOMPSON: That is correct.

MR. BERGERON: It is, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. I'm going to correct that,
then.

Ms. Whitaker, did you sign that document
earlier today, April 30th, 20187

THE DEFT: Yes.

THE COURT: Before you signed it, did you have
an opportunity to read it?

THE DEFT: Yes.

THE COURT: Did you consult with your attorney
before you signed the document? Did your attorney
allow you to ask questions about the document?

THE DEFT: Yes.

THE COURT: Did you sign the memorandum of plea
agreement freely and voluntarily?

THE DEFT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Did anybody threaten you with the
use of force or violence against your person to get you

to sign the agreement, or to get you to plead no
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contest?

THE DEFT: No.

THE COURT: Were there any promises of
leniency, other than those contained in the memorandum
of plea agreement, that were made to you to get you to
sign the document, or to get you to plead no contest?

THE DEFT: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Is the entire agreement that you
have reached with the State of Nevada contained within
that memorandum of plea agreement?

THE DEFT: Yes.

THE COURT: I would ask Mr. Bergeron to explain
on the record the essential terms and conditions in the
agreement. You need to listen carefully, because I'm
going to come back to you and ask you if that's also
your understanding of the agreement. Mr. Bergeron.

MR. BERGERON: Your Honor, in exchange for my
client's no contest plea, the State will be not
pursuing the other charges of sexual conduct between a
school employee or volunteer. She will be pleading no
contest to four counts of a Category-C felony, a
violation of 201 -- NRS 201.540. 1In exchange, the
State will not ask for a sentence to exceed 4-to-12

years. The defense is free to argue for probation.
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THE COURT: The State will not pursue any
charges arising out of these?

MR. BERGERON: Any additional charges, as well.

THE COURT: Based on facts --

MR. BERGERON: Correct.

THE COURT: Mr. Thompson, is that your
understanding of the plea agreement?

MR. THOMPSON: It is.

THE COURT: Ms. Whitaker, 1is that your
understanding of the agreement?

THE DEFT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: I need to advise you of some of the
rights you have under the Constitutions of the United
States and the State of Nevada.

You have the right against self-incrimination;
meaning, nobody can make you be a witness against
yourself. Do you understand that right?

THE DEFT: Yes.

THE COURT: You have the right to a speedy and
public trial. If you wanted to go to trial within
60 days, we would have to try to do that. And that
would be a public trial. Do you understand that right?

THE DEFT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You have the right to the

/')
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assistance of an attorney, either appointed or
retained. Did you retain Mr. Bergeron, or did the
Court appoint him for you?

THE DEFT: (Unintelligible.)

THE COURT: So do you understand, then, your
right to the assistance of an attorney?

THE DEFT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You have the right to require that
the State prove each element of the charges against you
beyond a reasonable doubt. If the case went to trial,
the State would have to prove, beyond a reasonable
doubt, that you did these things. You wouldn't have to

prove you didn't do them. Do you understand that

right?

THE DEFT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You have the right to confront and
cross-examine the witnesses against you. If the case

went to trial, the State's witnesses would come into
court, and they'd be placed under oath, and your
attorney would have the opportunity to question them.
Do you understand that right?

THE DEFT: Yes.

THE COURT: You have the right to subpoena

Wwitnesses on your behalf. Do you understand that

| Q7
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right?

THE DEFT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You have the right to testify in
your own defense. That would be your decision to make.
If you chose not to testify, no one could hold that
against you. Do you understand that right?

THE DEFT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You have the right to appeal the
conviction. Do you understand that right?

THE DEFT: Yes.

THE COURT: Have you talked with your attorney
about your Constitutional Rights?

THE DEFT: Yes.

THE COURT: Is there anything about any of
these rights you do not understand, or you would like
to ask me?

THE DEFT: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Knowing you have those rights, do

you wish to voluntarily waive them -- that means give
them up -- and ask me to accept your plea to the
charges?

THE DEFT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Do you need any more time to talk

J Y

With your attorney before you enter your plea?
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THE DEFT: No.

THE COURT: How do you plead to Counts I
through IV, all charges of Sexual Conduct Between
School Employee or Volunteer and a Pupil? Guilty? Not
guilty? Or no contest?

THE DEFT: No contest.

THE COURT: Let the record reflect that the
defendant has entered a plea of no contest to Counts I
through IV. Are you entering your no-contest plea
freely and voluntarily?

THE DEFT: Yes.

THE COURT: Do you understand that the effect
of a no-contest plea is the same as a guilty plea, for
all criminal purposes?

THE DEFT: Yes.

THE COURT: Located in the Court file is what's
called an Offer of Proof. That is the evidence that
the attorneys believe would be produced at trial. Have
you had an opportunity to read that?

THE DEFT: Yes.

THE COURT: Mr. Bergeron, do you agree that the
State could prove its case beyond a reasonable doubt?

MR. BERGERON: Your Honor, I would stipulate,

for the purposes of this negotiation, the State could

)29
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prove the case beyond a reasonable doubt. I don't
necessarily believe it's appropriate to be in agreement
With that on the record. I would say these
negotiations -- (Unintelligible.)

THE "COURT: And you've advised Ms. Whitaker of
your opinion?

MR. BERGERON: I have.

THE COURT: Is that your understanding, as
well, Ms. Whitaker?

THE DEFT: Yes.

THE COURT: The Court finds that there is a
factual basis for the defendant's plea.

Is there anything further that either of the
attorneys would like me to canvass the defendant on?

MR. THOMPSON: The State would not.

MR. BERGERON: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Ms. Whitaker, do you have any
questions about this process that's taken place so far
that you would like to ask me?

THE DEFT: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Do you still request that I accept
your plea?

THE DEFT: (Unintelligible.)

THE COURT: The Court finds that the defendant

| o

15



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

has entered her plea freely and voluntarily, with full
understanding of her Constitutional Rights, the nature
of the charges, and the consequences of the plea.

The Court accepts your no-contest plea based
upon the memorandum of plea agreement that you signed,
a certificate of counsel attached to that agreement,
the offer of proof, and your statements in court today.

A pre-sentence investigation shall be conducted
and a report submitted to the Court on or before
June 29th.

Will sentencing work on July 23rd for you, Mr.
Bergeron?

MR. BERGERON: Your Honor, that's the one day
that won't work. July 30th? And any Monday in August.

THE COURT: Let's see what I've got.

Mr. Thompson, are we going to need something
other than a law-and-motion day?

MR. THOMPSON: I expect there will be --

THE COURT: What we're going to do, then, Mr.
Bergeron, is Court staff will contact you and the
District Attorney's Office to schedule sentencing. I
won't be hearing this on a Monday, because I expect
we -- (unintelligible) -- will have testimony and will

need more time.

13/
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Is there anything further,

counsel?

MR. BERGERON: No, Your Honor. Thank you.

THE COURT: Ms. Whitaker,
touch with your attorney.

We're adjourned.
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STATE OF NEVADA )

)
COUNTY OF WASHOE )

I, RANDI LEE WALKER, Certified Shorthand
Reporter of the Second Judicial District Court of the
State of Nevada, in and for the County of Washoe, do
hereby certify:

That I transcribed from a visual/audio disk
the above proceedings into typewriting, as herein
appears;

That the foregoing transcript is a true and
correct transcription, to the best of my ability to
transcribe from the visual/audio disk.

DATED: At Reno, Nevada, this 2nd day of

December, 2018.

/s/ Randi Lee Walker
RANDI LEE WALKER, CCR No. 137
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ELKO, NEVADA, OCTOBER 4, 2018, 1:41 P.M.

-000-

THE COURT: This is Case Number CR-FP-17-3893,
the State of Nevada versus Tennille Rae Whitaker.

The defendant is present in Court, is not in
custody, and is represented by Mr. Bergeron.

Mr. Thompson is here on behalf of the State.

And Ms. Macias is from Parole & Probation.

The defendant has pled no contest to Count I
through IV; all counts of sexual conduct between school
employee or volunteer and pupil, a Category-C felony.

This is the time set for entry of judgment and
the imposition of sentence.

Are the parties ready to proceed?

MR. THOMPSON: The State 1is, Your Honor.

MR. BERGERON: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: There are quite a few people here
today, a lot more than we normally have 1in this
courtroom, for a hearing like this. I expect everybody
to behave as you should behave in a courtroom.

I have authorized the bailiff and the deputies
to remove anyone who isn't behaving appropriately.

They have my authority to do that, without my having to
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tell them to do so.

I understand this case is very emotional for
all of you who are here, but you do need to behave
appropriately for a courtroom.

A Pre-Sentence Report was ordered and has been
received. Ms. Whitaker, have you had a chance to
review the Pre-Sentence Report?

THE DEFT: I have.

THE COURT: Did you understand that the
Division of Parole & Probation has recommended that I
sentence you to 12-to-36 months on each of the four
counts, that I run those counts consécutively, the
sentences, and that I not place you on probation?

THE DEFT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. Bergeron, did you see any
errors or omissions in the Pre-Sentence Report?

MR. BERGERON: I did, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Ms. Whitaker, you can have a seat.

MR. BERGERON: May I approach?

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. BERGERON: May I proceed?

THE COURT: Go ahead.

MR. BERGERON: Your Honor we're in receipt of

the Presentence-Investigation Report, dated September
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17, 2018. I've provided a copy to my client. She read
through it. She has no corrections to make to the
report.

The corrections that I have to make to the
report are largely legal in nature. And, consequently,
I've provided both the State and you copies of the
statute -- subsequent statute.

If you turn to page 3 of the Pre-Sentence
Investigation Report, down to the paragraph that says
"Summary and Conclusion?"

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. BERGERON: It notes that she is a low-risk
to re-offend. And then it notes, at the same time,
"her need for treatment is as high as it 1is overdue."

The problem with that statement is she had been
in counseling for 12 months, maybe, at the time this
was written. That is factually incorrect. It's not
overdue at all.

In fact, as the Court looks at what defense
counsel has provided, you will see that she has done at
least somewhere around 14 months' treatment, 62
sessions, all in Reno, making the efforts to drive to
Reno.

THE COURT: I am aware of that. I thought that
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statement came directly out of the psychosexual
evaluation.

MR. BERGERON: That's possible, Your Honor. I
read that as by the author.

THE COURT: I was reading it as coming from Dr.
Ing.

MR. BERGERON: I appreciate that.

THE COURT: Doctor Ing, or Mr. Ing.

MR. BERGERON: I appreciate that. So as far as
it is from Dr. Ing, and the initial psychosexual, I
don't have any objections to this.

THE COURT: That's where I thought it came
from.

MR. BERGERON: I appreciate that. If you turn
to page 5, and you look at Offense and Disposition, it
refers to the offense: A school employee or volunteer,
in position of authority, 21 years of age or older,
engaging in sexual conduct with a pupil -- this states
16 or 17.

50 it's noted. They're noting the statute, and

they're using the term "pupil," and they're doing it
according to -- that's correct, because the statute
does state "pupil."

The problem I begin to have with the
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Presentence-Investigation Report is, it starts out
using the word "pupil" on the offense synopsis. And I
counted about 12, 13 references to "pupil,” "student,"
or "student aide."

Now, I'm looking for:a little guidance from the
Court here on how to correct that, because the statute
says "pupil." Factually, two were student aides, two
were not student aides, and were at the high school a
block away. So I'm not quite sure how it should be
referenced in the PSI.

Factually, two were student aides. And legally
it should be the term "pupil." And, regrettably, when
I look at the chapter, the chapter doesn't define
"pupil” or "student."

And if you look at the statute that I provided
you and Mr. Thompson, you will see a subsequent statute
that applies to empirical material. We're taught to
read statutes 1in conjunction with one another, in order
to determine meaning and what the legislature meant.

And NRS 201.550 references sexual conduct
between certain employees of college or university and
student. So, clearly, they use "pupil," and
distinguish from "student," which puts me in a little

bit of a precarious position when I'm trying to correct
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this PSI. Because if we say "student aide," that's
factually incorrect as to two of the pupils, in the
law.

THE COURT: Did you look at the legislative
history previous to these statutes -- it 1looks like
they were passed and then changed at similar times --
to see if the legislature talked about those two terms?

MR. BERGERON: No. And there may be a lot I
didn't do, because this case just keeps cascading and
cascading, factually, the further we get away from the
arraignment, waiving the Prelim, the second
arraignment, and now the sentencing. And, quite
frankly, there's a lot I would like to do. But the
fact is, I don't even think I can keep half of it
straight today. And that's just me being particularly
honest with the Court.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. BERGERON: But they obviously used
"student" 1in the context of a college student. And
they obviously used "pupil” in the context of high
school. But half the alleged victims are not pupils,
and the other half are student aides. So it's creating
quite the dilemma for me, just for purposes of making a

record. And I think I'm going to have to do that
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today.

THE COURT: You're going to have to go through
each one. Because of the use of the initials, it's
difficult for me to keep it straight, as well, Mr.
Bergeron.-

MR. BERGERON: Yes.

THE COURT: You're going to have to go through
each one. Because of the use of the initials, it's
difficult for me to keep it straight, as well, Mr.
Bergeron.

MR. BERGERON: Yes. I had it all straight
until I started reading the PSI. And that's not an
insult to anybody who wrote the PSI, it's just so many
people are referenced by their initials only, out of
respect. But I found myself having to relabel everyone
again. And I don't have the luxury of knowing them by
face.

MR. THOMPSON: We're not talking about leaving
the terms there to be used in the defense synopsis.
This is just to give you an overview of what the facts
are in the case. They can use the term "student" and
"pupil” and use that interchangeably.

I guess, under the law, we use "pupil"” and it's

got this definition. But under the defense synopsis,

N3
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we're just talking about what happened in the case, to
give you an idea of what happened.

It's not a legal pleading, and so we're not
that particular about the terms that are used in the
defense synopsis; otherwise, the PSI record is going to
have -- (unintelligible) -- I understand and I respect
it. If he wants to make the change whenever they're
referencing "student," I would object and say that that
should be "pupil," that's fine. I don't care if he
wants to -- (unintelligible) -- at any point. But I
don't -- it's not a legal -- (unintelligible.)

THE COURT: A "student aide" distinction seems
more important, Mr. Bergeron. But if you're asking for
these changes, you can make them.

MR. BERGERON: You know what, Judge? The
Nevada Supreme Court said I have to address this right
now or I lose it.

THE COURT: That's right.

MR. BERGERON: I prefer that ruling never
occurred, and we could just go to argument and I could
make a record between "pupil," "student," and how the
legislature uses it. I prefer not to have to do this
at all; and, quite frankly, the only reason I'm doing

it is because if I don't do it now, I lose it.

AN
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THE COURT: I understand that. I just said you
could. So let's do it.

MR. BERGERON: I'm just saying, I don't mean to
treat it as --

THE COURT: Okay. Let's do ‘it.

MR. BERGERON: It's actually twofold, Your
Honor. Line 2 says, "High school pupils.” I don't
really have a problem with that, but the statute uses
the term "pupils."

Line 3 describes "a 17-year-old male pupil."

Line 5, at the very end, calls them "multiple
pupils.”

Now the 17-year-old, again, is a student aide.
So on line 2, I'm not sure that's correct, statutorily
correct. Should I be correcting that -- I'm looking

for guidance. Should I be correcting that now?

Because 1if I don't, I can't make the distinction later.

Can we put "pupil/student aide?"

THE COURT: Mr. Thompson, do you agree that the
17-year-old reference there was a student aide?

MR. THOMPSON: (Unintelligible.)

THE COURT: All right. So I'm going to change
that to say "17-year-old male pupil/student aide."

What else, Mr. Bergeron?

JMS
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MR. BERGERON: Likewise with line 2, "High
school pupils/student aides."

THE COURT: A1l right.

MR. BERGERON: Please bear with me.

If you go to the fourth paragraph, "In
addition, there is a program in place in which high-
school-age students." Again, replace that with "pupil/
student aides."

THE COURT: Any objection, Mr. Thompson?

MR. THOMPSON: No.

MR. BERGERON: Are assigned as elementary

school teachers -- same line -- as a teacher's aide.™
We switch a third time: "Pupil, to "student,” to now
Haide-ﬂ

THE COURT: Well, they wouldn't be assigned as
the elementary school teachers as a pupil. So it seems
like "teacher's aide" is accurate there.

MR. BERGERON: I think that's right.

"If the student --" and continue reading --

"the student has the required credits for graduation.
That would be "pupil." I guess it would be "student

i

aides," if they have the credits for graduation. Are
they still a pupil at that point?

THE COURT: I don't know. I didn't write the

145
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statute.

MR. BERGERON: Yeah, I wouldn't take credit for
it either, Your Honor.

THE COURT: I have changed it to read "pupil."

MR. BERGERON: Okay. Go to the next paragraph.
It reads "student" again. So perhaps "aide" -- 17 --
as the -- well, "pupil/student aide," because he's
still a pupil, even though he has the requisite amount
of credits to graduate.

THE COURT: I have changed it to "pupil/
student aide.”

MR. BERGERON: Go to page 8, Your Honor. Page
8, third paragraph down, second line from the bottom of
the paragraph, refers to "teacher's aide." I don't
have an objection to "student aide." But if we're
being consistent, even though he has the requisite
number of credits to graduate, I'm not sure he's a
pupil, but I concede he's a student aide. I don't know
how you want to handle that.

THE COURT: You want it to the stay "student
aide," instead of "teacher's aide?" Because he
wouldn't be assigned --

MR. BERGERON: "Pupil/aide." It's going to be

an issue, Your Honor, that's all I'm saying. If I'm

4
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gding to preserve that issue, like I want to preserve
that issue, I've got to object to it now, so --

THE COURT: Okay. So all I'm telling you is it
says "he was reassigned to work with his aunt, as a
teacher's aide." He wouldn't:have been reassigned to
work as a pupil, so I will change it to "student aide."

MR. BERGERON: Thank you, Your Honor.

On page 9, first paragraph, "Ms. Whitaker later
indicated there was a rumor of her having an affair
with a student.” I would strike the whole sentence; it
revolves around a rumor. But since it's coming from my
client's mouth, it should either be "pupil" or "aide."
Or, perhaps, since it's a quote -- but it's not in
quotes.

THE COURT: I don't know what she said.

MR. BERGERON: Well, it appears in quotes.

THE COURT: Right. But I don't know whether
she said "student"” or "pupil."

MR. BERGERON: Presumably, if they're going to
guote one word and not the other, she didn't use that
term.

THE COURT: I don't know.

MR. BERGERON: I don't know, either. May we

AR

put "pupil" or "aide?"
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THE COURT: Mr. Thompson?

MR. THOMPSON: I think it should say "student."
But if you want to put "pupil" or "aide" or "student,"
I don't care.

THE COURT: I'm going to put "student/pupil/

aide."

What else, Mr. Bergeron?

MR. BERGERON: Your Honor, the remaining -- I
had them marked -- indicate: a) I was marking all of

them because they were used in different terms.

I have no objection to them if Mr. Thompson
would T1ike them all to read -- not all of them are
aides. If Mr. Thompson doesn't have an issue with it,
I won't object to any more of those terms.

THE COURT: Mr. Thompson?

MR. THOMPSON: No.

THE COURT: Anything else, Mr. Bergeron?

MR. BERGERON: Just a little bit, Your Honor.
There's a rumor referenced about an affair with an
adult, that I would like to see stricken. And I'm
struggling to find it. I'd ask for patience, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. BERGERON: It's page 6, to include the top

9
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sentences of paragraph -- about halfway down, starting
with the words "that there had been rumors."
THE COURT: Okay. I found it.

MR. BERGERON: I would request that be

stricken. I don't believe that's something that should"

be considered. It's not honestly a fact or not; it's
not a rumor.

THE COURT: Well, it's not a crime, anyway,
assuming the man referenced there is an adult.

Any objection, Mr. Thompson? I'm going to
strike that sentence, then.

MR. THOMPSON: No.

MR. BERGERON: Your Honor, there are several
descriptions of "the high school," then "the combined
elementary school.” I can go through each one, but
there seems to be no consistency. It's important,
because my client didn't teach at the high school. She
teaches at the elementary school. Do you want me to go
through each one?

THE COURT: That's up to you, Mr. Bergeron.

I'm aware she taught at the elementary school, and that
these were high school pupils. I believe it's called
Wells Combined School, but --

MR. BERGERON: So I'll address that in

/S0
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argument.

At the end of the report, there's a reference
for "deviation justification."

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. BERGERON: It states, "The defendant in
this case was in a coveted position of authority."
That's just not the facts, Your Honor. I can address
that in argument, if you want.

THE COURT: That seems more appropriate for
argument. This is the opinion of the lieutenant who 1is
in charge of Parole & Probation, and I recognize it as
such.

MR. BERGERON: But they make it part of the
PSI. Should I address it in argument? Or do I need to
make a record now? So I guess I'll just make the
record that I request the change.

THE COURT: That's fine. I'm reading this as
his opinion. You can argue it at the time you make
your argument.

MR. BERGERON: Regarding the whole statement?

THE COURT: It's his opinion, the presentence
writer's, if they deviate from their scale, have to
explain why they're deviating. And that's how I'm

reading it: this is why their recommendation deviates

[S ]
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from the scale.

MR. BERGERON: I understand. I'm not trying to
be argumentative, Your Honor, I'm just trying to make a
good record.

THE COURT: Me, too.

MR. BERGERON: There's a subsequent filing from
the Division of Parole & Probation, from
September 25th, and it references: "To the Honorable
N.A. Porter. I request that you see the attached
victim-impact statement."

THE COURT: September 26th?

MR. BERGERON: September 25th. It was filed
September 26th.

Your first name is misspelled, just for
identification.

THE COURT: I have a couple filings on
September 26th, both entitled -- well, no, one says
"Notice of Victim-Impact Statement.”

MR. BERGERON: There's actually three.

THE COURT: No, it's not one of them.

That's not what I'm looking at. If you want to come
forward and show me what you have, that might help.

MR. BERGERON: Well, Your Honor, I'm

referencing that one. But the objection that I'm

JS 2
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making applies to all, provided they're victim-impact
statements provided by Parole & Probation.

THE COURT: I'm trying to decide if this 1is
even in my file.

MR. BERGERON: It references --

THE COURT: Yes. Well, it's received by the
Elko County District Attorney. That's not showing it's
filed into the court; that's the District Attorney's
stamp.

MR. BERGERON: In lieu of that, Your Honor,
while we're trying to figure that out -- So as long as
they were provided to Mr. Thompson, then Mr. Thompson
decided to forward them to the Court, I'm just going to
allow you to determine who's the victim and who's not,
and the like.

THE COURT: Well, I'm trying to decide if I
even have that, Mr. Bergeron.

MR. BERGERON: Well, I don't think you do,
because you correctly noted, Your Honor, that this has
a receipt stamp from the D.A., not a file stamp.

MR. THOMPSON: I believe you received it from
the D.A.'s, also.

THE COURT: I do have that. It was attached --

it's not filed, it was submitted to me. I don't even

N
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know where it came from; it's just loose, sitting in
the file.

The one I had has last names, things are not
redacted from it, but it has not been filed.

So I can teéll you, Mr. Bergeron, I have read
every word of every statement in the file. I recognize
that there are people who have submitted letters or
signed letters that are not victims, pursuant to the
statute, and so I'm not considering them to be victims.

I understand -- you can see all these people
here. We have a lot of people who are interested in
this proceeding. The victims get to make an impact
statement, and that's what I'm considering.

MR. BERGERON: I understand, Your Honor. And I
just want to make sure that we're all talking about the
same statement.

THE COURT: We are. It's not filed. The Court
is showing something was filed under seal on
September 26th, but I don't have anything in the file
filed under seal on that date.

MR. BERGERON: I also have a Notice of
Victim-Impact Statement filed on the 1st of October.

THE COURT: All right. I have that.

MR. BERGERON: Also served on the 1st --

JS\(
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THE COURT: I have that.

MR. BERGERON: -- by mailing it to me at 432
Court Street, Reno, Nevada.

I‘don't particularly care for that, Your Honor,
because that looks like a tactic so that I don't know
what's in it. I'm clearly not going to get it if I'm
here on the 1st. I'm not going to get it if I'm here
on the 2nd. I'm clearly not going to show up the 3rd,
which is only the third mailing day. And that looks
like service that's intended to be filed and intended
to receive on the 4th. That actually looks a little
deceptive to me. It's possible that it's in my office,
but I'm not in my office.

THE COURT: Mr. Thompson, would you like to
address that?

MR. THOMPSON: We received it on the 1st, so we
filed it on the 1lst. Mr. Bergeron came over to my
office this morning and we gave him a copy of it. He
said he'd been in town, and we gave him a copy of it
this morning.

THE COURT: I didn't know he was in town this
week. Did you know that?

MR. THOMPSON: I did not know, until he showed

up yesterday.
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THE COURT: I don't think there was any evil
intent here, Mr. Bergeron.
MR. BERGERON: And I didn't know it was Mr.

Thompson. I'm not sure it makes very clear that it's

* Mr. Thompson. I see it was sent to Parole & Probation;

I see it was sent to you; I see it was mailed to me;
and there's a signature of -- I don't know if that was
the social worker. I don't know who that is.

So Mr. Thompson did provide a copy to me.

With that, Your Honor, I believe all my
corrections are made.

THE COURT: Mr. Thompson, did you see any
errors or omissions in the Pre-Sentence Report?

MR. THOMPSON: I just had one thing I wanted to
bring up. The selection scale from -- the Department
of Parole and Probation's selection scale, you'll note
that her raw score was 33, that they check marked the
one for the 17-27 range, at 12-36. I discussed that
with Ms. Macias. That's not an error, that was part of
the deviation. That was intentional for them to do in
the --

THE COURT: I'm glad you corrected that,
because I wondered about that myself.

MR. BERGERON: Can you repeat that? It took me

IS L
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a minute to get to the page that --

MR. THOMPSON: So the raw score offense is 33.
So it should be in this range, which would be 12-to-34
months, but they checked the 12-to-36 months. And that
was an intentional --

MR. BERGERON: Thank you.

MR. THOMPSON: With that. I don't have any
corrections.

THE COURT: Ms. Macias, do you have anything to
add?

THE DIVISION: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: There was a psychosexual evaluation
conducted. Ms. Whitaker, have you had a chance to
review that evaluation?

THE DEFT: Yes, I have, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. Thompson, have you reviewed
that evaluation?

MR. THOMPSON: I have.

THE COURT: Ms. Macias, I'm assuming you did,
as well, because it's quoted in your report.

THE DIVISION: That's correct, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Starting with you, Mr. Bergeron, on
your argument and position regarding sentencing.

MR. BERGERON: You've already heard part of my

/$7
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argument, Your Honor, but I'm going to repeat it, to
see if I can be a little more clear.

I'm going to try to be as polite and courteous
as I can. But as the Court has noted, Mr. Thompson has
some difficult topics, and there's a lot of emotion on
this case. So know that if something comes out a
little wrong, it's unintentional.

It's arguable that none of these people were
her pupils. I disagree with Mr. Thompson's assertion
that a teacher's aide is a pupil. But two were,
clearly, not even teacher's aides. They're not on the
same campus. And that's 15 years' worth of crimes.

Now, Mr. Thompson has been polite, he's been
courteous, he's been easy to work with. I can't say
enough kind things about the man. But we're having an
impasse about that. And we've had that impasse for
quite a while.

My client received a lot of media attention,
and it wasn't just relegated to Elko. There's at least
one cite I found in Boston -- and I'm going to keep it
short. I found another cite in -- I believe it was
Oxford, or England -- it was England. I just don't

know if it was Oxford or not. She's had international

ISy
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And I'm in the position, when I'm a criminal
defense attorney, to advise someone when to go to
trial, and advise somebody when not to go to trial.

And I beat that drum: "Let's go to trial." But she'd
been beat down so much, she didn't want to.

Part of the problem I have with what Mr.
Thompson has done here is, there are at least 15 years'
worth of crimes that she didn't commit, that shouldn't
have been charged. It should have been motioned out
before the Court at trial. But, as you well know,
that's not my decision. But I do think that's what is
going on. And I don't like saying that, but it is.
There's no way around it.

Additionally, a student aide doesn't get a
grade, and they're over the age of consent. And they
don't even get a grade for attendance. They keep track
of attendance. But as I read to you before, they have
to have the necessary credits to graduate.

So in order for my client to be guilty of
anything, which is why I so strongly urged her to go to
trial -- she just wants to put it behind her -- but it
puts us in a precarious position. Because now I'm
sitting here trying to make a record that she wasn't a

teacher, even though she pled no contest and took

/$9
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advantage of the negotiation.

Charging people with crimes they did not
commit, to get people to plead guilty or no contest to
crimes you believe they commit, that's unacceptable.

Now, here's what I think: I think Mr. Thompson
genuinely believed that there's no misconduct here,
because I don't think the man would do anything
intentional like that. But the net result is, I've got
to bring that up. And it's completely contrary to
anything I know about Mr. Thompson. And since this
case has droned on for almost two years, I think I've
gotten to know him pretty well.

But I still think that's misconduct. And he's

going to disagree with me -- and I don't blame him for
disagreeing with me -- but they are not her students --
thank you -- are pupils. Pupils. I've even got to

remind myself not to say "pupil" synonymous with
“student."

They are not defined. Thank you, Nevada
Legislature. At least give us a definition of what a
"pupil" 1s. Because, otherwise, how do I know? Go to
the dictionary? That's almost laughable, because legal
definitions vary from dictionary definitions immensely.

And I'm going to take time in between to review

L0
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my notes, if you don't mind, Your Honor --

THE COURT: That's fine.

MR. BERGERON: So two worker aides, and the
other two went to high school, I believe, a block away.
It could be closer.” I'm not trying to split hairs
here, I'm trying to remember. It's been so long ago, I
don't remember.

Again, they did not receive a grade; they have
sufficient credits to graduate; all of them then go to
the high school next door.

Attendance was kept by the secretary 1in the
principal's office, not Ms. Whitaker; and the
principal's office submitted them, the attendance
records -- I don't know -- I guess so they can put them
on their -- so the pupils can put them on their college
application? They're not getting a grade; I don't know
how much it matters at that point. When I look
at this statute, it's pretty clear to me, and when I
look at other statutes throughout the country, these
statutes have been held unconstitutional in Arkansas,
unconstitutional in Alabama. I think just one was held
constitutional in Utah. There was yet a third, I think

maybe it was Arizona, they were held unconstitutional.

I6

And because wording differs between states,
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it's important to really analyze this, because it could
be very much unconstitutional.

Now, when a person pleads no contest, they
waive their state appeal's rights, but they don't waive
their Constitutional Rights. I researched it; they
don't do it. But I have to preserve it. So I'm going
to bring up some constitutional issues I have with the
statute.

I think that most statutes that are held
constitutional are done so because the State has a
rational or compelling interest to not allow a teacher
to use their influence over a pupil.

But that's not what this says. This actually
says: "If they are a volunteer, an employee, or a
teacher, they cannot have a sexually-intimate
relationship with somebody who is 16 years of age or
older.™

I don't really see how an employee -- I don't
see how a cafeteria worker, or a janitor -- maybe a
football coach or a cheerleading coach, they have some
authority over whether you make the team. But what's a
cafeteria worker going to do? Give you more mashed
potatoes? What's a janitor going to do? Wash your

locker? I mean, that's way overbroad.

| £2;
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And it gets more confusing from there: "Who
has not received a high school diploma or GED." So
you're not allowed to have a relationship with a
l6-year-old, unless they had their diploma or their
GED. Because they are pupils -- but are they even
pupils at that point if they had their GED or their
diploma?

I suppose you could get your GED. I suppose
you could go in there and take extra classes. And this
is part of why I just wanted to try this case, because
now it's a mess. Now all I will see is a mess.

I suppose you could still take classes, but
it's highly doubtful, which is why this 1is so poorly
written.

It gets worse. It references "is or ever was a
student." So it's idinternally consistent: If they have
a GED, you can; but even if they have a GED, you can't,
because they were your student.

Even more, it's overbroad. It's not only

" 1" " "

is was

ambiguous, it's overbroad, because or

probably means that a 52-year-old man and a 46-year-old
woman couldn't have a relationship.
And that's a substantial right's issue. The

legislature cannot tell people who they can and they
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cannot have a relationship with, whether it's a
boyfriend relationship, whether it's a sexually
intimate relationship, whether it's a husband/wife
relationship.

But it gets worse. For everybody else, the age
of consent is 16, and if the basis for the statute, the
constitutional basis for the statute, is to protect
students, then there's a compelling interest, because
there's an equal-protection problem. And it's not
because some random person can have a relationship,
it's because it only applies to teachers.

In today's day and age, students go and they do
internships for people, and they get credit for doing
internships.

Same situation here, except they might even get
a grade based on that internship. They could intern
with you. And if you chose to have an intimate
relationship with that person, you're certainly in a
position of authority, you're certainly sought out to
have that position. You're not guilty. Mr. Thompson,
he's not guilty. Mr. Bergeron, he's not guilty. 1It's
not that they don’'t have an interest, it's that they
are applying the statute unequally.

The police officers, you can intern with them.

6
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And if they did 1it, they wouldn't be criminally liable.
We can go on forever.

The people who wrote this law, the Governor who
signed it, you can do an internship there, and there
would be no criminal liability.

You can go to the congressional level, you can
intern for congress. NoO consequence.

You can be an intern for the President. No
consequence.

I guess only teachers are subject to this rule?

I can understand it being held constitutional
on a compelling-interest standard, and the standard
that we want to protect vulnerable people. But they
weren't her pupils. They weren't even her pupils.

And the same standard applies to all positions
in authority, and yet it's not applied. But I think
it's going to fail. I think it's going to fail on
equal protection. And not because your average person
can do it, because everybody else in a position of
authority can do it.

I had to ask myself, Your Honor -- I looked up

"combined schools,"” and "combined schools" are --
because I never heard of it, quite frankly -- "combined

school" is ages seven through 12. They are not K-6

[£S
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through 12. The combined school is referencing a high
school, not where Ms. Whitaker taught. She taught at
the elementary school.

And the student aide position is a volunteer
position. They come and volunteer for her.

I had to ask myself: Is six blocks better? Is
a mile better? Five miles? 10 miles? Is Carlin
better? Is Reno better? How far do you have to travel
to get on a different campus for this to be legal?

What 1is this? This is a woman who committed
adultery, who used bad judgment. There are a lot of
men out there that could have done the same thing: go
out and buy a sports car, date a younger woman, happen
to not be teachers. And guess what? No criminal
liability, whatsoever. That's equal protection.

And I bring it up to preserve constitutional
issues, Federal Constitutional issues. I don't believe
there is a State remedy here, but there is a Federal.

I think she has suffered enough. She's no
longer a teacher. She's participated in counseling for
15 months. She's done 62 sessions with her husband.
She did that in Reno, so that includes drive time,

driving back. She's suffered public humiliation

b6

nationwide, internationally. She's lost her
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reputation. She's lost her job. She's lost her
respect of the community. I'm pretty sure she'd
compact to another county, if you gave her probation.

Not only is she a low risk, she's the lowest
possible risk. There was a time we wanted to know
whether somebody was not just not a high risk to
re-offend, but we wanted to know: Are they a moderate-
to-high? Are they a moderate? Are they a low-to-
moderate? Are they a low? She's a low. She's not
even close to re-offending.

In fact, if you look at Dr. Ing's report, he
says she's the least likely to re-offend out of anybody
he's ever treated. He's only been doing this 30 years.
I 1ike to think I've been doing it a long time, but
then I compare myself with Dr. Ing, and he's been doing
it a lot longer than I have.

I didn't even want to address this, Your Honor,
and I'm going to address it tangentially, and then I'm
going to stop, because I know there's a tragedy that
occurred in this community, and there's a grieving
family.

And I know that young man felt some guilt, and

certainly my client feels guilt. And I believe you

[

know who I'm referring to.
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And having grown up in rural Nevada --

Hawthorne, specifically -- I notice there's a pretty
high rate of that occurrence. I'm speaking in
vagueness. I hope that's okay.

THE COURT: T know what you're referring to.

MR. BERGERON: There's also some distance

between the contact. I'm not talking proximity of
time, I'm talking -- again, I'm talking vague,
because -- not just for the Court, not just for Mr.

Thompson, but out of respect to the family, there's
20 months apart. 20 months apart.

Dr. Ing also noted that she was clearly not a
predator.

Some of the problem that I had encountered in
working on this case is that there's a lot of rumors
going around, and a lot of rumors getting into the PSI.
It just doesn't make a whole lot of sense to me.

He referred to her as pathetic, not a predator,
and that's because what he's conveyihg there is she's
not a risk to re-offend.

As a side note, my client has always indicated
to me that the young men involved initiated contact

with her, which is consistent with them volunteering to

16Y

be student aides.
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I'd just like to go over the years -- the laws
regarding years of consent, the years of majority, and
the like. If someone is 16, that is the age of consent
for everybody except teachers, unless they are your
pupil and they have a GED or a diploma.

But, again, if they were far, or ever was your
pupil, then it doesn't matter how much time passes,
according to go that statute. That's why it's vague
and ambiguous.

And I don't understand why somebody who has a
GED is somewhat less deplorable than somebody who
doesn't. I mean, you're either 16 and vulnerable, or
16 and not.

And, quite frankly, I'm not in love with the
idea that 16 is the age of consent. But if we want to
change it, then get a petition together, we send it, we
get it on the ballot, and we all sign it, saying, "Up
the age of consent. We don't like the fact that it's
the age of consent.”

And it's pretty clear to me that there are a
lot of people in this community that are angry at the
age of consent, and are directing that anger at my
client.

And I understand it, because I really don't get
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the whole notion that a 16-year old is somehow -- I
don't know -- mature enough. But it's legal at 18.
You can join the military.

Going back to 16, and the 18 being the age of
majority, you can enter into a contract. I guess
unless it's a necessity, then you can, what, enter into
a contract at 16?7 If it's a marital contract, you can
marry at 16, with parental consent. Or you can marry
at 18.

You can fight for your country at 18. You can
vote at 18. You can't drink a beer until you're 21.

I mean, these exceptions in ages -- while I can
see why they're there, it's starting to be a little
hard to keep track of.

And I understand the presumption is: everyone
knows the law, or ignorance of the law would be a
defense in every case.

But this is not just knowing the law; this is
contradiction, exception, swallowing the rule of when
it's allowed, when it isn't.

Why 1is that important? Nine of the 12 counts
involve a former student aide. A former student aide.

Am I recalling that correctly? Excuse me. 35 years of

ol

the complaint involved a former student aide.
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So that "is" or "was" a student provision in
the statute is telling somebody who's already
graduated, already had the necessary credits to
graduate -- shouldn't say "already graduated," because
I think he's still doing the student internship. So I
don't want to mischaracterize that. But the
teacher/aide, student/aide relationship, no longer
exists.

They are actually telling people whether they
can have a relationship after somebody -- or while
somebody 1is graduating from high school, that has the
necessary credits to graduate from high school, that is
doing or has done an internship, because previously
there was a student/aide relationship? I don't think
anybody is going to get that.

You could make the ages more closely related,
but the statute says if you're over 21. So a
21-year-old who has a sexually-intimate relationship
with a former student aide, who has the necessary
credits to graduate, who is volunteering to be that
student aide, while at least he was that aide, if they
decide to have a relationship after the student/aide
relationship is over, you face one-to-five years for

every act? That's archaic. I sincerely believe that.
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If I take off my defense attorney hat, I put on
my logic hat, and I think to myself: That doesn't make
any sense.

I also take off my defense attorney hat, and 1
put my taxpayer hat on. And I think: This is the last
person I want in prison. Are you kidding me?

I grew up with some pretty nasty people. They
commit murder, they commit robbery, they commit armed
robbery, they commit kidnapping. You know the drill.

And I stand next to some of them and I think:
This guy is a good candidate for prison. Especially
since I get to hear some of the statements you don't,
and Mr. Thompson doesn't.

I have to take them in my office occasionally
and go, "What are you talking about, you want me to
argue for probation? This is a stip-to-prison case, or
you're going to get hammered.”

And I'm supposed to stand next to her and say,
"I can understand why she might get prison?" I don't
mind keeping her in custody. She's a low risk to
re-offend.

She's been in counseling for 15 months. She's
put in her time. She's been humiliated. She's been

humiliated internationally. And I don't want to pay
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for it. And I say that sincerely, as a taxpayer, to
heck with being a defense attorney.

So, again, I want to make sure I cross all the
T's and dot all the I's. I think this is vague and
ambiguous -- this statute is vague and ambiguous, as
it's applied to this circumstance, because he no longer
was a student ajde when any of this occurred.

So the "is" or "was" provision -- and I'm
forgetting the proper term -- it goes on for infinity.
And that's not normal. People don't realize that. I
think it's a substantial-right's issue. Because once
you're above the age of consent, you're now telling
people whether or not they can have a relationship with
one another.

And that is why I also provided you the second
statute. Because if you read them in conjunction with
one another, what the legislature is saying is that a
college student -- I don't know -- can't have a
sexually-intimate relatjonship with the associate
professor?

Wait a minute. Kids go to college at 19, they
graduate at 22, and I call them "kids." They are young
adults. And I have tried to coach myself on that.

I still think this civil rights era, where two
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black kids tried to enter the University of Alabama,
and I had a hard time calling them adults. But you
know what? They were adults. They stood on the steps
during a time that was pretty significant. They are
adults.

But this prohibits all college professors. So
if I had a cooking class, and my cooking teacher is
four years older than me, but I'm still her student, I
guess the subsequent statute applies.

IT I'm in a basketball class, and we're both
30, these are so -- I think it's imperpeteria. Is that
correct, Judge, the property?

THE COURT: Perpetuity?

MR. BERGERON: Perpetuity. Hence the reason I
didn't go into property law.

Is there some sort of petition that has reached

the Court, that I don't know about? If the answer 1is

11 1)

no," I'm okay with it.

THE COURT: It was a letter that was signed by
several people. And I recognize that the vast majority
of those are not victims, as defined by the statute.

MR. BERGERON: I appreciate that, Your Honor.
I was going to make a little bit different point.

The State -- Mr. Thompson represents the County

Y
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of Washoe, the State of Nevada -- excuse me -- the
County of Elko, the State of Nevada.

You were elected by the whole community, not
just those people. And I think a petition signed to
change your mind, I'm‘'not terribly burdened by it, and
I don't find the need to address it for too long a
period of time. But that's not what a petition is for.
A petition is to get a ballot on at the election. You
get enough signatures, you get it on the ballot. It is
not for this.

THE COURT: It's not influencing me, Mr.
Bergeron. It's been signed by several people.

MR. BERGERON: And I'm just making a point that
it's an improper venue for that sort of thing.

I want to talk a little bit about teenagers. I
was one, once. I know there are a lot of people in the
community that know teenagers. And the one thing I've
become absolutely certain of is that teenagers lie,
sometimes. They lie that -- (unintelligible.) And
they don't do it routinely, but they definitely can do
it if they think they are going to get in trouble.
That's the worst time, right there. That is the worst

time to take a statement from a teenager as completely

75

truthful.
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You've got to really scrutinize it at that
moment, because you just don't know the influence on
them. And a lot of these young men -- trying to refer
to them as men, not kids, because they are the age of
consent. But they are being questioned by police; they
are being questioned by their parents. And there's one
little anecdote that stands out. I'm not going to go
through them all. I probably would have had to if we
went to trial, but I'm not going to go through them
all. At one point my secretary called me up, she says,

"Do you realize the young men said your client promised

her a beer -- him a beer?" My secretary.

I go, "Kim, you want to come over? I'll give
you a beer." She laughed and said, "No." "How about a
six-pack?" She laughed and said, "No." "Okay.
12-pack?" "No." I go, "How about a keg?"

Now she knows there's no way. She knows how

facetious I'm being right now. And I said, "Do you
know how stupid that sounds?" Now, I'm not calling
anyone stupid, but I'm calling that statement stupid.
And she goes, "I see your point."

And that is evidence of an attempt to
manipulate. In the PSI it's called, "Well, she plied

him with alcohol.” That's not how it reads.
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This has been rather -- I'm going to finish up,
right now. This has been one of the most difficult
cases in my career. My client doesn't want to go to
trial. I can't get her to go to trial. And if she
doesn't go to trial, all of this mess comes up. "

She doesn't want to go to trial, because she's
getting beat up in the media, and she's exhausted. And
some of it is probably okay for a gossip column, but
not for criminal charges.

And T call it -- the over-arching theme of this
entire case is "overreaching." The media attention
wasn't -- nobody called me. Nobody called me once,
even though they knew I was counsel of record. It
became apparent to me. I'm a journalist. I created
four newspapers. I write for a newspaper, right now.
It's just over-reach. It's too much. And clients
fold, even when I want them to go to trial.

And then the clients that I don't want to go to
trial, demand to go to trial. And some have good
facts, and some have bad facts. Some have good issues,
some have bad issues. And you can imagine which one's
which. There's over-reach.

And I have a healthy respect for law

enforcement, but there's over-reach by the police.
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Eight months' investigation? As part of this trip, I'm
trying to bring my wife and kids up to meet dad, or to
hang out with dad. Eight months? I didn't have room
for 1it.

I was going to bring it in, just to show you
how much resources were put into this case, as a prop.
I didn't need 1it, but as a prop. I couldn't fit it in
the car. Obviously, in this weather, I couldn't use my
truck, so I didn't.

But I'm still going to make the point that
there's over-reach. There's over-reach by the Justice
of the Peace. And I'm not talking about this Justice
of the Peace. I'm talking about the Justice of the
Peace in Wells.

I have seen a restraining order. And I saw
what that restraining order looked like. And that
restraining order was nothing like any restraining
order I have ever seen. It wasn't just a restraining
order against Ms. Whitaker, it was against -- a
restraining order against her husband.

It wasn't designed to keep her away; it was
designed to keep her away from -- is it 4-H? -- 4-H.
And there's an FFA reference here, and I didn't know

if -- I may have made a mistake.
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It was designed to keep Walter, her husband,
from driving down the interstate. He only works for
NDOT.

You're talking about huge ranches. You don't
need a restraining order to keep somebody off your
property if your home is a hundred yards away from the
fence. I mean, that's strange. I don't know how that
was granted.

You cannot exit the interstate on this exit.
You can't drive down this road. When they live right
there. And they're not within a hundred feet, they're
not within a hundred yards. There's no definition of
how far away she or her husband was allowed to go.

I'm pretty sure you've dealt with this stuff,
Judge. If there's a restraining order against me and I
walk into a supermarket, I'm obliged to turn and leave.
That's that hundred feet, the hundred-yard reference.
No reference to it. It was -- I don't even know how to
calculate the distance it covers.

And I don't want to beat Mr. Thompson up too
much, but we have a disagreement here. I think there's
over-reach by the prosecution, as well. I will say

clearly that I do not think it's malicious; I think

19

it's a disagreement.
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And I think there's over-reach by Parole &
Probation. They are considering things they shouldn't
be considering, and they are not including things they
should be considering.

I certainly didn't see a whole heck of lot of
reference to the psychosexual and her low risk to
re-offend. Granted, there's a one-liner in there.

My client has done her counseling; she's
appropriately remorseful; she would like to address it:
I'm sure you will see that. It's extensive overkill to
put her one day 1in prison.

There's a lot of statements for her first
éexual assault. This is not a sexual assault.

She wouldn't have done that level gf counseling
if she wasn't appropriately remorseful.

Your Honor, my client would like to make a
statement regarding allocution -- I don't mean now, but
she is going to a brief one, unless you have any
questions of me.

I don't believe that she's an appropriate
candidate for prison. Please give her probation.

THE COURT: Ms. Whitaker, you do have the
opportunity to speak. You are not required to, but you

are entitled to. Is there anything you would like to
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state?

THE DEFT: Yes, Your Honor. I'd ask for --
(unintelligible.) I'm truly sorry. I'm sorry to the
people, because I'm truly sorry.

THE COURT: It's okay for you to address them,
Ms. Whitaker, we just need to make sure we get your
voice on the recording. It's the box with the red
light. You can move that closer, if you want to turn
to speak to the people in the gallery.

THE DEFT: I'm so sorry for my actions. I know
they affected you. (Unintelligible.) I'm ashamed for
it. I'm truly sorry for betraying your trust. This

past year I have been under so much fire.

(Unintelligible.) I feel like I'm sorry, so that -- so
I ask your forgiveness. (Unintelligible.) I'm so
sorry. I'm so sorry. And I love each and every one of
you. And -- (Unintelligible.)

That's all I want to say.

THE COURT: Thank you. You may be seated.

Mr. Thompson.

MR. THOMPSON: Thank you, Judge. I have a bit
of a cold. I want to respond to a couple of things
that Mr. Bergeron brought up.

Firstly, when he said that we had charged -- or
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mentioned 15 years of a crime, I have no idea what he's
talking about there.

The criminal Information clearly shows that
we're alleging incidents that occurred between the 1st
day of September, 2015, through the 6th day of June,
2017. That's not 15 years. I don't know where he's
coming from, as far as that goes.

With regard to his interpretation of what the
statute 201.540 means, an interesting argument for
sentencing. I completely disagree with how he reads
the statute.

All of these boys, in our view, complied
especially with the statute, because it says, "With
whom a person had contact in the course of performing
his or her duties." That's under C(2), which talks
about basically you being in the school. And the
unique school that they have, one principal covers all
the schools. That's why they call it the Wells
Combined School.

All of these guys were pupils, students. None
of them had graduated at the time these incidents had
occurred.

So they were all attending the school that she

was employed at, and she had contact with them as part

)
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of her duties either as a students' aide, or a
teacher's aide, or through other activities.

S0 they all would comply with the statute.
There is no issue there.

Ms. Whitaker, she had sex with these four boys.
Some on multiple occasions, others a single occasion.
And one of the things that people really want to know a
lot of times is: Why? And we see a little bit of that
in a psychosexual evaluation. And, by the way, Mr. Ing
is not a doctor. He has a Master's Degree, and a
Bachelor's, and he's a Licensed Marriage & Family
Therapist. He's not a doctor. So I will just refer to
him as Mr. Ing.

He says -- with regard to the crime, he says,
"When we examine the mental-health components of the
offense, we see an example of the perfect storm of
criminogenic variables. So what happened was, she had
chronic feelings of emptiness, creating a very needy
person, who gets rejected by her primary support and
becomes depressed.”

What he's referencing there is that she was
depressed, because her husband and she were having a
hard time. She was rejected by her primary support.

"This leads to increased drinking, which lowers

/33
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the inhibitions, and increases the depression.”

"So her husband rejected her, and so she turned
to drinking, that, in turn, accelerated -- it increases
the depression that, in turn, accelerated the
impulsivity related to her ADHD and her other
personality disorder. As bad as these
sexually-impulsive crimes were, for all the --
(unintelligible) -- they would represent a choice
preferable to suicide.”

The way I read what Mr. Ing is saying is, that
in her mind, it was either things were so bad I commit
suicide, or I go have sex with a 16- or 17-year-old
boy? That was what he saw 1in her.

"Once Ms. Whitaker had crossed one boundary
into an inappropriate and enviable sexual behavior, she
took on a fatalism typical of those with her pre-
mental-health problems. Once she realized that she,
again, ruined her story-book romance --" referring to
her marriage -- "she became discouraged to the point of
surrender, saying in our interview for this evaluation,
"What was the point? I already screwed up everything."

And what she's referring to there 1is that she
had the first interaction with the first boy, where she

had multiple counts in the criminal Information.
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believe the first five counts had to do with him. That
was for a longer period of time.

And then the next three occur in the same year,
following the termination of the first one.

"What was‘'the point? I've already screwed up
everything."

"This sort of thinking is common to major
depressive disorder, or borderline personality
disorder, and individuals with ADHD. This way of
thinking made the behavior all the more needful of
community intervention."

According to Mr. Ing, what we're doing here is
a community intervention. We got involved, and we
stopped her, and we came to her aid.

"As is the case with most sexual crimes,
secrecy is what makes the offense possible. And when
the secrecy ends, the criminal behavior ends with it."

What that means is, you can do these things in
private with people who are young and get away with it.
And there's the old adage, that I've heard, that a true
measure of a person is what they do in secret -- or the
true measure of a person is what they do when they
think nobody else is watching, or when they think they

can get away with it. That's the true measure of who
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Ms. Whitaker was and is.

Now, so in his view, that's the why: she has a
borderline personality, and ADHD, and depression. And
because of that, it was either suicide or sex with
these young boys. And once she started with one of
them, the other three just rolled into shape there.

Further with Mr. Ing, he gives his
recommendations, of course, for probation. He says,
"In this case, the idea of incarceration makes sense
only from the perspective of those in whom the need to
punish is strong. This is generally only true when
failing to understand the criminogenic variables that
erode the decision-making capacity of the offender."

Meaning: for those of you who don't understand
Ms. Whitaker, you're going to think that she needs to
go to prison.

But for Mr. Ing, who understands her, he's
enlightened enough to say, "Oh, but prison is not for
her."

A moral diagnosis is made, is what he says to
those of us who don't understand Ms. Whitaker, unless a
bad person needs to be thoroughly punished.

And then he goes onto say, "An important reason

is that she won't get the help she needs 1in prison."’
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So it's all about Ms. Whitaker.

When you think of sentencing -- we talked about
restitution. The restitution, you can't put back
virtue, you can't put back purity. You can't start
over there. No amount of money is going to fix that.

So we're down to the other two, which are
rehabilitation and retribution. The rehabilitation has
everything to do with Ms. Whitaker. How do we fix Ms.
Whitaker? How do we fix Ms. Whitaker? She's this
college-educated person. And as I go through those
letters of support for her, I didn't see anything in
there where somebody says that I knew something was
wrong with her. Mr. Ing says she was on the verge of
suicide, and that's what caused her to do this. And I
don't see anything from these friends that say, "I knew
something was wrong."

She then makes that decision and says, "Well, I
already messed up once," and then knowingly goes into
the next three relationships, and decides to do those.

It can't just be about the rehabilitation of
Ms. Whitaker.

Retribution is the other aim of sentencing.
Punishment. Deterrence. What is the community going

to do in the future when somebody thinks about doing
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this? Somebody out there? General deterrence.
They're a teacher, they don't want their students
attracted.

Gosh, you know, I'm close to retirement. Ms.
Whitaker got probation, maybe it's not so bad. What
kind of a deterrence do we have for the teachers? What
kind of perception of safety do we have for the parents
for the students who go to school, if there's not this

retribution, this punishment: If you do this, you go to

-prison.

I recognize -- and she has pled, it's not a
sexual assault; she's pled to exactly what we've
charged her with, four counts.

This is not something that the legislature
mandated prison. And they have done with many other
statutes, where they say, "If you commit this crime,
you will go to prison. You have no option for
probation.™

That's not what Ms. Whitaker did in this case.
We understand that. And the deviation from the PSI 1is
our recommendation. We -- in the plea agreement, we're
capped at arguing for 12-to-36 months on each count,
consecutive, no probation. That's our recommendation.

And we think it is warranted because of the

) 8
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multiplicity of counts, the multiplicity of events.
Yes, it did go on for over a year. And, yes, she knew
it was wrong, and yet continued. And she's smart
enough to know that it's wrong, and continued.

What kind of a message do we send to the
community if she doesn't go to prison? To her? Well,
and it's even more when you get into the specific
nature of this crime to the victims.

We talk about the healing process for Ms.
Whitaker. How does a victim heal when they see Ms.
Whitaker out on probation? She has spent two whole
days in jail over this. Two whole days in jail.

The legislature has said that this is how we're
going to punish crimes: We're going to send people to
prison, or put them on probation with supervision, or
we're going to fine them. That's what we have options
for.

In this particular case, because of the serious
nature of these offenses, we think that prison is
appropriate.

Now, we recognize that she scored out, and if
it weren't for the deviation, the Division would be
recommending probation. I understand that.

But we think they took into consideration the
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appropriate things: She had multiple victims, that

occurred over a longer period of time. That causes
this to rise to that level where she needs to go to
prison.

If you can't find your way clear to send her to
prison, our recommendation for each of the counts would
be the same, with consecutive. But if you put her on
probation as a condition of probation, you have to send
her to jail 364 days.

If you're not willing to send her to prison, we
would ask that you at least send her to jail for a
year, as a condition of probation.

That has to have a deterrent effect for others.
There has to be that retribution that heals the victim,
that helps them heal, to see that there's consequences
for these actions.

You saw in the letters from the parents, their
boys scattered, they left. It's not going to be the
same for them. How do they heal? How do their parents
heal? To see consequences. To see retribution.

That's our argument, Judge.

THE COURT: Mr. Bergeron, do you have witnesses
to call?

MR. BERGERON: I do, Your Honor.

)40
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THE COURT: Your first witness.

MR. BERGERON: I think that Mr. Thompson was --
I, obviously, referred to him as "doctor."
(Unintelligible.) Not sure that's appropriate.

THE COURT: It's argument, Mr. Bergeron, and
that's how I took it.

MR. BERGERON: Thank you. I appreciate that.

THE COURT: Your first witness.

MR. BERGERON: I'd like to call Jennifer
Hanson.

THE COURT: Jennifer Hanson?

MR. BERGERON: H-a-n-s-o0-n.

THE COURT: Come forward, please.

JENNIFER HANSON,
called as a witness by the Defense,
who, having been first duly sworn, was examined

and testified as follows:

THE COURT: Please state and spell your first
and last name.

THE WITNESS: Jennifer Hanson.

THE COURT: And your first name's the customary

spelling of Jennifer?
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THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE COURT: That microphone is also recording
you. You don't need to get right up to it, but make
sure you speak up loud enough.

Go ahead, Mr. Bergeron. And you also are not
going to get on the recording if you don't stay near a
microphone. There's one right there, behind your left
arm.

MR. BERGERON: Thank you.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. BERGERON:

Q How do you know my client?

A I met her over a year ago, after all this

happened, and been really good friends with her ever

since.,

Q Did I tell you what to say on the stand today?

A No.

Q But you want the Court to hear something; right?
A Yeah.

o) What would you like the Court --

A I've known Tennille for -- after this happened.

And she's been nothing but good to me, personally.

I don't agree with what she's done, but I think

it takes two. And I've been around a lot of 16-year-old
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boys, and I think there's one thing on their mind, so --

I don't think that she should be the only one
that gets in trouble for this, like you said, because
she's a teacher.

So I was with her -- this week I flew in, and I
have been with her family, and she has the most amazing
family I've ever met. They have been so good to me and my
daughter. And seeing her children the last couple days
has been tough. Her little girl is amazing, and -- sorry.

This morning was a very tough morning. I
actually had to walk out with her trying to say good-bye
to her kids, not knowing what was going to happen. It was
tough.

I Tove Tennille with all my heart. And she'll be
a friend of mine forever. I think we all make mistakes,
and I know I have made mine, and I would hope that people
wouldn't judge me for it.

I don't agree with what has been done, but I
think that every one of the boys should be here today,
too. If it was my kid that was involved, I know that he
would be here. I would make him be responsible for what
he's done, as well. 16, nowadays, is -- kids are a lot
older.

So that's all I have to say.
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THE COURT: Mr. Thompson, any questions?
Thank you. You may step down.

(The witness was excused.)
THE COURT: Your next witness, Mr. Bergeron.
MR. BERGERON: William Horn.
THE COURT: William Horn?

MR. BERGERON: Yes.

WILLIAM HORN,
called as a witness by the Defense,
who, having been first duly sworn, was examined

and testified as follows:

THE COURT: Please state your name.
THE WITNESS: My name is William Horn. I'm
Tennille's father.

THE COURT: Thank you. Go ahead, Mr. Bergeron.

DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. BERGERON:
Q Did you hear everything today?
A Yes, I did.
Q I know you're a little hard of hearing.

A Yes.
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Q I actually tried to speak up a little bit for
your benefit. And I want to be recorded, but I want to
make sure you heard.

A You did a good job.

Q Okay.: What would you like to say?

A Well, one thing I would like to say is my
daughter is a very good person; not because she's my
daughter, just -- this gal has got a long list of
accomplishments, some of them nationally known, some of
them state known. She's very intelligent. She's very
responsible. She's a good mother. She's a good daughter.
She's just a good gal.

And I think that the year-and-a-half she's been
through, she's spent her prison time 100 percent. This
gal has went through a living heck. It's broke our family
apart.

She has the most wonderful husband you could ever
find in the world. He stuck by her. She has two kids
that are -- that have academic achievements a mile long,
and them two kids need her.

So, Your Honor, I just hope you really consider
that Tennille is not a threat to anyone. She has always
been there to help anyone.

That pretty much condenses it.
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0
school?

A

Mr. Horn, where do your daughter's children go to

Well, they went to school in Wells. Now she's

home-schooling them, and she seems to be doing a real fine

job.
liked hel
much for

education

Tennille wanted to be a teacher, because she
ping kids. We never financially helped Tennille
her school, so she worked and got her own

on her own. So I've got to give her a lot of

points for that one.

Q

A

Q

A

Q
Where 1is

A
around th

Q
property?

A

Did we plan your testimony?

No, sir.

Where 1is Starr Valley?

Starr Valley is 35 miles north of Elko.

I'm sorry. I didn't ask that very artfully.
Starr Valley in relation to Wells?

Starr Valley is 16 miles from the Wells school,
e Ruby -- east Humboldt mountain range.

Is that in relation to Walter and Tennille's

Yes, it is. Tennille and Walter not only have

jobs, eight-hour jobs, but they also have a business of

their own. They run 300-and-some head of cattle, and they

do it by

themselves. They are self-made people. And last
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winter, Tennille not only home-schooled her kids, but she
fed them cattle on her own. And she didn't héve no
automatic feeders, she done it all by hand, alone.
Q Did that put a lot of pressure on their
relationship?
A Well, these kids know how to get by; they're a
strong family.
MR. BERGERON: Thank you, Mr. Horn.
THE COURT: Mr. Thompson, any questions?
MR. THOMPSON: No.
(The witness was excused.)
THE COURT: Your next witness, Mr. Bergeron.

MR. BERGERON: Daniel Romans.

DANIEL ROMANS,
called as a witness by the Defense,
who, having been first duly sworn, was examined

and testified as follows:

THE COURT: Please state your name.

THE WITNESS: My name is Daniel Romans.
THE COURT: Spell your last name, please.
THE WITNESS: R-o-m-a-n-s.

THE COURT: Thank you. Go ahead, Mr. Bergeron.
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DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. BERGERON:

Q What do you do for a living?

A I'm a pastor at Lighthouse Christian Fellowship.

Q Who do you counsel?

A Well, I don't counsel, I give biblical advice.

0 Thank you for reminding me.

A And I have only known Tennille and Willy -- I
didn't know his name was Walter -- since June of 2017. So

I didn't know Tennille at all, before; all I know who
Tennille is now.

I have known Tennille as a broken, remorseful --
she wanted desperately to apologize for her conduct. She
could apologize to her husband; she could apologize to her
children; she could apologize to everyone she knew, but
she was not allowed to apologize to anyone who she
couldn't contact because of legal definitions.

Q If I might, sometimes a lawyer puts their client
on the stand and asks questions open-endedly, like I did,
what I wanted to do was let the Court, and even the
prosecutor, know about all Qf what you do.

A Okay.

Q Don't you go to the jail?

A Yes. I have been a jail chaplain in Elko County

R
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since the started the program. I was the head chaplain
for Twin Falls County since 1994. And I have been
involved with prison and jail ministry, well, since 1994.

I have seen a lot of people that are regretful
for getting caught; and I have seen people say the right
things; and I have also seen people that were genuinely
broken and remorseful. And I would put Tennille in that
category.

They come -- I mean, they drive to Reno for the
counseling, but then they would come once a week, on a
Tuesday evening, to speak to me and my wife, for the
last -- since June of 2017. Just about every Tuesday.
Not every Tuesday, because there's been exceptions, but
just about every Tuesday.

I count Tennille and Willy as family, even though
I have only known them a short time. I have seen Tennille
interact with her children, with her husband. She's a
great mother. The kids love her dearly.

Been trying to work on Willy and Tennille's
relationship, their trust with one another, to get them
back on a normal keel.

It's hard, once trust is violated, to earn it
back. You can say things, but time has to be involved,

and they have been doing well.
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And I don't want to lecture anyone -- that's the

preacher voice coming out -- but I can see no benefit in
her spending time behind bars. Probation is not getting
off scot-free. It's very restrictive.

I thought she should have'went to trial, too.

But that's not my call. She wanted things over with.
She's tired of it. She's tired. She's been a victim for
a long time, a victim of her own crimes.

I mean, sin has a devastation on people. And the
people that perpetrate it are often the worst, only if
they are repentant.

Those that enjoy it and just keep going on it --
I mean, I can understand --

MR. THOMPSON: Your Honor, I'm going to object to
this l1ine. He can talk about the character, but --
(unintelligible.)

THE WITNESS: That's what happens when you put

a preacher on the stand.

THE COURT: It 1is a sentencing. I think he's
answered that question, Mr. Bergeron. Do you have any
other questions?

MR. BERGERON: Well, I did interrupt him, Your
Honor.

BY MR. BERGERON:
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Q Have you pretty much said what you wanted to say?
Or did I break your train of thought when the prosecutor
and the Court, when you kind of moved past: what is the
decision of the Court?

A Well, the only thing I have to say is that I do
believe that Tennille is different from all the stories 1
have heard in the past. That's all I know of her now.

MR. BERGERON: Thank you, sir.

THE COURT: Mr. Thompson, any questions?

MR. THOMPSON: No.

THE COURT: Thank you. You may step down.

(The witness was excused.)

THE COURT: Mr. Bergeron, do you have any other
witnesses?

MR. BERGERON: I do not, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. Thompson, do you have victims
who wish to make victim-impact statements?

MR. THOMPSON: I do.

THE COURT: Who would you like to call first?

MR. THOMPSON: OQOuida Madison.

/77

/77
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OUIDA MADISON,
called as a witness by the State,
who, having been first duly sworn, was examined

‘and testified as follows:

THE COURT: Counsel, will you approach for a
side-bar, please.

(Whereupon, counsel approached the bench.)

THE COURT: Will you please state your name,
and spell your first and last name.

THE WITNESS: My name is Ouida Madison:
O-u-i-d-a M-a-d-i-s-o0-n.

THE COURT: Thank you. Go ahead, Mr. Thompson.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. THOMPSON: |

Q Ms. Madison, have you prepared a statement that
you wanted to read?

A Yes.

Q You'll have to make sure that we catch that on
the microphone. Which on magnifies the voice? Both of
them?

THE COURT: Yes. Either one works.
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THE WITNESS: I'm the wife of Cary Robison, and
he wrote this letter. And he's having a difficult time to
do this; it seems like I am, too. But this is in his
words:

"My name 1is Terry Madison, father of Corbin
Madison. I'd 1ike to tell you a little bit about my son.
He was a hard-working young man. He loved working on the
Wright and the Hooper Ranches. And also he was a 4-year
letterman in three sports, as well as FFA and Senior Class
Vice President.

He wanted to stay in Wells. He loved fhe small-
town life. But after what Ms. Whitaker did to him, he was
embarrassed to be around town, with people always asking
him about it.

He graduated on June 9th, packed up, and moved to
Reno on June 12th, and went to work for Tesla on
June 14th.

After two months, he hated Reno and his job. The
demons she put in his head, he just could not find a way
to cope, and he took his own life, rather than to come
home and have to deal with this court case and all the
questions about it.

His senior class voted him the most

unforgettable. And now he is gone forever, thanks to Mrs.
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Whitaker.
Please find some justice for my son.
Thank you, Terry Madison."

BY MR. THOMPSON:

0 Mrs. Madison, just to be clear, those June dates
that you were referencing, is that 20187

A Yes, sir.

Q Do you have an opinion as to what kind of
sentencing you'd like the Judge do, or would you just like
to leave it to her discretion?

A I'll leave it to your discretion.

MR. THOMPSON: Is there anything else you'd

like the Court to know?

A It's just been really hard on the town, and the
people that I work with, and the friends and families of
these victims.

These four boys were actually friends, and every
one of them, they graduated and they left town because
they just couldn't take it anymore. That's why they're
not here. They just want to move on. But, unfortunately,
ours couldn't move on. He had just way too many demons in
him. And he just couldn't take it anymore. And now we
will never have him again.

MR. THOMPSON: Thank you.
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THE COURT: Any questions, Mr. Bergeron?

MR. BERGERON: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you.

(The witness was excused.)

"MR. BERGERON: May we have a moment?

THE COURT: Yes.

Your next witness, Mr. Thompson.

MR. THOMPSON: Jennifer Hooper. And if her
husband could come up and stand next to her.

THE COURT: Mr. Hooper, it's my understanding
you're here for moral support. But you may need to
finish your wife's statement; is that correct?

MR. HOOPER: Possibly.

THE COURT: So I'd like you both to be placed
under oath, then. Raise your right hand, please.

(Both Mr. & Mrs. Hooper were placed under
oath.)

JENNIFER HOOPER,
called as a witness by the State,
who, having been first duly sworn, was examined

and testified as follows:

THE COURT: Please state your name.

THE WITNESS: My name is Jennifer Hooper.
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THE COURT: And is Jennifer spelled the usual
way?
THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE COURT: Thank you. Go ahead, Mr. Thompson.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. THOMPSON:

¢ Ms. Hooper, do you have a statement that you
prepared that you'd like to read?

A Yes, I do. And it's regarding the impact this
has had on my family, and the whole Hooper family.

Mrs. Whitaker, the defendant, was a beloved

family friend, a neighbor to my husband and I, as well as

our five children.

These crimes that Mrs. Whitaker committed against

these minor children over the years has been devastating
to our community of Wells and outlying areas. It's
negatively impacted our boys, students, boys and girls,
teachers, coaches, school, siblings, neighbors,
friendships and families.

I would like to describe the impact on our
family. It[seemed to change everything in our community,

to us. We had to consider whether to attend many events

in our community with our family, to avoid being in her or

20k

73



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

her family's presence, many times changing the route we
would drive, or the activity.

The incidents have been present 1in our minds on a
daily basis for over a year now.

The defendant's acts have made me question my
trust in teachers, the school, and in friends.

We feel the school failed to protect these boys
from these acts by Mrs. Whitaker.

It has tainted our memories of our five children
in elementary school.

We did not want our younger daughter to attend
school in Wells, where most of the students knew of these
actions between Mrs. Whitaker and her student victims.

We did not want her to be subjected to the
dramatic fallout from these personal, dramatic, and
heinous crimes.

My daughter had a close friendship with Mrs.
Whitaker, and was a life-long friend of her son. My
daughter's trust in the defendant was destroyed. Her
heart was broken, and trust and innocence was lost at the
same time.

It was too painful for us to have her return to
school in Wells, and she left her friends. After home

schooling for the school year last year, she's now
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attending school in Elko.

In addition to the impact she has faced with
school and home, she has had to comfort friends that have
also been negatively impacted from these crimes that Mrs.
Whitaker has committed.

The impact of the defendant's crimes on my son
began at an early age. Mrs. Whitaker was his 4th and 6th
Grade teacher. She treated him as a teacher's pet, which
I mistakenly thought she did, because I was a valued
friend.

In 6th Grade, we pulled my son from her class, as
he became too disruptive to the entire class. Mrs.
Whitaker's cheerful, extremely emotional response, which
was also witnessed by the principal, was not normal. She
had made him feel special from an early age, which was not
unique to my son, it is a common thread in how she treats
young boys.

This was the beginning of her manipulation of
him. We had no idea to what extent this unhealthy
relationship would become, or to what level it would
escalate.

The four victims involved were assigned aides in
Mrs. Whitaker's classroom, which is an elective in Wells,

because there are not many electives available. So he was
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an aide to Mrs. Whitaker.

She was a person in power over these boys. She
violated that power and trust, and used it against these
boys, and some girls, as well. She set out to ruin proms,
stalked them at activities and games, taunt girlfriends,
threaten any more relationships for these boys.

I feel awful for many of the boys and girls that
experienced her extreme level of manipulation. Can you
put yourselves in the girls' -- shoes of these young
girls, fighting for their dates and boyfriends with a
mature teacher, who had power over them as students? It
was very intimidating.

Who, additionally, was providing alcohol for
their social events. And as a result, some kids were very
dangerously intoxicated, including our child.

Mrs. Whitaker was an adult teacher whom, as a
predator, manipulated these boys by broken promises, lies,
threats, and bribes, and traded sex for alcohol and
baseball caps.

What kind of impact does this have on a kid? Do
they feel used? Shame? Immoral? Guilt? The answer is:
A1l of the above. And they have to carry that around
through 1life as a result of her manipulation. They most

likely feel more guilt for her family than she does her
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own, I think, at times.

S0 much pain has been inflicted on us, like
others in our community. Children have been hurt:
students have been violated; innocence widely spread has

been lost; careers have been changed; friendships, adult

'and children's, have been lost; families have been broken:

and school memories tarnished.

But the most pain -- and more pain over -- was
our biggest fear realized, the biggest heartbreak of all,
the last of these boys' close friends, one of her victims,
a loss we can never replace, and a hole in our heart we
can't fiil.

Complete devastation to these boys, our families,
and our community. How does this affect a child? It
affects them in a variety of ways, which none of them are
positive.

The impact of these incidents on these boys is
and will manifest in different ways, now and through time.

One of the most agonizing parts of the last
year-and-a-half for these four victims is that she has
shown no remorse or shame for her actions.

Mrs. Whitaker has appeared nonchalant, without
remorse, trying to attend events where the victims and

their families may be present.
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She seems to have no understanding of the pains
she has caused, and how strongly the victims and their
families simply do not want to see her or be around her
anywhere.,

She's brazen, and not sincerely sorry for what
she's done. The defendant does not take responsibility
for her actions; and, therefore, is a brazen threat to the
youth 1in our community.

She does not want her criminal acts against these
boys to infringe on how she lives her life, at the expense
and risk to others.

She has not changed her behavior, nor do I
believe she will. And I don't believe she can be trusted.

I'm not sure if probation is the right thing to
deter her behavior. 1I'd ask the Judge to decide whether
probation or prison or jail is necessary, to keep these
boys safe in the community.

MR. THOMPSON: Is there anything else you'd

like to say?

THE COURT: Mr. Bergeron, any questions?

MR. BERGERON: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you. You may step down.

(The witness was excused.)

THE COURT: Your next witness, Mr. Thompson.
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MR. THOMPSON: We have no further witnesses.

THE COURT: There were many arguments made by
Mr. Bergeron regarding constitutionality of the
statute, and possible overreaching by the District
Attorney'ss Office. Those are not issues that this
Court can decide at a sentencing. He may have a remedy
in a Federal Court, but it's too late in the State
Court, for this Court to address those issues.

Mr. Bergeron argued that Mr. Ing's psychosexual
evaluation said that Ms. Whitaker's risk to the
community was as low as any he had ever seen. That's a
misstatement, Mr. Bergeron. The statement is: "Ms.
Whitaker's risk to the community is as low as she could
possibly score, using the actuarial tables described in
his report." That's different than "as low as any he's
ever seen."

Mr. Ing was treating Ms. Whitaker for several
months before he performed the psychosexual evaluation.
I have never seen a psychosexual evaluation from a
treating practitioner, so I looked at the statute to
see if that's permissible. It's not excluded. But
because of that, I do question his objectivity.

Mr. Thompson is correct, that retribution and

deterrence are things the Court should consider in
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sentencing.

I also want to state to everyone here that the
law treats women who commit crimes against boys, the
same as 1t treats men who commit crimes against girls.
As it should. The boys-will-be-boys argument, does not
fly. That is not the law.

The defendant will stand and face the Court.

The Court will order that a judgment of
conviction be entered against the defendant, finding
her guilty of Counts I through IV, all counts of sexual
conduct between a school employee or volunteer and a
pupil, a Category-C felony.

The defendant shall pay the $25.00
administrative-assessment fee, and a $150.00
genetic-testing fee.

Ms. Macias, do I need to order payment for the
psychosexual evaluation?

THE DIVISION: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Pursuant to NRS 176.0931, the
defendant is sentenced to lifetime supervision, after
any period of probation or any term of imprisonment and
any period of release on parole.

Ms. Whitaker, you have received the benefit of

your bargain by having these counts pled down to four
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counts.

I'm sorry for your family, your children,

your

parents. You are their only child. But you did this

to these people, to your family, and to the victims,

nobody else.
You have hurt other people's children, not

your own.

just

You are not the victim here. These four boys

are the victims here, and their families.

I'm going to advise the observers again to
behave appropriately, or you will be removed.

For Count I, the defendant is sentenced to

maximum term of 60 months, with minimum parole

d

eligibility of 24 months, in the Nevada Department of

Corrections, with credit for two days, previously

served.

For Count II, the defendant 1is sentenced to a

maximum term of 60 months, with minimum parole

eligibility of 24 months, in the Nevada Department of

Corrections. That sentence will be served
consecutively with the sentence for Count I.
For Count III, the defendant is sentenced

maximum term of 60 months, with minimum parole

to a

eligibility of 24 months, in the Nevada Department of
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Corrections. That sentence shall be served
consecutively with the sentences in Counts I and II.

For Count IV, the defendant is sentenced to a
maximum term of 60 months, with minimum parole
eligibility of 24 months, in of Nevada Department of
Corrections. That sentence shall be served
consecutively to the sentences for Counts I, II and
I11.

The maximum aggregate sentence for all counts
is 240 months, and the minimum aggregate for the four
counts is 96 months.

Ms. Whitaker, you have a duty to register
initially with the local law-enforcement agency of the
jurisdiction in which you are convicted. You must do
so before being released from incarceration. You have
a duty to register in the state during any period in
which you're a resident of this state, or a
non-resident who is a student or worker within the
state, and a time within which you are required to
register, pursuant to NRS 179D.450.

You have a duty to register in any other
jurisdiction, including, without limitation, any
jurisdiction outside the United States, during any

period which you're a resident of the other
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jurisdiction, or a non-resident who's a student or
worker within the other jurisdiction.

IT you move from this state to another
jurisdiction, including, without limitation, any
jurisdiction outside of the United States, you have a
duty to register with the appropriate law-enforcement
agency 1in the other jurisdiction.

You have the duty to notify a law-enforcement
agency 1n whose jurisdiction you formerly resided, in
person or in writing, if you change the address at
which you reside, including if you move from this state
to another jurisdiction, or change the primary address
at which you are a student or worker.

The record will reflect that the Court Clerk is
handing the defendant a copy of the requirements for
registration.

Ms. Whitaker, you need had to read that
carefully. If you have any questions, ask your
attorney or ask me.

MR. BERGERON: Do you want us to read it right
NOwW?

THE COURT: Yes.

Those last two pages are for the Court. You

need to sign the one that Mr. Bergeron has.

2\
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That's what I need to sign, Mr. Bergeron.

MR. BERGERON: Thank you for clarifying, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: Ms. Whitaker, do you have any
questions about the registration requirements?

The record will reflect that the defendant has
read and signed the notification of registration
requirement.

The most important job of this Court 1is the
protection of the public. Under the circumstances of
this case, the only way I could see to do that was to
incarcerate Ms. Whitaker.

Counsel, are there any questions?

MR. THOMPSON: Not from the State.

THE COURT: Mr. Bergeron?

MR. BERGERON: May I have a moment?
(Unintelligible.)

THE COURT: Okay. We're adjourned.

/17
/17
/17
/17
Iy
/77
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STATE OF NEVADA )

COUNTY OF ELKO )

I, RANDI LEE WALKER, Certified Shorthand
Reporter of the Second Judicial District Court of the
State of Nevada, in and for the County of Washoe, do
hereby certify:

That as a Certified Court Reporter, 1in the
State of Nevada, I listened to the recorded disk from
Elko County, Nevada, and thereafter transcribed the
same into typewriting as herein appears;

That the foregoing transcript is a full,
true and correct transcription of my listening and
typing of said proceedings, to the best of my
abilities.

DATED: At Reno, Nevada, this 2nd day of

December, 2018.

/s/ Randi Lee Walker
RANDI LEE WALKER, CCR No. 137

2\
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[| CASE NO. CR-FP-17-3893
DEPT. NO. 1

IN THE FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF ELKO

THE STATE OF NEVADA, JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION
[ (No Contest Plea - Incarceration)
Plaintiff,
V.
TENNILLE RAE WHITAKER,

Defendant.

On the 30™ day of April, 2018, above-named Defendant, TENNILLE RAE WHITAKER, AKA
TENNILLE RAEHORN-WHITAKER, AKA TENNILLE RAE HORN [who is further described as follows:
Date of Birth: 2/12/1977; (age 41); Place of Birth: Elko, Nevada] was arraigned and entered a plea of no
contest to the crimes described below and as more fully set forth in the criminal information filed herein.
Legal counsel present at Defendant’s arraignment were Byron Bergeron, Esq., representing Defendant, and
Mark S. Mills, Elko County Deputy District Attorney, representing the State. At the time above-named
Defendant entered her plea of no contest, this Court informed her of all applicable constitutional rights, the
elements of the crimes charged, and the maximum possible penalty for said crimes. After being so informed,
above-named Defendant stated that she understood all of the applicable constitutional rights, the elements
of the crimes charged and the maximui: possible penalty for said crimes. This Court then made a finding
that Defendant had enieved her plea freely and voluntarily, and with full understanding of her constitutional

rights, the nature of the charges and the consequences of her plea.
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DESCRIPTION OF CONVICTIONS

COUNT 1:  SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN SCHOOL EMPLOYEE OR VOLUNTEER
AND A PUPIL, A CATEGORY C FELONY AS DEFINED BY NRS. 201.540.
(NOC 51067).

COUNT2:  SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN SCHOOL EMPLOYEE OR VOLUNTEER
AND A PUPIL, A CATEGORY C FELONY AS DEFINED BY NRS. 201.540.
(NOC 51067).

COUNT 3:  SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN SCHOOL EMPLOYEE OR VOLUNTEER
AND A PUPIL, A CATEGORY C FELONY AS DEFINED BY NRS. 201.540.
(NOC 51067).

COUNT 4:  SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN SCHOOL EMPLOYEE OR VOLUNTEER
AND A PUPIL, A CATEGORY C FELONY AS DEFINED BY NRS. 201.540.
(NOC 51067).

On the 4" day of October, 2018, above-named Defendant personally appeared before this Court for
the purpose of sentencing and entry of a final judgment of conviction in this matter. This Court, the State,
and defense counsel had previously received a Pre-Sentence Investigation Report which had been prepared
by the Division of Parole and Probation. Legal counsel present at Defendant’s sentencing were Byron
Bergeron, Esq., representing Defendant, and Chad B. Thompson, Elko County Chief Criminal Deputy
District Attorney, representing the State. Also present was Sara Macias, representing the Division of Parole
and Probation.

After hearing from all parties and allowing Defendant an opportunity to personally address the Court,
this Court finds that the appmﬁriate judgment in this case is and shall be as follows:

SENTENCE TERMS

For the conviction of Count 1, Defendant is sentenced to a maximum term of
60 months in the Nevada Department of Corrections with minimum parole
eligibility after 24 months. Defendant is credited with 2 days heretofore
served as computed to and including the date of this sentencing (the 4™ day
of October, 2018).

For the conviction of Count 2, Defendant is sentenced to a maximum term of
60 months in the Nevada Department of Corrections with minimum parole
eligibility after 24 months. Defendant is credited with 0 days heretofore
served as computed to and including the date of this sentencing (the 4™ day of
October, 2018). Said sentence shall be served consecutively with the sentence

in Count 1.
/7

2,0




o

=« RV - V8

//

For the conviction of Count 3, Defendant is sentenced to a maximum term of
60 months in the Nevada Department of Corrections with minimum parole
cligibility after 24 months. Defendant is credited with 0 days heretofore
served as computed to and including the date of this sentencing (the 4" day of
October, 2018). Said sentence shall be served consecutively with the
sentences in Counts 1 and 2.

For the conviction of Count 4, Defendant is sentenced to a maximum term of
60 months in the Nevada Department of Corrections with minimum parole
eligibility after 24 months. Defendant is credited with 0 days heretofore
served as computed to and including the date of this sentencing (the 4" day of
October, 2018). Said sentence shall be served consecutively with the
sentences in Counts 1, 2 and 3.

The maximum aggregate for all counts is 240 months, and the minimum
aggregate for all counts is 96 months.

Pursuant toNRS 176.0931, Defendant is sentenced to lifetime supervision after
any period of probation or any term of imprisonment and any period of release
on parole.

FINANCIAL AND RESTITUTION REQUIREMENTS

Defendant is ordered to pay the administrative fee in the amount of $25.00
as required by NRS 176.062, and a judgment is rendered against Defendant
in that amount. Said amount shall be deducted from any cash bail monies
posted by Defendant before any remainder is returned upon the exoneration
of bail. It is further ordered that if Defendant has any monies in the
possession of the Elko County Jail, that said monies shall be delivered
directly to the Elko County Clerk and applied to this fee.

Defendant is ordered to pay the $3.00 administrative assessment on each
count for purposes of obtaining a biological specimen and conducting a
genetic marker analysis, and a judgment is rendered against Defendant in that
amount. It is further ordered that if Defendant has any monies in the
possession of the Elko County Jail, that said monies shall be delivered
directly to the Elko County Clerk and applied to this fee.

Defendant is ordered to pay the genetic testing fee of $150.00 as required by
NRS 176.0915. Said amount shall be deducted from any cash bail monies
posted by Delendant before any remainder is returned upon the exoneration
of bail. It is further ordered that if Defendant has any monies in the
possession of the Elko County Jail, that said monies shall be delivered
directly to the Elko County Clerk and applied to this fee.

OTHER REQUIREMENTS

Defendant is required to register as a sex offender pursuant to NRS 179D.441
through NRS 179D.495, prior to being released from custody.
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BAIL

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED: that any bail bond previously posted for said Defendant shall be
exonerated. Any cash bail for said Defendant shall be applied first to fines and/or costs due pursuant to this
Judgmentand, unless otherwise agreed to by the parties, any amount remaining shall be returned by the clerk
to the person who posted said cash bail.

ENTRY OF JUDGMENT

ITIS FURTHER ORDERED that the clerk of the above-entitled Court enter this JUDGMENT OF
CONVICTION as part of the record in the above-entitled matter.

SO ORDERED this __.§~ day of October, 2018.

V0 wa 5Bt

NANCY PORPE
DISTRICT JUDGE - DEPARTMENT 1
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CERTIFICATE OF HAND DELIVERY

Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I certify that I am an employee of the Fourth Judicial District Court,
Department 1, and that ori this ___) _October, 2018, I personally hand delivered a file stamped copy of the
foregoing JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION (No Contest Plea - Incarceration) addressed to:

Dept. of Parole and Probation Elko County Sheriff’s Office

3920 E. Idaho Street 775 W. Silver Street

Elko, NV 89801 Elko, NV 89801

[Box in Clerk’s Office] {1 File Stamped Copy and 1 Certified Copy}
[Box in Clerk’s Office]

Tyler J. Ingram, Esq.

Elko County District Attorney

540 Court Street, 2™ Floor

Elko, NV 89801 e
[Box in Clerk’s Office] /i

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), 1 certify that I am an employee of the Fourth Judicial District Court,
Department 1, and that on this _5__ day of October, 2018, I deposited for mailing in the U.S. mail at Elko,
Nevada, postage prepaid, a copy of the foregoing JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION (No Contest Plea -
Incarceration) addressed to:

Byron Bergeron, Esq.
Attorney at Law

432 Court Street
Reno, NV 89801

WWM
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CERTIFICATE OF ELECTRONIC SERVICE

Pursuant to NRCP 5(b),  hereby certify that I am an employee of the Fourth Judicial District Court,
Department 1, Elko, Nevada, and that on this Q day of October, 2018, I caused to be delivered via
electronic-mail, a file stamped copy of the foregoing JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION (No Contest Plea-
Incarceration), along with a copy of Defendant’s Pre-Sentence Investigation Report addressed to:

Nevada Department of Corrections

Offender Management Division, Sentence

Management

Attn: Shelly Williams, Records Supervisor

E-mail: skwilliams@doc.nv.gov

Attn: Kristy Rodriguez

E-mail: kwinters@doc.nv.gov

Attn: Mary Gourlay /)
E-Mail: mgourlay@doc.nv.gov / /

AKX
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Byron Bergeron Esq. #7598
432 Court Street

Reno Nevada 89501
7752293736
bbergeronlaw@live.com

4 £

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF ELKO, FOUTH JUDICIAL DI TRICT COURT,

STATE OF NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA, ) Case No. CR FP-17-3893
) Dept. 1
Plaintiff, )
)
VS. )
)
TENNILE WHITAKER, )
)
Defendant. )
)
NOTICE OF APPEAL

Notice is hereby given that defendant TENNILE WHITAKER hereby appeals from the

judgment of conviction entered on October the 5%, 2018

D GV e /Eﬂf// / S ]
Byron Bergeron Esq. #7598
432 Court Street
Reno Nevada 89501

7752293736
Bbergeronlaw@live.com
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I, Byron Bergeron, not a party to this action, affirm under penalty of perjury pursuant to

NRCP 4, that on October 11th, 2018, I sent in the mail via the United States Postal Service to:

Chad Thompson
Elko Deputy District Attorney
540 Court Street Elko Nevada

2" Floor 89801

DATED: /(O NA [ [[ P D¢ g

By:

/c,/”’"'? o

Byron Bergeron

z‘ZSo




PGM ID-DSPDOC
DATE 10/29/18

TYPE: FELONY - AGAINST PERSONS

—— - o o G e o

CURRENT: PORTER, NANCY

PL 001: NEVADA, STATE OF
VS.

DF 002: WHITAKER, TENNILLE RAE

ELKO COUNTY COURT SYSTEM
CASE#: EC DC CR-FP-17-0003893

PAGE 1

TIME 9:42

STATUS: CLOSED 10/08/18
--PARTY #--

------------ ATTORNEYS-------meeuno

THOMPSON, CHAD

BERGERON, BYRON

DOB: 2/12/77 BUTKO, KARLA K
CHARGE 1: FP SEX CONDUCT SCHOOL NRS 201.540
DISPOSITION: JUDG OF CONV - NOLO DATE: 10/05/18
CHARGE 2: FP SEX CONDUCT SCHOOL NRS 201.540
DISPOSITION: JUDG OF CONV - NOLO DATE: 10/05/18
CHARGE 3: FP SEX CONDUCT SCHOOL NRS 201.540
DISPOSITION: JUDG OF CONV - NOLO DATE: 10/05/18
CHARGE 4: FP SEX CONDUCT SCHOOL NRS 201.540
DISPOSITION: JUDG OF CONV - NOLO DATE: 10/05/18
CHARGE 5: A DC GEN ANALYSIS ASSMT DC GEN ANALYSIS
DISPOSITION: JUDG OF CONV - NOLO DATE: 10/05/18
ASSMNT 6: A DC GENETIC MARKER ASSMT DC GENETIC
DISPOSITION: JUDG OF CONV - NOLO DATE: 10/05/18
MAJOR EVENTS
1/23/18 FILE CHECKED OUT BY: PECK 000
1/25/18 ARRAIGNMENT (DC) FOR: 4/30/18 15:00 DC1SEC 002
1/25/18 FILE CHECKED IN BY: MERKLEY 000
4/24/18 FILE CHECKED OUT BY: FLEURY 000
5/16/18 SENTENCING FOR: 10/04/18 13:30 DC1SEC 002
5/16/18 FILE CHECKED IN BY: JALLEN 000
9/26/18 FILE CHECKED OUT BY: FLEURY 000
10/05/18 FILE CHECKED IN BY: PECK 000
10/08/18 FILE CLOSED JAKEMAN 000
10/08/18 DATE CLOSED DISPOSITION: FILE CLOSED
FILING PROCEEDINGS
DATE EVENT COMMENT EVENT DATE ENTRY PERSON/P
6/06/17 BOOKING INFORMTN RPT MERKLEY 002

23)



PGM ID-DSPDOC ELKO COUNTY COURT SYSTEM PAGE 2

DATE 10/29/18 CASE#: EC DC CR-FP-17-0003893 TIME 9:42
6/07/17 BAIL BOND MERKLEY 002
8S-250-00362 - $160,000.00
6/07/17 RECEIPT(S) MERKLEY 002
#25030
6/07/17 AGREEMENT TO APPEAR MERKLEY 002
and Waive Extradition
8/29/17 CRIMINAL COMPLAINT MERKLEY 001
9/05/17 FAX MERKLEY 002
OF WAIVER OF FIFTEEN DAY RULE, WAIVER OF INITIAL
APPEARANCE
11/06/17 WAIVER OF PRELIM EXM MERKLEY 002
11/07/17 ORD BINDING OVER -DC MERKLEY 000
11/09/17 FILE OPEN - DC CRIM MERKLEY 002
FILE OPENED - DC CRIMINAL
11/09/17 RECORD OF CT PROC. MERKLEY 000
11/16/17 CRIMINAL INFORMATION RODRIGUEZ001

Certified copy issued AND PLACED ON FF'S DESK @10:28

12/27/17 CERTIFIED COPY ISSUE DEMARS 000
OF: CRIMINAL INFO
TO: DEPT OF EDUCATION PER THEIR RQST

1/23/18 FILE CHECKED OUT BY: PECK 000
DC I for review/signature

1/25/18 ARRAIGNMENT (DC) FOR: 4/30/18 15:00 DC1SEC 002

1/25/18 FILE CHECKED IN BY: MERKLEY 000

4/24/18 FILE CHECKED OUT BY: FLEURY 000

DC I for review/signature

4/27/18 ORDER PECK 000
REGARDING MEDIA REQ
(FILE CHECKED OUT SENT PLEADING TO DC1)

4/27/18 REQUEST PECK 000
MEDIA
(FILE CHECKED OUT SENT PLEADING TO DC 1)

4/27/18 OFFER OF PROOF PECK 001
WITH RESPECT OT THE DEF TENNILLE RAE WHITAKER'S



PGM ID-DSPDOC
DATE 10/29/18

4/30/18

4/30/18

4/30/18

4/30/18

4/30/18

4/30/18

5/04/18

5/16/18

5/16/18

5/18/18

8/14/18

9/26/18

9/26/18

9/26/18

9/28/18

9/28/18

ELKO COUNTY COURT SYSTEM
CASE#: EC DC CR-FP-17-0003893

PROPOSED PLEA OF NOLO CONTENDERE
(FILE CHECKED OUT SENT PLEADING TO DC 1)

HRG - DC1-ARRAIGN
MEMO OF PLEA AGREMNT
# OF PAGES 8
(FILE CHECKED OUT SENT PLEADING TO DC 1)
ORD RE:
MEDIA REQUEST FILED IN OPEN COURT AT 3:19 PM
TRANS CONF RPT - P&P

MISC PLEADING
ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTS TO BE CONSIDERED AT TIME OF
SENTENCING UNDER SEAL
(FILE CHECKED OUT SENT PLEADING TO DC 1)

CONFIDENTIAL REPORT
(FILE CHECKED OUT SENT PLEADING TO DC 1)

FAX SENT
FAXED DOCKET TO MARNI W/P&P PER HER RQST

SENTENCING FOR: 10/04/18 13:30
SENTENCING

FILE CHECKED IN BY:

LETTER FROM
DEMAR DAHL

NOTICE OF

VICTIM PACT STATEMENT

FILE CHECKED OUT BY:
DC I for review/signature

STATEMENT
-EF'S STATEMENT TO BE CONSIDERED AT TIME OF
SENTENCING UNDER SEAL (MISC LETTERS IN SUPPORT OF
DEF) FILE CK'D OUT. PLACED PLEADING IN DC1'S P/U BOX
AT 12:30 PM.

NOTICE OF
VICTIM IMPACT STATEMENT. FILE CK'D OUT. PLACED
PLEADING IN DC1'S P/U BOX AT 3:05 PM.

NOTICE OF
VICTIM IMPACT STATEMENT

STATEMENT

PAGE 3
TIME 9:42
FLEURY 002
PECK 002
FLEURY 000
FLEURY 002
PECK 000
PECK 000
DEMARS 000
DC1SEC 002
JALLEN 000
PECK 002
PECK 002
FLEURY 000
DEMARS 002
DEMARS 001
PECK 002
RODRIGUEZO0OO1

227



PGM ID-DSPDOC
DATE 10/29/18

10/01/18

10/03/18

10/04/18

10/04/18

10/04/18

10/05/18

10/05/18

10/05/18 BOND EXONERATED

10/08/18 PAYMENT/AR UPDATE

DISPOSITION:

NOTICE OF

CONFIDENTIAL

HRG - DC1-SENTENCE

NOTIFICATN 176.0926

NOTICE OF CONVICTION

FILE CHECKED IN BY:

JUDG OF CONV

ELKO COUNTY COURT SYSTEM
CASE#: EC DC CR-FP-17-0003893

PAGE

NOTICE OF VICTIM IMPACT STATEMENT
PLEADING PLACED IN DC1 PICK UP BOX @8:31 ON 10/1/18

PECK
VICTIM IMPACT STATEMENT
(FILE CHECKED OUT SENT PLEADING TO DC 1)

TREATMENT SUMMARY UPDATE FILED UNDER SEAL
PLEADING PLACED IN DC1 PICK UP BOX @11:12

FLEURY

FLEURY
NOTIFICATION OF REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS
FILED IN OPEN COURT @ 3:45PM

FLEURY
FILED IN OPEN COURT @ 3:45PM

PECK

- NOLO

CT 1-CT 4: SEXUAL CONDUCT BETWEEN SCHOOL EMPLOYEE OR
VOLUNTEER AND A PUPIL, A CATEGORY C FELONY AS
DEFINED BY NRS 201.540 (NOC 51067): 24-60 months
NDOC w/credit for 2 days served as of 10/4/18 for Ct
1, 24-60 months NDOC w/credit for 0 days served for
Ct 2, consecutive to Ct 1, 24-60 months NDOC
w/credit for 0 days served for Ct 3, consecutive to
Cts 1 and 2, 24-60 months NDOC w/credit for 0 days
served for Ct 4, consecutive to Cts 1, 2 and 3,
maximum aggregate is 240 months and minimum
aggregate is 96 months, lifetime supervision, $25
admin fee, $3 genetic admin fee, $150 genetic
testing fee, register as sex offender (6 pgs)
copy issued)

JAKEMAN

(cert

JAKEMAN
§S5-250-00362 - $160,000.00 Certificate of Discharge
mailed to Aawsome Bail Bonds on 10/9/18

JAKEMAN
Current A/R Account Info

A/R SOURCE BALANCES A/R ACCOUNT BALANCES

Amount Due .00 Amount Due .00
Amount Paid $178.00 Amount Paid $178.00
Susp/Wrt Off .00 Susp/Wrt Off .00
SRC NOW DUE .00 TOT NOW DUE .00
Last Pmt Date 10/10/18 Last Pmt Date 10/10/18
Last Pmt Amt $178.00 Last Pmt Amt $178.00
Next Due Date 11/01/18 Past Due .00

020

4

TIME 9:42

001

RODRIGUEZ002

002

002

600

000

002

002

002



PGM ID-DSPDOC ELKO COUNTY COURT SYSTEM
DATE 10/29/18 CASE#: EC DC CR-FP-17-0003893

10/08/18

10/08/18

10/08/18

10/08/18

10/10/18

Min Mon Pmt
TRANSFER TO A/R TRANSFER TO A/R

TRANS CONF RPT-C REP

Notice of Conviction, Notification of Registration
Requirements and JOC faxed to Sex Offender Registry

TRANS CONF RPT - DPS

JOC, Criminal Info, Criminal Complaint and Booking

Sheet faxed to Dept of Public Safety
FILE CLOSED

PAYMENT/AR UPDATE Amt $178.00

DISPOSITION: PAYMENTS-CK OLD SYS Rcpt# 10007

10/15/18

10/17/18

10/17/18

10/17/18

10/29/18

10/29/18

NOTE ADDED TO FILE

KARLA BUTKO CALLED TO ADVISE THAT BYRON BERGERON HAD
MAILED A NOTICE OF APPEAL AND SHE WILL BE MAILING

THE CASE APPEAL STATEMENT.

NOTICE OF APPEAL
FILED AT 11 A.M. BY BYRON BERGERON'S OFFICE ON
10/17/2018
COPIES MAILED IN SASE ON 10/29/2018

CASE APPEAL STATEMNT
FILED BY KARLA BUTKO'S OFFICE
COPIES IN SASE ON 10/29/2018

MOTION

FOR TRANSCRIPTS FOR APPEAL; JAVS RECORDING BY KARLA

BUTKO'S OFFICE, COPIES IN SASE ON 10/29/2018

NOTE ADDED TO FILE

RETURNED NOTICE OF APPEAL SUBMITTED BY KARLA BUTKO'S
OFFICE PER HER REQUEST AS A NOTICE OF APPEAL HAD

ALREADY BEEN FILED BY MR. BERGERON'S OFFICE
NOTICE OF APPEAL WAS RETURNED UNFILED
ENTRY BY JALLEN

CLERK'S CERTIFICATE
FOR SUPREME COURT APPEAL

PAGE 5

TIME 9:42
$25.00

JAKEMAN 002
JAKEMAN 002
JAKEMAN 002
JAKEMAN 000
PECK 002
MERKLEY 000
JALLEN 002
JALLEN 002
JALLEN 002
MERKLEY 002
JALLEN 000

6/06/17

10/05/18

BONDS
BOND-SURETY SURETY BOND (ORG AMT: 160,000.00 RCPT:
POSTED BY: AAWSOME BAIL BONDS
BOND-EXONERATED

25030 JAKEMAN

JAKEMAN

32\



PGM ID-DSPDOC ELKO COUNTY COURT SYSTEM PAGE 6
DATE 10/29/18 CASE#: EC DC CR-FP-17-0003893 TIME 9:42

T T TT T R AN Mh AR em mm o mm n o S M M o e e G e s e e on M G G ot R e e T e e e Om S S S G S WS e G e e e e e M e e o o e N G m e o v e e - .

PEOPLE INVOLVED

PERSON
ENTERED PERSON TYPE STATUS ENTRY PERSON
10/29/18 BUTKO, KARLA K ATT ACTIVE MERKLEY

Rt



s T

ON

“UI 0O0B0UD 0] O0F JO SIB9A
(G1) U291 Uey SS3] 9q 0 poyUaSaIdar ST OUM JO 998 JO SIBdA (G ) UddJ1J Uey) SSI]

ST OUM UOSIod IOUJOUE SIOT0S U0sIod 9y} “Iop[0 10 90¢ JO SIBdA (g]) USSISIo surog (1)
T P10 © (BIM AJUSJSpUI [eNXas SIIII0) U0sIad V (B

PITUO € YJIA AJU3J3pUl [enxos

(TTOC 155 M)

OTI-¥1-S § NNV dd0D 4V

SESUBHIY

ON

.| SO0UBISWNOIID UIB1Ia0 Ul] 1901J0 UONEqOId 0 - 901j0d

2 pue "uonIsod Je[TWIS A[[eLJUeISANS € 10 "JoISAQEq "WI9II] PE UeIpIens ‘JSIS0]0YOAS
3SINU "I0120p IopEd] SNOISI[A1 "T0Jel}STUIIpPE [00YJS “J0[9SUN0d “Iayoea} ‘Yorod ‘1aped]
mMoos ‘1opes] ynok ‘rofoidwe ue,, :se  Auoyne Jo wonisod,, sautyep 0T 1H 11 SV

"6$'Z1 SV ut papiaoxd se ofqeysrund

ST pue AUO[aJ PalISSB[OUN U ST 99X39p ISIIJ 9y} UI JOUTW © JO dsnge [enxas (q)
"TITOTA Y] 03 UOTIE[a] Ul AJLIOYjne JO UoNISOd € sa1dnodo apuapo o) (9)

JO SWTIOIA AU} ISA0 AJLIOYINE SBY ISPUILJO ) pue ISPUSJJO

3} Se PJOYISNOY SWLS U} UI SUIPISI ST SUSJJO Sy} JO W) oY) 1 WNoIA oY) (V)
pue ‘o3e Jo sreak 91 Jopun SI oym uosiad

' 1M uonensuad [enxos ur so8e3uo 1opuajjo oY) ‘Iop[o 10 93 Jo s1edk g1 3ureq (¢)
Jo ‘uerprengd [e39] 1o ‘quared paydope

quareddais

9uared [einjeu S,WNOIA ) ST IOPUSIJO oY} pue ‘oFe Jo sieak g1 Jopun St oym uosriad
' 1M uonensuad [enxas ur so8edud 19pusljo oy} “Ioplo 10 a3k Jo sieak g1 Sureq ()
‘uosrad royjoue M uonenauad enxos ur 23e3ud 03 28k Jo s1eaK ¢ Iopun SI oym
uosiad e $93eINO00UD J0 ‘SosNEd ‘Saonpul ‘spie 10 a3e Jo s1eak ¢ Jopun ST oym uosiad
e [3im uonenduad enxas ur sae3us 19puszjo oy “Iopjo 1o oFe Jo siesk 9T Sureq (1)
J1 90139p 1S11J 9} UL JOUTW © JO ISNGE [BNXS JO SWILID 9} SHUIOD JOPUSJJo Uy (&)
90133(] 1S11,{ 9Y} UI JOUIJA] ® JO 9SNQY [BNXaS

QLY IV I SV

(1102 1%9M0)
PEY TP 1T § "LVLS VASYTY

exsely

J3ud[ey)
[e3o7]
JuedIudIg

JUSIUO)) LIS

UONEY) PUE 9IS




AT

Io ‘Jourur
oy 1040 Kyuoyine 10 isnx Jo vonisod e ur uosiad e 10 ‘royeiared Arerodw) e IIIOSIP
TOOTS 10 [00YDS §,Jourw oY) Ul 99A0[dws ue ‘uerpiend 1o juared stourw ayJ, (1)

10 $TOUTW Y] 19A0

TIOUnE 10 1T} JO Uonisod € Ul ST pue (Q)Z0p-81-21 § Jopun 1jI0daI pafepuell v (D)
{HOSBOI PIOPIO-HN0D I3YI0 Aue 10§ 10 dfoxed 10 uoneqoid uo ST IoUTW Y} S[IYM IOoUT
o3 Sursiazedns ST 10108 91} pUE JUSWIUISAOS [BI0] © IO “UNO0D B ‘A5U23R JUSUWIAOIONUS ME]
[e90] ® ‘U01}901100) Ajunuruio)) jo juawulredo(] aU} [Im pajoenuod 1o Aq paiojdwy (g)
‘10308 9} Surkojduio 1030e1U0d 10 Aduade oy Aq pajerado Arjioe) 18 Apoisnd ul

SI I0UTW 313 pue ‘AI[108] uonualap oftuaAn{ Aue 10 ‘Jrel 4unods 10 10 Aue ‘UOT021I0))
Aunuwuio)) Jo jusunteda(] o) ‘Uor0a110)) Jo Juswreda( ayi yiim pakordus (V)

‘ST 10108 oY) pue ‘uosiad ISYJOuR IO 10398 U} 0} SUBSIO X3S 19y IO SI] 950dXd 0] JOUI B
$901909 1O Sasned “19pJo 10 93k Jo sreak (1) uaay31e 3ureq ‘uosiad 2y ‘vosiod oyjoue
JO QIISOp [BNIXAS B JO SIISAP [BNXAS Joy 10 1Y AJneId 1o asnore o} asodind ayp yum (4)
‘xourw

o) 1040 Ajroyine pue isnij Jo uonisod e ur uosiad e 10 ‘Joxeared Arerodwid) e JOUISIP
JOOT3S TO OOTDS S, JOUT 9} Ul 99A0[dwid Ue ‘uerprend 1o juared sJourwa oy (D)
TO “JOUTW 9] 19A0

AJTIOUINE TO JSTI JO UONISOd € Ul ST PUE (Q)Z0h-31-¢1 § 1opun 19110dal pajepuell v (g)
‘10300 9y} SurAojdus 1030e1U09 J0 KousSe oy Aq parerado AfIoe] e je Apolsnd ul

ST JoUuTWI 3y} pue ‘AJ[Ioe] uonualap artusanf Aue 1o ‘pref Ajunod 10 4310 Aue ‘uonOLLI0))
Aunuwo)) Jo juaweda(] ‘uonoaiio)) Jo yusunreda ] oy Ym pakordwy (V)

“ST JOJO® 3]} pue “Jouru

8 0] SUBSIO0 X3S 19y 10 SIY SoS0UX3 A[350 T0SIad 9] ‘uosiad 19yjoue JO 2IISOp [enxas
© IO J[9SIOY IO J[OSWIY JO SIISOp [enxas © AJ1eid 10 asnore o3 9sodind oy gy (€)
‘wmnoIA 2y} Jo a3k Jo s1edk (€) 291y) urpm St uosiad oy J1 uonoas

st 3o (V)(2)(®) UoISIAIpgNS Jopun uonnoasoid B 0} asuajop aAnewLJe ue s1 3] (g)

-3k Jo s1eok (G ) UooYIy Uey) SSI ST Oym uosiad Ioyjoue

0] SUB3I0 Xas 1oy J0 S1y sasodxa Ajosodind uvosiod o ‘uosiad 1at30Ue JO SIISOP [BNXAS
€ JO J[9SI9Y IO J[OSWIY JO dIIS9p [enxas  AJ1eid 10 asnore o} asodimd aq1 yum (V)(7)
"JoBIUOJ [enxas ()

10 “AJTATIOR [enXas 9JeIAd(] (d)

TOSIROJISIUT [enXas (V)




S

(17071590 1L-8¢S § "LV.LS'NIDH'NNOD

INoROBUL0YD

"JO€ [NyMme[Un Ue JO Wl ) I8 ‘JOLIq MOY Id)jewl ou

‘ropoue ysnoxy} Jo Apuopuadopul IOWIID ‘A1ed [BUOHMIISUL IO “0Ied AJTue] Dred PIyd 9
Ied I121S0J

Surpnjour ‘pIyod e Jo uoisialadns 10 ‘drejjom TOBONPS ‘Yi[eay 2y} 10J AIjiqisuodsax

10 Anp Aue ym pasdreyd sI

oym uosiad e 10 ‘arej[am s,p[ryo e Jo uoisiazadns [erouad oy 10 o[qIsuodsar 9SIMISIO
QuoawWos 10 Ueiprend e SUIPN]OUI ‘PIIYo B SUILIOUOD SINI[IGIsuodsar 1o ‘sannp

‘syydu s,yuared e yo Aue yum padreyd pue juared e Jo aoefd oy3 ur Sunoe 1o juared

' ST oym uosiad Aue ‘03 pajrwii] 10U SI Inqg ‘sopnjoul ,isna jo uonisod, & ur auQ (¢°¢)
(110 159M) T0P-€-81 § NNV LVIS ATI 010D

wnoIA 9 01 199dsa1 Yy IS JO TonIsod

BUT U0 ST 9SUSJJO0 9y} SUIIIWIOD 10)o. I} pue 23e Jo sreak uaoyy3Ie uey) s3] Py

© ST WNOIA 3} J1 3sn1) Jo uonisod © ur ouo Aq PIIYo € UO }[NESSE [BNX9s SHWWO0D 108
JU0d Tenxoas Aue 01 osnods 191 10 ST J0U Ioyjoue s3oalqns A[Furowy] oym 0308 Auy (1)
1sn1} Jo uonisod & Ur QU0 AQ PIIYO B UO J[NBSSE [BNXdS

(1107 159M) €°507-€-81 § NNV LVLS AT 010D

opelojo)

‘10031 V (97)
‘uoreonps I9YSIY JO SUONNIIISUT UOHRIIWI] JNOYIM SUIPN[OUL ‘[eId1J0 [00YdS V7 (£7)
‘1019suno0d [ooyds yeand 10 orqnd v (Z7)

s1ay10da1 pajepue]N Z0y-81-21 §

"AUo[a (T SseyD & SI pIIyd B y3im Aoudoopul [enxas (q)

‘uosxod 1ayjoue 10

I019% Y} JO QHISAp [enxas ® AJ1eid 10 asnote 03 asodind 2y} yiim o[ewWdJ © JO 1SBIQ O3
10 SuBSI0 X3S 19y J0 STy 950dxa 03 93% JO s1ea£ (§]) US9LINOJ URY}) SSI] ST oy uosIad
Iayjoue $301909 10 sasned uosiad oy ‘1op[o 1o oFe Jo s1eak (81) uesySe Sureg ()




9ee

9} UI JO 99139p PN} Y} UI 10BIUO0D [BNXaS [NjME[UN SUIPIWWOD JO IS0 o uf (1)
:uoyM 92130p 1SIIJ 9} UI 10BIU0D [enxas [nymerun Jo 5m3 st uosiad v ()

AUO[9J (7 SSeIo $99139p 1SIIJ Y} UI JOBIUOD [BNXAS [NJMBIU[)

(1102 159M) 69L §11 11 "NNV 800D 14

alemejag

"[00Yds A1epu0d3s 10 ATRJUSA[S

ojeanrd 10 o1jqnd & ul Sunjiom IO [00Yds ATepu0d9as J0 AIBJUdWIdLD 91eAlld © 10 UoneINps
JO preoq 1euoI3a1 10 [820] & Aq pakojdure yoros 10 Jeuorssajoidered jooyos ‘uerorsAyd
‘Osmu ‘I9)IOM [e100s ISI30[0ydAsd “I0[asunoo aouepIng ‘quapusjuriadns [00YdS
‘101RXSTUTUIPE [OOYDS ‘ISYOLI] INIIISNS “IdYDBI) B SULSW  d9kofdwd [0oyds,, (£1)

(1T0T159M) $9-BES § "LVIS NAD'NNOD

"98® Jo s1eak uaoyy31o 1opun st uosiad oo

yons pue ‘AjIA1joR

10 werdoad & ur uonedronred s,uosiad 19130 Yons pue snjejs I99JUN[oA J0 [euonednado
‘Te89] ‘reuorssajoid s,1030€ oY) Jo anIiA Aq uosiad 19y30 yons 1040 uorsiaredns

1o Auoyne ‘ramod Jo uonisod e Ul spuels pue I3pJo J0 93 JO sIeak Kjuom} ST 10308 oY)
(01) 10 o8e Jo sreak uooy31o 1opun st (g) 10

‘BUINaS [00YOS ATRPUODS B UT UOTIONIISUI JO JUMYOROD YONS SIAISIAI PUR JUSPNIS [00YDS
Arepuo93s ® sI () pue 1030€ 91} WO} UONONNSUL 10 Juryorod Jo Juaidioar e st uosiod
Ioyo yons pue uononnsur 3uroJuo ‘varsusjur sopraoid oym uosiad € 10 £31a108 o19[y1e
ue Ul yorod B SI 10J0 3} () 10 <T0TE ) SAO[AWIS YoIJM UONEoNpa JO pleoq [euolsal
JO Te20[ 9y} JO UoNDIpSLn! a4} Joputt [00UJS € JO SSIOM T0Jo€ O} (OIYM Ul [00U0S

B UT PI[OIUS JUIPIYS © ST G0SId ToUJ0 oS pue 99A0[dTIs JOOUDS € SI 10Joe oufj ()

:pue uosiod 1oYjoUR YIIM SSINODINUI [BNXIS UT
soBedus uosiod yons usym 92130p puods Y} Ul Jnesse [enxas Jo A ing s1 uosiod v (&)

Kuo[9] ¢ 10 D) SSB[)) :90133p PU0OSS O} UI J[NEBSSE [BNXS




Lex

:sopnjout  dIysuone[dl JuedyIusis,, (1)
100€-2¢ § 300D "O'A

‘[uor100s sty saje[OIA] J0RIUOD TENXAS
& ur 93e3Ud 0] JOUTW JB} SISNED JO JOUTW 1By} YIIM JOBIUOD [BNXaS & Ul so3e3ud pue
Jourwt B y3m digsuorie[ar JuedTu3IS B UT ST “JOP[O 10 38 JO S18aA 81 Suraq I9A0YA

JOUTW B JO 9SNge [eNX3S 92139p puoddg
(1107 3189M) 20°600€-TT §300D°D°A

BIGWN|OD O PUSIA

"I993Un|oA € se Surnoe 10 pajesuaduwios st uosiad g yons 1oyjaym ‘uoneziuedio 1940

Aue 10 UOTBZIULRFIO S[qRILIEYD 1O ONO[YIE “‘UOTIMIISUT SNOISI[AI IO YOINYD ‘JooYyos € YIIm
UoTIeIIfJe Y3SNOoIY) UIP[IYD YHm 10eIuo0o 10a11p Jen3dar Suisey uosiod 1930 Aue 10 opre
Jo ‘1op1aoid axed Aep ‘xo11sAqeq ‘Yoroo ‘10jonJISul ‘13yoed} v (7)

Jo uorsiazadns 10 Auoyine [erpoisnd 1o ferjrwe,y (1)

:0}

PalII] 10U ST INg ‘Sapn[our  PIIryod B I9A0 UOISIAISANS Io AjIoyine ‘jsnij Jo uonisod,, (9)

194 §11 "1 NNV 30D T4(

"PIIYD 9} 19A0 UoIsIAIdnNS 10 Ajoyne

snay yo uonisod e ur spuels oym uosiad € JO 9ouSisop JO I9)IAUL U ST IO “PIIYo oy}
I9A0 UoIsiAXedns 1o AjLIoyne ISty JO UONISOd € Ul SPUB)S JUBPUSJIP o) pue Aepyiiiq
JIUadIXIs s, uosiod Jey} payoeal 194 J0U Sey oym uosiod IOYour YIm J0BIUO0D [enxas
sey A[feuonuajul

uosiad oy (7) “yusumnsur snorouep 10 uodeom A[peop e Jo [01U0D 0 UoISsassod
ut st uosiad oy Jeyy) 1onpuod Jo prom £q syussaidar 10 Guowmnisur snoraSuep 10 uodeam
AJpeap e 2q 03 sreadde jeym sAerdsip uosiad o1} 1o wiola oy 03 Amfur peorsAyd
sosned uosiad oy QWL

a3 yo Bunaodar oy Juaaaid o3 3dwepe ue Sunmp 10 ‘owLo oY) Wwo JYSI[J SyeIpITIUI
o) SuLmp 10 “90I39p Pu0OORs Y} UT JOBJUOD [BNXAS [Njmeun Surmrurod Jo asimod




&<,

(1107 189M) 1°0-11 §'LVLS dNOD TT[ OTL

~o%e

JO STeak QT Jopun Jnq 99e JO SIBaK ¢ [ ISed] 18 SI WIJOTA I} pue "WDIA 3 0] Uoije[al
UT UOISTATSANS JO "AJIIOUINE JSTL] JO UONISOd € SP[OY pue J9A0 10 93¢ JO SIBA /1 ST(§)
10 03 JO SI189A g Jopun SI WNOIA S} PUB ‘TUIIOIA O} JO Joquiow AJrure] e st (€)
“Iuasuod Surmouy] 2A13 03 9[qeun SI 10 108 91} JO

2INjeu O} PUR}SIOPUN 03 O[GRUN ST WIOIA J} Jey) smouy (7)

£9010J JO JeAIY} JO 9210 sasn (1)

:pue uorrenouad

[eNIXaS JO Jok Ue SIwod uosiod jey) JI jnesse [enxos [RUTWLID Suwod uosiad v (8)

J[nesSy [enxag [BUItILL)
(1107389M) 0T 1-11 §§°1VLS dNOD 1T OTL

(ebusyjjeyo
jebe| ON 0Z"L-L1/G SOOI 0TL) stouljii

hosiad

T3(J0 YONS ISA0 AJLIOUINE ATRUI[AIISTP JO ATOSTATSANS Sey J0j9€ Jons pue uonnnsui
19130 Jo [eydsoy e ut juaryed B ST 10 UI poUTe}ap ST oym JO JOOUJS € Ul Po][OJUD S
O IO mB[ JO APOISTIO 3} UT ST oym 10 1991jJ0 ofoed 10 uorieqoid pres Jo uoisiazadns
ot 1opun a9jored 10 Jouoneqoid e ST oym uosiad ISYJOUE M JOBRIUOD [ENXIS

Ul $93e3US YS 10 O UdYM J[NBSSE [BNXS SO UOIIIS 9pO)) SIY} Ul 0] PAIIJal
uosiad 1otjoue Jo J0ST1ATSANS JO URTPOISND 930 10 1991J0 ofored 10 woneqoid v (q)
}[nesse [enxog

(1T0T159M) 1°6-9-91 § NNV 400)'VD

eibiosn)

IouTuI

B IO P[IYD B IOA0 AJLIOUINe J0 [3im jsnn Jo uonisod e ur uosiod 10yjo Aue 10 ‘JJeis
poddns 10 “I01RNSIUTWPE “ISALIP SNq “I0JO2IIP SNIOYD ‘IOpe?] YInoA ‘A3100 ‘I0[oSUnod
Yor0o ‘19yoea) © Surpnjoul ‘wrerdoid 1o ‘uonezruedio ‘K)Ioe] YInoA 10 ‘9[qeiLreyo
‘Teorsnur ONAYYIE ‘[eUOIIBAIdAI TRIO0S ‘[eUONRONDPS UR IO ‘Uonmnsul snoidial

o0 1o ‘onbsowr ‘on3o3euAs ‘YoInyo ‘[ooYds € JO 1a93unjoa 1o sakojdwe Auy ((])




Lee

‘10)deyo ST} JopUN SWLID B JO WIDIA 9 SI 04

M PIIYO 9} UY) I9PJO SIedA (§) InoJ 1sed] 18 ()

pue ‘0A1eI0d009 J0 [00YOS I} SPUSNE OUYM PIIYD B

0} uorsiazadns 10 ares jo uoisiaoid a3 ur pagedud (D)

“3ATIBI2d009 10 [00UOS JU] SPUSNE OUM P[IYo © 0] UONje|al Ul 3snyj Jo uonisod e ul (g)
‘paresuadwion st uosiad Y} IOYIAYM IO MOY JO SSI[PIeSal ‘xa3deyd s1j} 1opun

QWILID B JO WIMOIA AU ST oym PIIYO B Aq papuane 2Aane1adood uoneonp? [e1oads (A1)
Io {jooyas drpqnduou (1ir)

‘fooyos Jareyd (1)

‘uonerodiod jooyos (1)

e [ pater[yge (v)

st (g)

Jo ‘1a1deyo sy Jopun

QWILIO B JO WINDIA 3} ST oYM PIIYo © £q papuaye ‘oanjerodooo uorzeonpa 1eroads (1)
0 ‘Jooyos drqnduou (D)

‘Jooyos xueyd (g)

‘uoryerodiod jooyos (V)

‘e Aq poLojdwe s1 (7)

{K31110B] 9189 19)[oYS ' Ul Juawiojdurs

s,uos1ad o3 Jo 9d0ds oY) UM PIIYD B 0} UONONIISUL 10 ‘uoisiazadns ‘ared sopiaoid (1)
:0ym uosiod & suBSW  JONIOM OIBOP]IYD,, “UOI}OSS ST} UL pasn Sy (P)

e

-7-81-07 DI UI Y110 198 Suruesw 9} Sey  [00Y9s I9)IeYo,, “UONI3S ST} Ul pasn s (9)
Juared

sandope ue jo juared o sueswr  Juoredpuerd aandope,, Uonods STy} ul pasn sy (q)
9-C-6-1¢

DI Ut 3105 108 Surueaws oy sey  Juared sandope,, ‘wonoss sIy} ur pasn sy (B) £ 098
uonoINpas pryd

(10T 32M) L-p-Th=S€ § NNV 9000 aN]

BUBIpU}




QhT

sty jou ‘Ajdde [reys 032191} SJUSWPUSWE PUR “4(96-17 V'S Y JO (q) uonoasqns

Jo suoistaoxd a3 uopnys 9y} Jo juared Y} SI IOPUJO 9y J] ‘poLofduus ST 1opusJJo

oY} 2I3YM [00Y9S Y} JB PI[[OIUD JUIPNIS B ST “0J010Y) SJUSWPUIWR PUR ‘4(0GS-17 'V
'S 30 (0)(q) 10

(1)(q) uonoasqns 10 $0SS-17 V'S Y Jo (B) uonoasqns 0} 199[qns 9S1MISYI0 10U “AWOPOS
10 “0J210Y} SPUSWPULUIE PUE ‘90SS-1T V'S JO (£)(Q) 0 (7)(q) uonoasqns 10 905S-1¢T
V'S Jo (B) uonoasqns 03 302[qns 9S1MISY30 30U “BUIYoNno) J0 SUI[PUO) PMS] ‘01131 S
JUoWIpUdWIR

Pue ‘905G-17 "v'S™M Jo (1)(q) uonossqns 10 £0S6-17°v'S ™ Jo (£)(8) ToNdssqns o
103IqNS SSTAISJO JOU "SINOJISIUL [BNXaS [eNsUasuO0d Ul SULSEJUS SI I9pPUSJJo o WoyM
1A UoSIad 3] pue AJiIoyine Jo uonisod € Ul U0sIad € 10 1oyoed) € ST Iopuajjo aul (§)

(TTOT159M) TISS-1T § NNV LVLS NV

sesue)j

"u0s1od 19110 91 UBY} JOP[O SIBAA 2IOW JO In0¥ ST uosiod oy ], (1)

RS 0] U0sIad IO J] 391309 0] AJLIone

JeY] Sash pue uosIad JIJo oy JOAO AJLIOUINE JO UONISOd € Ul ST u0sIad oy 1 (¢)
"99139p YumMoy a3 03 AJuggye 10 poojq £q uosiad 19yjo oy 03 pajejas st uosiad oy (7)
uosiod JOU30 9] Se poyesnoy suwes I} Jo oquaw e st uosiad oy (1)

:onJ3 o1e SUIMO[[0] 2y} JO Aue pue oFe JO SIBOA U1 JO U293moJ st uosiod 1030 9y -0
"33e JO SIBOA USQUITY) IO dA[oM] ST U0sIad 10430 oY, °q

“JUISUOO FUIAIS

sapnpoa1d yorym Kroedeour 10 303Jop [eIusw € wolj SuLisyns st uosiod 10130 Y B
:onn are 3uIMO[[0F Y3 JO Aue JI pue

9JIM pue pueqgsny st SUNIqeyod W} AU} 8 JouU ATk oym suosiad usamioq s1 3108 9y ], ‘7

1S9OURISWINDIID SUIMO][O] 9Y3 JO Aue Jopun
198 X3s & surojrod uosiad oyp uoym 20150p pIIYl oY) UI Isnge [enxos sywod uosied v

90130p pamy} oY) Ul 9snge [enxas
(1102389M) ¥°60L §300D VMOI

emoj




‘1oKordwo 10 ‘1op1A01d 2red-yiresy “Ioped] SnoI3I[aI “UONBZIURSIO SIJIAISS

YINOA © 1M IOJUNOA IO JJe1S “THI0T002S SuJ Ul Paulyap se A1[1oe] UONualop

® 10 AJIIOR] JUSUIIBaT) [RIIUSPISAI B IOU}IS J0] JO0JUN[OA IO ‘JJels “IO[asunod ‘avkojdurd
[0OUDs PoLjIIaD ‘9ako[dwo [00Yds PaJISSe[d “T3083] ‘Yor0od Jnpe ‘18euru dNd[yle
}[npe npe ue ST Oym JIJJUNJOA IO ‘JJBlS [BUOTIBIIOAX ‘IOPLI] YINoA Jnpe ‘Ioquiour
pioyesnoy ‘aAnefal quared 191505 ‘quoreddes ‘quared candope ‘quared [eoidojoiq

& Aq patdnooo uonisod oy} 03 pojIwI] J0U SI Inq SUBSU  AJLIOYINE JO UONISOJ,, (B)

SP0OCES SAA

“AUOJ9J (7 Ssel) ® 1 22130p paryy oyp ut adey (7)
“TOnIS0d 78U} JO J[NS3I € SE JOBTUO0D OJUT SO0 2Us 10 9y WOUM 1M PO SIEdK

01) US3IXIS Jopun JOUTW € [JIM OSIN0JISJUT [BIIXas Ul SOSESUD JUS 10 97 "SH0 ¢es Sl

UT poUIJap Se ST} [eroads JO UonIsod IO AJHIoTjne JO uonisod € ul uosiad € suidy (p)
10 S070°009 S Ul pauLjop se awoy AJIurey 19)soj ©

soprao1d ays IO 91 WOy JOJ pue po SIedA (1) UodySIo uey) sso] uosiod Ioyjoue Yim
9SINODIOJUI [BNX3S Ul $93e3UD SYS JO 9 ‘DI0W JO PO sIeak (]7) auo-Kuamy urag (9)
P10 s1e24 (91) ULXIS Uey) SS9] uosIad IdYjoue Yim

9SINO2IOJUT [BNX3S Ul $93e3Ud AYS 10 oY ‘DI0W 10 PO sIedk (]7) suo-Kuami urag (q)
{popIeI_I A[[BIUSW ST JYS 10 Y ASNBI3q

JUISUOD JO d[qedeour ST oym UosIad IOYIOUR M ISINODIANUI [enxas ul sagedud oY (B)
“uaym 22189p paiyl oy ut odex Jo Aym3 st uosiad v (1)

901397 pary L, o ur adey

(1T0T159M) 090°01S § NNV 'LVIS AT A

Apnjusy

71 y3noxy) uspreSiopury sopeis
Jo Aue Sunopjo ooyas ayearrd 1o orpqnd Aue ur sokojdws [euorssojoid 10yjo Aue pu
e syuspusjuLiadns ‘syedrourid ‘s1osiazadns ‘S1o1oD) SOPN[OUL pUR SUBIW  JOUORa),, (6)

TISS-1T § NNV IVIS'NVY

uonoasqns




2hE

‘Kreyuowape oyealid 10 orjqnd Aue Jo ookojdwa 10 ‘uosiad Jye)s ‘1ojensiurwipe
$I010NIISUI JO IOYOE9) AUR SUBSW , I0JBONpI,, ‘Uonoasqng siy Jo sasodmd 10, (7)

TI8HT § NNV IVIS AT V]

“UONOS SIY} JO UOTIB[OTIA AUR 0] ISUJAP © 9q 10U [[BYS “IOP]O

J0 95 JO SIBAA USSJUIAIS ST JUSPN]S JLf} JOU JO JOYIOUYM JUSPMIS B JO JUISUOD YT, D
“Juapnis

oy

Jo Apoq a3 o 1red Aue 10 AJI[RIUdWNISUL AUe UIsn 9SUILJO A} JO dwi] oY Je Suryiom
10 ‘pakojdwd ‘pauBIsse s1 10jeonpa Y} YOIYM Ul [00YOS I} I8 JUSPNIS B ST WIDIA Y}
uayM a3k JO SIBIA USIOUTU UeY) SSI] INq I9PJ0 10 93e JO sIeak uadjuoAds uosiad e £4q
JIoyeonpa oy} Jo s[eruad

10 snue 2y} Jo uIyono) Ay} 10 ‘103eonps 3y Jo Apoq oy Jo wed Aue 10 Aijejuswminsur
Kue uisn “a8e JO S1BOA USIUIU URY) SSI] INq “IOP[O IO 938 JO SIBIA UISJUSADS JUSPNIS
® JO S[e1ua3 10 snue o) Jo Suryono} oy} ur sa3eIud A[Jeuonuaiur 103eonps uy (€)
"aSURJJO

o} Jo awin} Ay Je SurjIom Jo ‘pakojduwd ‘poudIsse SI 10jeonpa oY) YoIrym Ul [ooyos ) e
JuapNIS B ST WIOIA Y} USYM ‘U0sIod I0U310 JO S2IISap [enxas aYf) JuikJesd Jo uonuajul
U} yim

‘a8e Jo s1eak uad)auIu URY} SSI INg “IOPJO IO IFe JO SIBAK UIDJUSADS ST OYM JUSPNIS B JO
ooudasaxd oy ur Jo Juapnys B uodn 108 SNOIATOSE] JO PMI] AUR SIUIIOD 101eonp? uy (7)
"9SURJO

oy} JO awiI} 2} Je Juniom

10 ‘pakojdud ‘pouFIsse ST I0}eoNp A} 2IYM [00UDS I} 18 JUIPTIS B SI pUE IOPUIJO
a3 Jo asnods J) J0U ST WIOIA Y} USYM ‘0T JO SIBOA UI9JUTU URY) SSO] Inq ‘I9P[0

10 93e JO SIBIA USQJUIADS ST OUym UO0sIdd B [IIm 9SINODIJUT [enXas sey 10jeonps uy (1)
:In200 SUIMO[[0] Y3 JO Aue

USYM PINIWITIOD ST JUSPNIS B PUR J0JBONPS UB U29M]9q JONPUOD [BNX3S PAQIYOL] "V
JUSPNIS PUB JOJLONP UMI( JONPUOD [eNX3s pAIqIYoId

(1710T32M) 1 18:11 § NNV LVIS'ATY V']

eueisIino-




EhT

SIOUTW JO 9SNQe [enXaS
¥ST § VL1 1 NNV LVIS AT IN

‘owLd ) sse)) e st ydeidered sry) Jo uone[orA “uosiod

19130 9y JoA0 Kuoyne Areur[diosip 1o A1osiazadns ‘feuononnsul Sutary uosxad

19130 10 92K0[duIo ‘19Y0Ra] B SI J0JOB Y} PUB ‘USIP[IYD IO SIJTAISS 10 21ed SuIpiaocid
A1ren3ar uonmINSUI 0 AJ[I0B] TOOYDS Je[rIs J0 dured ‘101U juduriean Snip ‘Ao
9Ied PIIYD [BIUIPISAI ‘AJII0B] 2180 ABD ‘QUWIOY S,USIP[IYD & SUIpusye IO Ul JUIPISaI

® SI pue s1eak g Jo a3e oy} paurepe jou sey ‘osnods s Jojoe oy Jou ‘vosiad 19130 YL, D
‘oo 1) ssey)) ST ydeigered

STU} JO UOTIE[OI A JUSpN]s U JoAC AJLIOUINE ATCUI[dIOSIP JO ATOSIAISUNS ‘[eUOnomI}SUl
SUTABY] [B101JO

I3TF0 10 99AO[dUID "IS(0ed] € ST J0Joe o} pue UONmIsul J0 AJI[108] "[00(os uoneonpa
[e103dS 1O ATEpPUOJ3S "ATEJUSUIA[S J1[qnd 0 JJEALId € Ul Pa[[0IUa JUIpIYs € SI pue

STESA g JO 95 91} pourepie Joej Ul Jou Sey -osnods s,I0308 oy} JoU ‘u0siad 19130 94 ], "

:pue uosiad 1yjoUE PIM
10B [enxas © ul sofeSud uosiad jey) J1 jnesse [enxas sso1d jo Ams3 st uosrod v 7

}[NEBSSE [enxas SSOIL

ST§V-LT M NNV LVLIS AT I

autey\

"pIeoq [00yos

orjqnd [eo0] 1930 Jo Ysured K10 ‘ojeand e Aq peLojdwe [ouuosiod soueuSIUTEW IO
‘TeIpOISND ‘TROLILD IAYI0 PUR “IONIOM DTAIOS POOJ “ISALIP snq [ooyds ‘Teuoissojordered
‘apre JoYoed) Aue SuIpnoul ‘uonmIsul

I0 [00Yyds Arepuodas 3sod 10 Teroads ‘Bururern [eoTuyod}-[BUOIBO0A ‘AIBpU0DaSs




hht

"[00Y2S A1epu0d9as 10 Jooyos Arejuauid[d ‘Jooydsaid ayeard 10 orqnd e je J0[9sUNOD
[ooyos 10 ‘royoed) ‘Tedrountd 901a ‘Tedrounid e sopnjoul () pue {Jo0OYds Y] SPUSE oYM
JOUTW B I9A0 UOISIAIodNS $951010X9 ‘uonednooo 1o uonisod suosiod oy} Jo asneoaq (11r)
pue {[00Y9S ATEpUO0ISS 10 ‘[OOYDS AIRJUSUIS[D

‘ooyosaid ayeanrd 10 orjqnd e £q 9oKojdwo Jusueurrod swm-[[ny B se pakojdws st (11)
‘pIo sIBaA 17 1589 1B SI (1)

:oym uosiod e sueaw (1)

;. Auoyine jo uonisod e ur uosiad,, ‘uor}oas s1y) uf ()

paurep  Auoyine Jo uonisod e Ul UOSID,,

90135p YMNOJ 9Y) UI ISUIJO [eNXS

(1102 359M) 80€-€ § MVT WD NNV 400D AN

puejliep

QWILIO (T SSBD

e s1 ydeidered sty Jo uone[oIA “JUApNIS oY) 1040 Aioyine Areurjdiosip 10 Axosiazadns
‘feuonyonnsur Juiaey

[RIOTIJO 19130 J0 daLo[durd “I0UoBa) © ST J0J0R 1) pUR UONMI)SUL 10 AJI[I0B] ‘[O0Y0S
uoneonpa [eroads 10 A1epuodas ‘Arejuswa]e orqnd 10 ojeanid e ul pa[joIus JUSPMIS

B ST pue 03 JO SIedA g1 UBY) SSO[ 30€] Ul ST “osnods s,J0jor oy} jou ‘uosiad 1oy30 Y], Y
:pue 10IU0O [enxas Aue 0} uosiad 1ayjoue

s102[gns A[feuonusiur I0308 oY} JI 10BIUOD [ENXAS [njmeun jo Ams st uosiad y °]

V-6ST § V-L1 1 NNV LVLS ATI I

‘owrtnd o sser)) e st yderdered s1y} Jo UOTIR[OIA "PI[[OIUD

ST JUSpN}S Y} YOIyM Ul UOTINIIISUI JO AJI[Io€] ‘[00Y9S “IIun [BUOneonpa ‘UOIUn [00YoS
JOLSIP [OOYDS S} Ul [BIDIJO ISY10 10 22K0]dwo “IoUoea] B SI 10JoR O} PUR UOIMIISUI
10 Aifroey ‘Jooyos uoneonp? [e1oads 10 A1epuodds ‘Arejuawore o1yqnd 1o oyeand

B UI POJ[OIUD JUapnis & SI pue 28k JO S1BAA /] 10 9 ISPIS SI oy “osnods §,10108 o

41 jou ‘uosiod

Ioyjoue Yim Joe [enxas e ul sade3uo pue oFe Jo s1eak [z 1se9o Je st uosiad oy D

:J1 Tourwr B Jo asnge [enxas Jo K m3 st uosiad |




ShT

“WIOTA 3] Sk P[OYasnoy SWes I} JO JoquIdW © ST 10308 3y, (1)

:3uimoroy

o Jo Aue pue oe Jo s1eak 9] uey) SS9 Ing ¢ Ise9] 1B st uosiad 19yjo 1Ry (q)

03¢ Jo s1eak ¢ 1opun st uosiad oo Jey ] (8)

'SISTXQ SOUBISWNIIID

Suimorroy oy Jo Aue J1 pue uosiad Joyjoue Ym uonenouad enxas ur sofe3ud oys

10 9Y J1 00130 }SI1J Y} UI JONPUOd [enxas [eurutro Jo Ams st uosiad v (1) "q0zs 998
90130p }SI1J UI JONPUOD [BNXIS [RUIWLI))

(1102 359M) 90TS 0SL § SMVT dNOD HOIN

(ebusjeyo
jeBaj oN (8)(1)p0ZG 062 TOW) uebiyoiy

pafordwa s1 Ayoyne jo uonisod e ur uosiad oy a1oyM

[OOU2S & 18 PI[[OIUS JUIPNIS B ST “OSINOJIUI [eUISeA 9} JO SWIT) oY) I8 “OUm IOUIW B
M osmodrajul [eurdea ur agedus jou Aewr fuoyine Jo uonrsod g ur uosiad e “uor}oas
st Jo (£)(q) uonoasqns 10 anqns STy Jo (5)(B)L0¢-€ § ut papraoxd se ydooxy (7)
‘poforduwra st Ayuroyine Jo uonisod e ur uosiad oy a1oym

[OOY2S B T8 PI[[OIUd

JuapNIs B ST “J0BIU0D [BNXaS IO 108 [BNXIS SYf} JO SUIN dY) 18 ‘Oym TOUTW € [JIM JOBJUOD
[BTIX3S JO JO€ [ENXoS € Ul 9980U JOU AW AJLIO(jne JO uonisod € Ul UosIad & "UO0Njoas

STOF JO (¢)(q) GOBI35qNS 10 SIS ST 3O (F)(B)Z0E-€ § UT PIPIAOK 5¢ 1d55% (1)(0)

Auoyne Jo uonsod B Ul SUOSIOG--PAqIYO0L]

"WNOIA 31} Uy} I9PJO SIBdA

15897 18 SI Joe o) Juruiorad uosiod oy} pue ‘pro sIedA G IO §] SI WNOIA O} JI Ioyjoue
YIMm 9sIodraul [eurdea ‘opuqns sty 3o (S)(8)Lo¢-€ § ut papraoid se 3dooxa (¢)

IO TWTIOIA 9} URY) JOPJO

STB3A {7 1SB9] TR ST 108 [enxas oy} Sururojiad uosiod oy) pue ‘plo s189K G IO ] SI WIIOIA
91 J1 ISTJOUB YIIM JOB [enXas © ‘opnqns s1yl Jo ()(8)L0¢-€ § ur papiaoid se 3dooxa (7)

{19110 91 JO JUSSUOD I} JNOYIIM IOYIOUR M JOBIUOD [enXas (])

:u1 93e3ud jou Aew vosiad v (q)

[e1ousd ul--poqIyoIg




Thte

3] 1oA0 Ajjoyine Jo uonisod € Ul pue jueure[dod oy} uetf) I10pjo SYuou g uey)
QIow SI J0j0€ oY) pue o5e Jo SIBOA 9 UeY) SS9 Inq ¢ Ised] 18 s1 jueure[dwios oyl (q)
po0ID00 SBM JOBIUOD [ENXIS oY) 1By} dA01d

01 paxmbai

10U ST 9J8)S Y} “OsNe[o ST} JIopun UoNNnI3soid & U] *dsudjop © ST jueure[duwios oy

Aq 108

a1} 0} JUISUO0D J0U 93¢ s, Jueure]duIod oY) 01 SE IBISIW JOPIAN Jueurejdwod sy} uey
IOpJO SYJUOW 9¢ ULy} 9I0W ST JOJOE oY) pue oFe JO sIB2A ¢ 1opun sI jueure[dwos oy ()
:SJSTX9 SOOUB)SWINDILD

Su1mor]o} a3 Jo Aue J1 90139p PUODAS 9Y} UL JONPUOD [enXas [eurwLId Jo A3 st uosiod
JOUIOUR 1M JOBIUOD [enxas Ul sa3e3ud oym uosiad 7 "paurfop SWiLI)) " UOISIAIpgnS
90130p PuOas AU} UI JONPUOD [BNXIS [RUIWLID)

(1T0T19M) €7€°609 § "LYLS NNIN

BjOSBULIN

“uoIye[oIA pa3o|[e oy} JO oW I}

18 J9110 Yoo 0] parirewl A[nyme] 21e suosiod y3oq J1 10 payedrouewrs st uosiad Ia110 oy}
J1 A1dde jou saop

yderderedgns STy, "10LISIP [0OYOS SJRIPSULINUI IO “JOLISIP [00Y0S ‘[00Yos dijqnduou
‘fooyos orpqnd 1B} JO I0JRISIUTWPE JO “IdYOBI)} AJ1sqns ‘Ioyoed) e si 103oe oy, (1)
:sorjdde 3ummofjo} o3 Jo 1oyl pue ‘Jooyos drqnduou 10 jooyds d1qnd e e JuIpnIs

' pue a3e JO S1BA g1 Uey} ssI] Inq 23e Jo s1eak 9 o] Je St uosiad 1oy30 1Ry (9)

POTS 0SL § SMVT dNOD HOIN

"PI[[oIu

STUOSIod JoUJ0 JeU) YOI UL JOLSIP [00U0S SJeIPatiIojul 10 JOLOSIP [00UJS ‘JO0Y0S
STqndTon

TOOUds S1[qnd Y7 JO I0JeNSTUTIIPE 10 1008} JIISqUs 1ooed} € ST I0J0€ oY ], (AT
"JIqNS 0} WNOIA ) 901300

07 AJLIOUINE SIJ Posn pue WIOIA oy J9A0 AJLIOUINe JO UONIS0d € Ul ST 10308 oy ], (11))
*92139p YMNOJ 9y} 01 AJTUIJe J0 POO[q AqQ WIOIA S} O} PYe[dI ST 10308 oY I (1)




LRC

yono}
‘OIpuey [[BYS ‘SQIISOp [BNX9S SNONUIOI| pasridop 1oy 10 S1y Buid[npur 1o snj I9Y 10 SIY
Suifyne1d yo esodind a1 10 ‘oym ‘sreak (871) uo9iys1e Jo a3e oy oaoqe uosiad Auy (1)

PIYD Jutjpuo,
€7-6-L6 § NNV HA0D SSIN

Yoro9 IO JOpE] Jn0ds ‘opoun une ‘quaredda)s yuored ‘uerprens [e39]

‘10yoexdoaryo “isideroy; feorsAyd “ysenrd ‘rasturua sigojoyoAsd “smeryoAsd ‘ueroisAyd
‘10[2sUunod “IYoB} S,p[IYo oY} UONBIIWI] JNOYIIM SUIPN[IUL P10 oY} JOAO AJLIOYINE

T0 3517 JO uonisod e Ut ST uosIad oy J1 sreak (81) uooy3io Jo o5e ay) Jopun pd e
s uonenosuad enxas ur sagedus oys 10 oy J1 A191eq [EnXas Jo Am3 st uosiad v ()

A1opeg [enxas

$6-€-L6 § NNV dA0D)SSIA

ddississin

sideroygioyodsd e sopnjour , Ajxoyine jo uonisod,, ‘T UOISIAIpQNS

Jo sasodind ay3 10, "1o® 91} JO SWIN O} e ¢ JOLIq MOY JI9PRW OU ‘I9Yjoue Y3noIy)

1o Apyuapuadapur Joyi1e ¢ PIIUD © JO UOISIATSUNS J0 SIej[oM "(3[edy dUj 10] AN[IqISuodsal
10 Anp

AU (JIA pasIeqo ST ogm uosiad € J0 “pJIyo & 03 sanijiqisuodsal 1o sannp ‘syysu s,jusred
© JO Aue [3m pagdreyo pue juared e Jo ooe[d oy ur Sunoe 1o jusred e St oym uosiad Aue
0} pPajIwi] J0U SI Inq sapnjoul  AJLIOYINE JO UONISO,, ‘AJLIoyine Jo uonisod ‘01 "pans

‘(8007 19M) T+E€°609 § "LYLS NNIA

{osusyap
® s1 Jueurejdwos
oy} £q 108 Y} 0} JUISUOD Jou d3e sjueure[dwos ay) 01 St SNRISTW IOIISN JUBUuTe[diod




&hE

Kue Jo Aradoxd ueows [jeys , A1rodoid [ooyos o1jqnd,, “‘wonsas siyy Jo sasodind oy 10,1 "7
"S901A13s op1aoid

01 101s1p Jooyds o1[qnd a1 Yim s1oenuod jey; Anus ue Aq pasordurd uosiad v (§)

1o ‘wreadoad 1o 10foxd

€ UO [00YDS 9} Y1 SurjIom uoneziuedIo ue Jo IO [00Yos 9} JO I20JUN[0A Y (1)
‘Jooyos a3 Jo s2kopdws uy (§)

‘19yora} JudpnIs v (7)

‘ONSY $01°891

uonoas Jo (1) pue (g) ‘() SUOISIAIPGNS UL POUIJIP ST WLId} JBYf} SB 1oyoedl Y (1)

:S1 pue X313d01d JoOyDs J1jqnd Aue

U0 [T JOOTJS JI[qnd 973 JO JUSPMIS € YJIM JOBJU0D [enxas sey ays J0 oy JI Ajrodoid
[OOT3S ST[qnd U0 S[TM JUSPIIS B (JIA JOBJUOD [ENXaS JO SUILID JU} SHIW0o uosid V *|
JUIPMIS B YIIm JOBIUOD [BNXIS

"(1T0T ¥9M) 980°99S § "IVLS ATI O

LNOSSIA

"JoB09 10 J9PBI] IN0JS ‘9poun June ‘quareddals uored ‘uerprend

18897 “1o03orIdoriyo gsideray reorsAyd “ysonrd ‘roystura gsidojoyoAsd ysieryossd
‘uerorsAyd “107asUN09 10708} S,p[IYS B UOHBIIWI] JNOYIM SIPN[OUI PIIYD B IOA0
Auoyne Jo isnn Jo uonisod e ur uosiad v "Auol9] ® Jo A3 oq [[eys PIIYo Y} IA0
Kuoyne 10 ysnn Jo uonisod e

so1dno90 wosiad oy} usyM JUISUOD S,PIIYO Y} INOYIIM IO iIm ‘asnods s,uosiod gons jou
ST oYM SIBdA (8 1) UadIyS1o Jo a8k oY) JopuUn pue J[osIoY JO J[oswIy ey} J0Funok pryo
Aue ‘J0219Y) Ioquuiswi Aue Jo Apoq 1oy 1o sIy Jo 1ed Aue 10 SPUBY (I qn JO (Yonoj
‘d[puey [[BYS ‘SAIISIP [BNXAS SNONUIDI| paAridop Ioy 10 sIy Surd[npur 1o ‘jsnj 1oy IO SIY
BuiyneId Jo asodmd a1 107 ‘oym ‘s1eak (871) uaoy3ie jo a8e oyy oaoqe uosiod Luy (7)
*Auo[dj © Jo Ams 2q [[eys

‘L6-€-L6 U010ag Ul paulgep se uosiad ssojdjoy AqreorsAyd 1o pajeiroedesur A[[ejuow
‘9A1}09JOp AJ[BIUSUI B IO “JUISUOD S,P[IYD SYI INOYIIM IO YIM ‘SIBoA (9]) U9IXIS Jo o5e
o} 1opun

PIIYo Aue Joa1oy) Ioquiowi Aue 10 Apoq 19y Jo s Jo Med Aue 10 spuey Ujim qni Io




bhC

"JTuIqns 0} WNOIA Y} 921909 0} AjLIoyjne

SIU} SOSN pue WIIIA

oy} 1040 AJHIOYINE JO UONISOJ € UT ST 10J08 3] pue a3k JO SIBdA g1 Iopun pue Ispjo

10 a8e JO s18aK ¢ ST WINOIA 2} ‘sesnods parurewr A[e39] uoamiaq se 3dooxa ‘uoym (3

‘J[NEBSSY [BNXS SNOTUO[Y,] PRIeARIS3Y
(10T 1S9M) TV-TE9 § NNV LVIS ATIH'N

aliysdwey maN

‘sjidnd omy usamiaq

10npuod [enxas o) Ajdde 03 pannsuod 9q J0U JSNW UOI}IIS SIY} JO suorsiaoid ay ] "¢
"PORIIITIOD ST UONI3S SIY) Aq payiqryoad joe ue swr) oY)

1e 11dnd o) 03 parrews st oym uosiad g 01 A[dde jou op uonoos sty Jo suorsiaoid oy J ‘7
0ET°£61 SN Ul popiaoad se paystund 9q [[eYS pue Auo[a] D) A10391e0 ® Jo A3 SI
“I90JUnjoA J0 d2401dwd ue se

sannp 19y 10 s1y Suruaoyrad Jo 9smod ) ul 30rju0d pey sey uosiad oy woym ynum ()
0 {3urreaun[oA 10 pakorduwa sem 10 st uosiad oy

yorym 1e [ooyds ajeatrd 1o jooyos o1jqnd a3 Surpusyje Jo Ul pI[[oIud sem Io St oy (1)
IpUR JUSWNJOP Jud[eAmbd ue

10 93821J1190 Juowdo[aAap [euoneonps [e1ousd e ‘ewoldip [ooyos Y31y B POAISIAI J0U
Sey oym ‘I9p[0 10 93k JO s18dA 91 st oym [1dnd & yim 1onpuod fenxas ur sodedus (9)
pue Kuoyine yo uonisod e ur [ooyos ajeartd 1o o1qnd © je SULI9JUN]OA SBM IO SI JO
Auoyine jo uonisod e ut jooyos ajeald 10 [ooyos orjqnd & £q peLojdwo sem 10 ST (q)
$19pj0 10 o3e Jo sreak 17 S (8)

:oym uosiad e ‘z uonoasqns ur papiaoid asimiayjo se 3deoxy |

0S5y 10C SAN

epenan

"Auojay (I ssepd ® st Ayadoad jooyos orpqnd Uo S[IyMm JUSPNIS B YIIM JOBIUOD [BNXOS “¢
“1o11s81p [o0yds drqnd oy} £q pasn
snq [00tds Aue 10 dA]oM] oprI3 y3nory) uspredIopury SuIAIes 21e)s siy} ur jooyos orqnd




QS¢

0 AJLIOYINE SIY) sasn pue PIIyd oy} Joao Luioyine jo uonisod e ur st 1oenadiad oy (e)
:uaUM 95e JO STeoA UedIy3Io 0} USSUITY] PIIYd © o (7)

10 ‘o8e JO s1894 USQITY) JopuUn PIIYd B U0 (1)

:porenadiad Jourur € JO 30BIU0D

[BNIX3S [RUTWILIO [[& JO SISISUOD 90139p PIIY} A} Ul JOUTW © JO 10BJUOD [BNXSS [BUIWILL)

€1-6-0€ § "NNV'IVIS'A'N

O2IXS MBN

*00139p PUOd9S 9 JO SWILID B SI J[NESSE [BNXdS

"WIOTA 91} UBY) IIP[O SIBdA

INoj 1se9] Je SI JOJO' ) PUR PO SIBAA 9] UBY) SSO] INq €] 1589 18 ST WnoIA Y[ ()
‘proyesnoy oy

urgim suuared 000 Ut spuels 1o ‘uerpiens e ‘quared AJTwre] 99ImMosa1 e S1 10308 Y 1. ()
JO “WUNOTA 307 J9A0

Ajroedes AU Ul 10 2itjed AUe JO Jom0d ATRUT[dIdSIp 10 AIOSTATSANS sey 10398 oy ], (q)
10 02139p paIy) 9y} 03 AJTULJe 10 Poo[q Aq WIIIOIA 9U} 0} PAje[al ST 10308 9y ], (B)

:pUB PJO SIBOA Q[ UL} SSI Inq 9 1B 18 ST WwinolA Y], (€)

‘snye3s Teuonednooo Jo Jeuolssojoid Te39] s 10308 9y} JO

AMUIA AQ WA 9} 1940 Jomod Areurdrosip Jo A10s1a1adns sey 100k Y} pue uonnIjsul
Ioo 10 uosud ‘peydsoy e ur paure3ap st 1o ‘ojored 10 uoreqoid uo s1 windIA Y], (7)
‘Kmfur reuosiod

SI9AJS UIE)SNS 10U S0P WNOIA ) ING “UOIOIN09 10 9910 [eorsAyd sasn 10308 oY (1)
:590UB)SWNIIIO SUIMO[[OJ 9Y) JO au0 Aue 1opun uosiad 1oyjoue

yIim uonenouad [enxas Jo JoB Ue SIIUOD Y JI }[Nesse [enxas Jo A[m3 s 10308 Uy 2

j[nesse [enxog
(1102 39M) T-¥1:0T § 'NNV'LVIS'['N

Aasiar meN

[°V-2€9 § NNV IVIS ATI H' N




"sjooyos A[1epI1o pue ayes Sururejurewr pue Sunowoid jo ssodind

oy 10 [ooyos e ur juasaid Apren3ar st oym uosiad 19410 Aue J0 I3JIJJO 90IN0SAI

JOOYS © 9pn[oul [[eys  JO01J0 KJoJes J00yos,, ULId) oY) ‘uondasqns siy} Jo sasodmd 104
(P)'Z0Z-v1°S D Ul se Surueawr owes 9y} 9ARY [[eyS JUSpNIs,, pue ‘ Jouuosiad jooyos,,
¢ JOOYDs,, SIS} oY) ‘uonpoesqns s1y} Jo sasodind 10, UONO3S SIY} IdpUn 9318y € 01
asusJep ® 10U S1 Juasuo)) Jusunystund 107e013 10J Surpraoid mef Jo uoIsiA0id I5Y10 owos
IOpUN PAISA0D ST 1oNPpuod 3 ssajun Ajdde [[eys uonoosqns SIy ], "IOULIWIPSIW [ SS]
D & J0 A1m3 SI Juopnis € ST Oy WIIOIA B [}IM JOB [ENXdS B IO ISINO0JIUL [BUISRA

Ul sa3e3Ud puB WIDIA Y} URY) IOP[O SIBIA INOJ UL} SSI] ST PUL “‘YOB0D IO ‘I31JJO

A1978S TOOYDS “ISYOBA] JUIPNIS “IOTENSIUIUPE [00YDS “IS1I8d) © URy) IO ‘[ouuosiad
[OOUOS ST oYM JUBPUSJOP V "SI9UN[OA IO “paudisse ‘poAo[duud SI juepuajep oy} pue
PS[[OIUD ST JUIPIIS Y} YOIYM T8 [00YDS B SUBOW  [OOYDS SWILS,, WLId) 9 ], ‘JUSpnIs ayj 0}
pauew A[[Nyme] ST JUBPUSJOP 913 Uaym 1dooxa ‘Auo(af O sse)) & Jo Am3 SI juepudjop
A} JUIpNIS B 2q 0} SASLID WINDIA I} 9I10Joq INg ‘[00Yds dures 3y} ul Joy3ooy jussaxd
9JoM WITIDIA PUR JUBPUIJIP Y} SwWI) S} JaYJe 10 SuLmp W) AUe je JUapmis € ST oym
WIOIA B 1M 108 [BNXIS B JO 9SINODIOJUI [RUISeA UI Sa3e3Ud WIIOIA 9} UBY) JOPO SIBIA
Inoj 1se9[ e S1 oYM pue ‘[uuosiad [00YdS IOYI0 SI oym IO 9Fe Aue je Yor0d I0 ‘I9IJJO
Kj97eSs [00UOS “IAUOBI) JUIPNIS “I0JRNSIUTWIPE [00Y0Ss T(08] € ST OUM JUepusjap € J1 (q)

9SUQJOP OU JUISUOD SWIIIOIA UTRLIID [YIM SISUIJJO [BNXIS pUL 9SINOIINUL
(1T02389M) L'LT¥1 § "LVISNEDD'N

BuIjoIED YLON

‘PITYO B IDA0 SOUSNJJUI SNPUN ISIOIIXD
01 91qe s1 ‘uonisod ey} Jo uosea1 £q ‘oym uosiad 10130 10 1401dw9 “IoyoR] JoqUId
proyasnoy ‘aane[al quared e £q perdnooo uonisod jer) sueow , Ajuoyine Jo uonisod,, g

01-6-0€ § NNV IVISTA'N

ITANS 07 PIIYo o) 901900




.St

K1aneq 1enxXaS--91
Iopun 9q 0} paAdaq uosiad JO 9] Iopun pIYd 0} sk s1oe 1o s[esodoid Juaoapur 10 pma]
(1107389M) €211 § ‘1T 11 "LVIS VIO

ewioyepio

"[00Y9s Tey} pusye

10U SOOpP puR UI PI[[OIUD JOU ST IOPUIJJO Y} PUB ‘[OOYDS JBy) SPUd)e 10 Ul PI[[OIUd

s1 uosiad 19730 9y

OpPOD) PISIAYY Y3 JO /(' JOEE WOND3s JO ((]) UOISIAIP 0] juensind sprepue)s WNWIUIW
$9qL10sa1d UONBINPS JO pIeOq 21BIS SN} YOTYM JOJ [00ds & ul Sura1ss 1o £q paLojduo
Luoyine ut uosiad IS0 I0 Yorod ‘I0JeNSIUIPE ‘TAYOEa] € SI Jopuajo oy, (1)

:Ajdde Summoj[o} oy Jo AU UM “IOPUS]JO
a3 Jo asnods I} 10U “ISYIOUE M JONPUoo [enxas ur o3edus [jeys uosiod oN (V)

K1oRq TeNX9ag
(1102 159M) €0°L06C § NNV A0 AT OIHO

o4O

“JUapN3s Y} 0}
paLurewr Afinyme] st uosiad 2y} J1 JUSPNIS © 3IM SONISGI] JUoo3pul Junyel Jo A3 jou s1
uosiad v Juswystund 1018313 0] Surpraoid me] Jo uorsiaoid J9Y}0 WOS IPUN PAISAOD

ST JONPUOd Y} SSA[UN “AUO[S] | SSB[D

B JO A)[In3 SI JUBPUSJOP Y} JUIPMIS B 9q 0} SISBID WA 9} 910J3q INg [OOYOS oWes
9y} Ul 1971930 Ju2saId 919M WIOIA PUR JUBPUSJOP ) dWIf O} J9)Je JO Juump swn

AU e JUSpNS B ST OYM WINOIA B Y}IM SOTLIOQI] JUSDOPUL SaE] “TUTIOIA oY} URY} JOP[O
SIe9K INOJ 1SBa] 18 S1 pue [dUu0sIad [00YsSs 1930 ST ogm Jo a3k Aue 18 ‘[Jor0o 10 “IITIJO
K197eS 0OYDS “IoYoBI} JUIPNYS ‘J0JRISTUTWIPE [OOYOS ‘I9YJLS] B ST OYM ‘JUBpusjop € Ji ()

JUSPNIS B YIIM SOTIRqI] Jusdepul Sune],

(1102 189M) ' 20T-¥1 § "LVIS'NAD D'N




£ST

"[OOTOS B UI PaJ[OIUD ST oym uosiad e suedws  Juopms,, (9)

‘sasodind onsouderp 10 Juourjean) paziud0d31 A[[BOIPAW 10

paysidwoooe

ST uorsnnul yons uaym 1dooxs ‘Apoq s,uosied 1oyjoue Jo s3uruado [eue 10 [BIUST

a3 oul 399[qo Aue Jo 10 Apoq s,uosiad e Jo 1red Aue JO ‘SIS JIOAIMOY UOISNIUL AUR
Io

‘95IN02IIUI [eUR ‘ONe[[a] ‘SN3UI[IUUND ‘9SINODIAUT [BNXS SUBIW , A1o1jeq [BNnX3S,, (S)
"[ooyos Y31y & 10 J00yos Y31y Jorun{ & 90U} SUBSW [OOYDS AIBpU092S,, ()

“JOOY9S 3} UI PI[[OIUD JUSPNIS B JOU ST N [00Yds Arepuodas ajearntd 1o orjqnd e ypim
parel[yye

ST OUM [OBOD IO ‘IO[RSUNOD OUBPINS “IGALIP SN [0OYDS ‘IOOTJO JUSWOIIOJUD MB[
‘I91[0B3) JUSPNIS “JUL)SISSE S IOYOBI] ‘ISYILI} IMIISqnS I9Yoed} “IOJRI)SIUTPE UL SUBOW
A1oeded [eI91JJO UR UI [00YDs ATepu0das dealid 10 o1jqnd € Yim peleI[Ije uosidd,, (€)

"JUSPNIS B YIM AIONR(Q [BNXS
(1107 359M) SSL-€-91 § 'NNV 440D DS

BLijoIRY) 3N

“WIOTA 9} JOAO AJLIOUINE SISIOIOXD

OyM WDISAS [O0YDS B Y)IM SUNORIUOD W) B JO 20L0[dwo UB JO WSISAS [0OYOS ©

Aq pakojdurs uosiad payutodde Amnp 1930 J0 Tedrounid ‘Ioyoes) B SUBSW  WSISAS [0OYOS
awes Y} Jo saLodws,, ‘UOI0aSqNS SIY} UL PAsn Sy "SPULS)je WIIOIA o) ey WaISAS
JOOT[OS SUIES Y] JO 99A0[dUIS Ue ST pue I9p[0 JO 93¢ JO SIedA (1) USdIJs1a ST OyM
Tosd e

AQq "TOOTJS 197033 ASO[OUTI3] 10 "JOOYDS ATepuodas 10 Alejuatio[e ofeAlid Jo ofjqnd Aue
JO UOTSTATSUNS 10 APOIST) [€39] 9y Ul JO JUIPIIS ® SI pue 93e JO s1eak ((7) Ajuam] uey
$$9] ST pue 93e JO SIAA (9]) USIXIS s8I 18 ST oym uosiod & uodn pepruuwiod uayp, 't

: JOUUBW SNOIAIOSE] pPUB PMI] B UI ‘JOP]O 10 93€ JO SI1edk

(91) uooyxis yosiod

Aue o sured ayeatrd 10 Apoq oy} Jo Sureoj 1o Jurnew ‘Furgono) [BUOUSIUL JY) URSUI
[Teys  A191eq [BNnXaS,, “uosiad 19710 AUue uo A191jeq [enxas o TTeys uosiad oN "g




kst

oousn[FuI onpun

3S1019%2 0 9[qe ST uonisod Jet]} Jo uoseal Aq ‘oym ‘Kyone Jo uonisod e ut uosiad

® £q perdnooo uonisod jey) sueawr  Jsny [eroads jo uonisod,, {WOIA Sy} 0 UOTIR]SI

Ul IS0} [810adS JO UONIS0d € pardinodo oM U0sIod B AQ PIRTWOd SBM aSUajo oy ()

:9SUSJJO SY) JOJ UOTOR Y} UI 9N} punoj I0 PIPIWpe pue padreyd
U99q 9ABY SOOUBISWUNIIIO SUIMO[[O] 9y} JO Aue (7) UOI}oasqng Ul paqLIosap asuajo
o yim uonounf{uod ur usym pIIyo & Jo osnge [enxas payeseidse sywwod uosiod v ()

PIIYO ® JO 9snqe [enxos pajeArIS3y--PIYd B JO Isnge [enxag
(1102 359M) T°'90b-6-9L § 'NNY 500D HV.L(}

yein

"AUo[aJ D) sse[) © st amgiy Auoyine ue Aq A1013eq renxas (q)

"J9BIUOD [enxas 2y} ysijduwioose 03 AJLIOYINE JY) Pasn pue WIdIA oy

ISA0 LJIoyine [erpoisno 1o [eyusred ‘Osusjjo oy} Jo awirl oy Je ‘pey Juepusjap YL (4)
O TJOBIUOD [eNXas oy YSI[AuIoooe

07 1224.0d 10 ST} JO UONISOd 9} Pasn pue sijejs [euonednsoo JO [euorssajoid

[€89] S, JUBpUSJap oUJ JO SMIIA AQ WNDIA 9} JOAO JoMO0d ATBUI[AIJSIP JO ATOSTATOANS
PeY 10 "IST1] JO UONISOd € Ul 9SUSLJ0 o) JO aun oUj 18 sem Juepudjap oyl (v)(€)
‘pue ‘ao3e jo ssaypredar ‘ssojdjoy AjreorsAyd 1o pejeyroedesur

AJ[BIUSUI “OATIORJOD A[[RIUSW ‘QSUJJO S} JO WL} 9} B ‘Sem WndIA Y], (7)

Jo o3k Jo s1eak (§1) Ua9IySI1o U SS9 Inq

JOPJO 10 93k JO S182A (€ ) USAUIY) “OSUJJO Y} JO S} 913 J& ‘Sem wndiA oy (1)
1S90UBISWUNDID

Buimor[oy ay) Aq paruedwosde WIIA © AQ JUBPUIJSP U IO JUBPUSJOP 9}

AQ WIOIA B M JOBIUOD [BNXaS [nyme[un s1 amngij Auoyine ue Aq A1opeq [enxag (e)

Areuad Axoneq [enxas amsiy uoymny
(110T359M) LTS-€1-6€ § 'NNY HIOD'NNAL

sassoUUa]|




Sse

Paseq-ouoy SIAT01 oym uosiad Aue 10 ‘MDY

S61°V8T

191deyo 1opun jooyds ojearid e Aq paiosuods 10 pajsoy wreidoid v Surpusye Jo e
PSIOIUR JUIPNIS B 10 ‘070°0S T V8T MDY Ul POUIJAp SB [00Uds uowuos e Aq pasosuods
10 poysoy wreidod e Surpuane J0 je PI[[OIUS JUSPNIS AUL SUBIW  JUSPNIS PI[OIUH,, (B)
:uonoas sty yo sasodmd oy 10 ()

"AUO[QJ ) SSB[d © ST 92139p 1SI1J oY} UI JOUIW B 1M JoNpuodsI fenxas (7)

"TBIIXTS ISBI[ I8 ST OyM

PIIU? 13750] 1oy 10 ST (JIM JSINOJISIUL [eNXos ‘9AeY 0} US9JUsId JO age o Jopun uosiod
IST[JOUR S3SNEI A[SUIMOUY 10 "Sey O JuaIed 19350 € SI uosiad oy (9) 10 Juapiys

37 ey} I9P[O SYJUOLT AJXTS ISBI] 6 ST 99AO0[UUID I JI "90A0[dUId U] 0] poLewl
JOU pue PO SIE3A JUO-ATUSM] UBL] JJOUI JOU PUE PJO SIEJA USIIXIS 15e9] 18 SI OUM [OOYDS
37 JO JUSPMIS PI[[OIUD UE (1M JSINOVISUT [ENXaS “0AeY 0] U9aJUs1d JO 958 o]} Jopuil
UOSISd T3JOUR SaSTed A[SUIMOUT JO Sey OUM J9A0[dWD [00YJS € ST uosiad o) (q)
TWIIOIA S} Y3IM JSINOOIdIUL [enxas ur 9Fedus 01 uoajy3io Jo oFe oy Jopun uosiod
Iayjoue asned 1o Ul 98e3ud 01 Jopio ur drysuone[ar jey; urgiim uonisod A1osiazodns

© Sosnge pue ‘wnola 3y} o) diysuone[d1 JuedIUSIS € Ul ST “WINOIA 9Y) Uey) Iop[o
syjuow AIxI1s 3sea] e s1 Iojenadiod oy J1 ‘rojenodiaod oyl 03 paLLIEW JOU PUB PO SIBA
ua9y3Ie

UBY) SS9] 1N PJO SIBAA UJXIS 1SBI] B ST oYM UosIad ISUJoUe M 9SINOIIUI [BNXIS
‘dA®Y 0} U231Y310 Jo 93 oy} 1opun uosiad 1eyioue sasned A[Sumony 1o ‘sey uosiod oy,
() ‘usym 90139p ISI1J O} UI JOUTUI B Y3IM JONpuodsI fenxas Jo A)ymS st uosiad v (1)
90139p 1SI1J Y} UI JOUTW B [JIM JONPUOISIU [BNXOS

(1107 359M) €60°v'V6 § 'NNY 900D AT HSY A\

uojBuiysepn

“yuored

® JO JUBIqey0d 3npe Jo ‘9oun ‘qune ‘quaredpueid ‘uerprens [eSs] quaied sandope
“uareddals

9uared [eImjeu ‘10peI] INOSS JNpe ‘ToNIs-Aqeq ‘quared 103s0] ‘YoLordurs “10300p “1opea]
SNOIBIAI ‘I0[OSUNO ‘I3YILI) “YorO0d JNpe ‘Ioeustl ON[YIE JNPe ‘Y npe e SI oym
Iopea] [BUOIIBAIOAL IO IOPLI] YINOA B ‘0 paIWI] 10U SI Ing ‘Sapnjoul pue ‘wnodlA Ay} IOA0




9T

"UQIPJIYO SuIyoes ] |

“USIPIIYD 1A AT}ORIIP J0BIOIUT JO JI0M 0 19y Jo Wiy saxmbar uonisod

10 uorednodo oY) Jey} 90USPIAS a1 ewiid st Sumoriog oy Jo Aue 03 Junerar uonisod
1993unjoA e ul sayedronyed 1o uonednooo ue ur sagedud uosiad e ey SoupIAy (p)
‘sarpdde (7) "qns yorym o3 asuapjo ue o} Ajdde jou soop () ydeidered (o)

"Auojoj H sser) & Jo Am3 st () "1ed sajejora 1oa00yM (q)

‘uonisod 103unjoa 10 uonednooo jery YSnoay} s1oeIouI I0 syIom uosiad oy

woym 3im pue ‘asnods s,uosiod oy} 10U ST oym ‘SIeak 91 Jo 3k 2y paulee sey oym
PITYO B Y}IM 9SINOJISIUT [BNXAS JO JOBIUOD [BNXIS JABY JOU ABUWI UDIP[IYD 3M AJI02IIp
10BIIUL JO JIoMm 0} 19y Jo wiy saxmbai jeyy uonisod xosjunjoa e ut sojedronred 1o
uorednooo ue ur so3e3ud oym pue sIeak [z Jo 95 o) paurene sey oym uoszad v (8)(€)
"JUOPNIS B SB PI[[OIUD ST PIIYO 9y} YoIym Ul JOLISIP [OOYIS IO

[00Y9Ss Y1 JO JJelS [00YOS Y} JO IOqUIDL B ST JUBpULJop 94 (q)

"JOLISIP [00YDS B IO [0OYDS B UL JUOPNIS B SB PI[[OIUL SI P[IYd oy ], (B)

:A1dde Sumorjog oy Jo [[e J1 Auo[a] H sse[D ® Jo Ajm3 st asnods

S,JUBpUSJop Y} JOU ST OYM PUE SIBdA 9] JO 23k oY) PauIele sey oym

PITYO ® Y3IM 9SINODISIUL [BNXSS 10 JOBIUOD [enXas sey JoA0yA (7)

"JOBIJUOD

B JOpUn preoq [00Yos & 10 [0OYIS B 0} S991AISS sopiaoid oym uosiod e pue preoq
[00Y9s © 10 Jooyos ' JO 9aLojdwa ue Jurpnjoul ‘pieoq

[OOY9S © 10 [OOJS B 0} SOOIAISS sopiaoid oym uosiad Aue sueow  Jjels [00Y9S,, (q)
"[00Yds A1epuodas 10 Arejuowd[d aeatid 1o o1jqnd e sueswr  Jooyds,, (B)

11013098 s uy (1)

USIPTIYD Y3IM SIOUN[OA IO SHIOM Oym uosiad e

10 uos1ad Jjels j00yds © AqQ PIIYD © JO JNeSSe [Bnxag

(110 159M) S60°816 § NNV LVLS SIM

UISUODSIA

SATaM] Y3noay} ualre31opury opeid B 10 ‘0Z0°0S1°VSET
MDY UI pauIfap [00YdS OO B JO 2340[dwd ue suedw  d240[dwd [00Y9S,, (q)

‘MDY 007 V8Z ¥1deyo opun uononisul




Lse

‘uosiad & 1940 Souan[Jur JuBOYTUIIS 9SI0IOXS 0} 9[qe SI ‘uonIsod ST JO UOSLaI

Aq ‘oym uosiod 10130 Aue 10 URIPOISNO ‘YoAo[dwd “10108s) ‘IOqUIS P[OYISNOY “DANE[al
‘uerprens ‘quared e £q pardnooo uonsod jey) suesw , AJLIOYINE JO UONISOJ,, (AT)

o 0} SSOUSUI[[IMUN JJBOIUNUIMIOD 0} djqeun A[[eorsAyd asmiayio 10 doojse
‘snorosuooun sueaw , ss9[day A[[eo1sAyd,, (111) ‘uosiod o[ewa) © Jo 1se31q 2y} 10 uosiad
Aue Jo saqnd Jo snue ‘wmouired ‘erfejiuod [euIdXa oy sueowt  sired ojewnuy,, (1)
Inesse [eUTWLIO JO Pasnode uosiad oy} sueawr 1030V, (1)

:9[O11IB ST} Ul pasn Sy (B)

suonIuIya(]

(110Z159M) 10€-T-9 § "NNV'LVISOAM

BuiwoApp

"uoneZIuesio YNox ‘4
"ur[Esunod Yinox ‘¢

9180 PIYD ¢




CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Pursuant to NRAP 25, I certify that I am an employee
of Karla K. Butko, Ltd., P. O. Box 1249, Verdi, NV 89439,
and that on this date I caused the foregoing document to
be delivered to all parties to this action by
jx placing a true copy thereof in a sealed, stamped
envelope with the United States Postal Service at
Reno, Nevada.
prersonal delivery
addressed as follows:
Tyler Ingram, Esq.
Chad B. Thompson, Esq.
Elko County District Attorney's Office

540 Court Street, Second Floor
Elko, NV 89801

DATED this &27) day of February, 2019.

OKW\U%W

Karla K. Butko, Esqg.




